TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA R
Iy JuL 12 A 837
TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS L ERM
TOWM CLET
740 MAIN STREET EAST HA RTFORD
EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
JULY 18, 2019

6:45 P.M. Executive Session

Announcement of Exit Locations (C.G.S. § 29-381)

Pledge of Allegiance ' 7:30 p.m.

1.

2.

CALL TO ORDER
AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA

RECOGNITIONS AND AWARDS

A. Beautification Commission — June 2019 Awards
» The Rodriguez Family, 104 Hills Street
» The Nagle Family, 108 Britt Road

OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON AGENDA [TEMS
A. Other Elected Officials

B. Other Residents

C. Mayor

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. June 18, 2019 Regutar Meeting

. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS
A. Tentative Agreement: Teamsters’ Local 671 — Telecommunicators
1. Approval of Agreement '
2. Contingency Transfer
B. East Hartford Educational Administrative and Supervisory Unit Agreement
C. Brewer Street Reconstruction Project
D. Hartford Foundation for Public Giving: 2019 Civic Engagement Grant
E. U. S. Attorney’'s Office: Project Safe Neighborhoods Grant
F. State Department of Education: Youth Service Bureau Grant
G. Outdoor Amusement Permit;
1. Summerfield Summer Bash
2. Believe 208 Run for the Finest and Bravest
a. Approval of Application
b. Waiver of Permit Fee

OPPORTUNITY FOR COUNCILLORS TO DIRECT QUESTIONS TO THE
ADMINISTRATION

Town Council Agenda B - July 16, 2019



10. COUNCIL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTERS
A. Pending Property Damage Claim of The Connecticut Light & Power Company, D.B.A.
Eversource Energy
B. Pending Property Damage Claim of Tyler Devaux

11. OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO SPEAK
A. Other Eiected Officials
B. Other Residents
C. Mayor

12. ADJOURNMENT (next meeting: August 6™)

Town Council Agenda 2 July 186, 2019



June Awards

The Rodriguez Family

104 Hills Street

The Nagle Family

108 Britt Road

Thank You,

Pat



EAST HARTFORD TOWN COUNCIL 2019 JUN 24 A it i9
TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS TOWN CLERK

. EAST HARTFORD
JUNE 18, 2019

PRESENT  Chair Richard F. Kehoe, Vice Chair Linda A. Russo, Majority Leader Ram
Aberasturia, Minority Leader Esther B. Clarke, Councillors Marc Weinberg
and Patricia Harmon

ABSENT Councillors Joseph R. Carlson, Shelby J. Brown and Caroline Torres

CALL TO ORDER,

Chair Kehoe called the meeting to order at 7:37p.m. The Chair announced the exit
locations in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes §29-381, after which the
Council joined him in the pledge of allegiance.

OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON AGENDA ITEMS

Susan Knigp, 50 Olde Roberts Street, (1) commented on the number of Democratic
Councillors who are not seeking reelection in November; (2) the supplementai budget
transfer of approximately $2M to balance the FY19 budget; and (3) asked that the town
post the employee salaries and pensions being paid to reflect the step increases and
salary increases. ' '

Mavyor Leclerc: (1) the EHPD received their CALEA certification on June 5%; (2) Ice
Cream with a Cop will be Wednesday, June 19t from Noon to 2PM at the Dairy Queen on
Main Street; (3) there are several events sponsored by the Library, including Caribbean
Heritage month, Stem Camp for Children, and much more for all age groups.; (4) Tuesday
August 8" from 5PM to 8PM is National Night Out which will be held on the front lawn of
the Public Safety Complex; (5) the renovations to the Wickham Library and the new
Senior Center are underway with final plans being reviewed; (6) the CRDA has written the
RFP for the demolition of the Showcase Cinemas; (7) State Representative Jeff Currey
asked that the town fly the LGBTQ flag in the front of Town Hall; (8) Mayor Leclerc stated
that if any East Hartford resident has a suggestion or idea for something, she urged them
to step forward; and (9) MDC bills the East Hartford Fire Department $110,000 annually
for the town'’s fire hydrants; the bill received this year for the hydrants was $135,000.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

June 4, 2019 Executive Session

MOTION By Ram Aberasturia
seconded by Linda Russo

June 18, 2019 _ 1 Volume 88



to approve the minutes of the June 4, 2019 Executive Session.
Motion carried 6/0.

June 4, 2019 Reqgular Meetina

MOTION

By Ram Aberasturia

seconded by Pat Harmon

to approve the minutes of the June 4, 2019 Regular Meeting.
Motion carried 6/0.

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS

Resignation of Susan Skowronek from the Planning and Zoninig Comimission

The Chair announced the resignation of Susan Skowronek from the town’s Planning &
Zoning Commission where she was designated as an Alternate. He thanked her for her
service to the town.

MOTION

By Ram Aberasturia

seconded by Linda Russo

to take item 8.G. 1&2 under New Business, entitled “Istand Time in East
Hartford” and “RiMaConn Relay” out of order to accommodate those
present. '

Motion carried 6/0.

NEW BUSINESS

Island Time in East Hartford

MOTION

By Linda Russo

seconded by Pat Harmon

to approve the outdoor amusement permit application entitled “Istand .
Time in East Hartford™ as submitted by Sarah Kline Morgan, Library
Director of the East Hartford Public Library, to conduct an event that will
feature dance and music in honor of Caribbean Heritage month on
Saturday, June 29" at the East Hartford Public Library located at 840
Main St, from 1PM to 4:30PM; subject to compliance with adopted codes
and regulations of the State of Connecticut, the Town of East Hartford,
and any other stipulations required by the Town of East Hartford or its
agencies.

Motion carried 6/0.

RiMaConn Relay

MOTION

June 18, 2019

By Marc Weinberg
seconded by Linda Russo

2 Volume 88



to approve the outdoor amusement permit application entitled
“‘RiMaConn Relay” as submitted by Charlie Scanlon, Operations Manager
for the Hartford Marathon Foundation, to conduct a team relay event to
complete a 95 mile trek from Lincoln, Rhode [siand to Hartford,
Connecticut on Saturday, August 24" from 5:30pm to 9:30pm; subject to
compliance with adopted codes and regulations of the State of
Connecticut, the Town of East Hartford, and any other stipulations
required by the Town of East Hartford or its agencies.

Motion carried 6/0.

At this point, the Council returned to the order of the agenda.

NEW BUSINESS (Cont'd)

End of Fiscal Year 2018-2018:

Preliminary Year-end Financial Resuits

Michael Walsh, Finance Director, provided the Council with a brief summary of the
unexpected expenditures and the impact to the end of FY2019. Additionally, he reviewed
memos that explained the costs related to the Public Safety Complex Camera and Access
Control and the PBX phone system. Director Walsh also reviewed the increases in the
supplemental budget appropriation in the following departiments/areas: Public Works,
Fire, Severance (retirements) and Assessor's. On the revenue side of the budget,
Director Walsh indicated that he expects a net favorable revenue adjustment of $1.8M.

Interdepartmental Budget Transfers

MOTION By Ram Aberasturia
seconded by Linda Russo
to approve the interdepartmental transfers for fiscal year 2018-2019
consistent with the transfers listed in a memorandum from Finance Director
Michael Walsh to Mayor Marcia Leclerc dated June 7, 2018 totaling
$361,000 in fransfers within the General Fund as follows:

The Town of East Hartford 7-Jun-19%

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019
Year-End Budget Transfers

General Fund To

Account Number Name Amount
G1200-62360 Town Clerk - Election Day Expenses 12,000
G2300-60110 HR - Permanent Services 11,000
(G3800-83499 Employee Benefits - Severance 310,000
G9300-63138 Heaith - EnvironmentaiControl - Contractual 17,000
G9600-63492 Contingency - Reserve 11,000

TOTAL 361,000
June 18, 2019 3 Volume 88




General Fund From
Account Number Name Amount
G5203-60110 Poiice - Permanent Services 300,000
G8100-60110 Parks and Rec. - Permanent Services 61,000
TOTAL 361,000

The funds being fransferred are certified as available and unobligated.

Motion carried GfO.

Supplemental Budget Appropriation and Fund Balance Transfer

MOTION By Ram Aberasturia

seconded by Marc Weinberg
to adopt the following resolution:

RESOLUTION CONCERNING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET APPROPRIATION AND FUND BALANGE
TRANSFER TO FUND A YEAR-END DEFICIT IN THE GENERAL FUND FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING
JUNE 30, 2019

WHEREAS, the Town of East Hartford has experienced higher than budgeted costs in the Information
Technology line for unplanned software and infrastructure needs, in the Assessor’s Department for legal costs
to defend the Pratt revaluation lawsuit, in the Fire Department Qvertime, Holiday, and Permanent Services
accounts as a result of vacancies, minimum staffing provisions in the collectively bargained labor agreement,
and pending retirements, and in a variety of Public Works accounts for tank removal, overtime, utility costs,
rising vehicle maintenance, higher refuse disposal fees due to a MIRA mid-year turbine breakdown, as well as
funding for unbudgeted capital projects at the Community Cultural Center and Second North School, and

WHEREAS, these expenses have been or will be paid from the Town's General Fund by June 30, 2019, and

WHEREAS, as a result of the aforementioned, it is necessary for the Town of East Hartford to set aside
additional budget contributions to fund a projected General Fund deficit in fiscal year 2018-19,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the East Hartford Town Councif does hereby approve this
Supplemental Budget Appropriation of funds in the amount of $2,200,000 from the Town’s Undesignated
Fund Balance for the purpose of funding a fiscal year 2018-19 deficit as listed below and does hereby amend
the current 2018-19 fiscal year Operating Budget to reflect the attached Supplemental Revenue Appropriation
and Expenditure Appropriation.

(G0320-55900 Fund Balance Appropriation 2,200,000
(53300-64500 IT ~ Capital Equipment 200,000
G3600-63138 Assessor — Confract Services 100,000
(G3800-63499 Employee Benefits — Severance 50,000
G5317-60141 Fire Suppression — Overtime 775,000
G7200-63175 Public Works — Engineering - Prof. Services 100,000
(G7300-60141 Public Works — Highway Overtime 210,000
G7400-63410 Public Works — Waste — Tipping Fees 50,000
G7700-60110 Public Works — Fleet — Permanent Services 366,000
G7800-65252 Public Works — Buildings — Electricity 75,000
G7800-65254 Public Works — Buildings - Water 40,000
G7807-63489 Public Works — Second North School Roof 76,000
G7807-69273 Public Works — EHCCC — HVAC 158,000

Funds certified as unobligated and available.

On call of the vote, motion carried 6/0.

June 18, 2019 4 Volume 88



Board of Education Capital Reserve Fund Transfer FY2018-2019

MOTION By Linda Russo
seconded by Ram Aberasturia
that in accordance with Article 7 §10-38 of the Town of East Hartford
Code of Ordinances, the Town Council approve the Board of Educations’
request to expend $906,914 or such lesser amounts as deposited based
on the proceeds as forwarded by the Board of Education from the Board of
Education’s Capital Reserve Account for the purposes of funding capital
improvements and other general improvement projects which are all
consistent with the projects contained in the district’s approved Capital
Improvement Plan.
Motion carried 6/0.

Approval of Sale of Individual Tax Liens

MOTION By Marc Weinberg
seconded by Linda Russo
to approve the sale of tax liens as listed on the report attached to a
memorandum dated June 11, 2018 from Finance Director Michael Walsh
to Mayor Marcia Leclerc which lists and enumerates 42 properties,
along with the amount of the tax lien for each property and the high bid for
each property, resulting from the request for proposal relevant to the tax
lien sale and to award the high bid for the 42 properties which collectively totals
$620,876.46 as follows:

» FIG Capital investments — 37 bids totaling $539,135.10
» RTLF-CT, I.L.C - 3 bids totaling $ 50,486.05
» B0 Wooster, [.LC - 1 bid totaling $ 50,000.00
» M. Cruickshank Co, LLC ~ 1 bid totaling $ 25,467.94

Motion carried 6/0.

Referral to Real Estate Acquisition & Disposition Committee re: 78 North Meadow Lane

MOTION By Linda Russo
seconded by Ram Aberasturia
to refer to the Real Estate Acquisition & Disposition Committee the
possible acquisition of 78 North Meadow Lane with instructions to discuss
the issue and report back to the Town Council with its recommendations, if
any. : '
Moticon carried 6/0.

Appointments to Various Boards and Commissions
MOTION By Marc Weinberg

seconded by Linda Russo
to approve the following appointments:

June 18, 2019 5 Volume 88



» Veterans Commission:
Tia Woods, 4 Simmons Road - term to expire December 2019

» Commission on Services for Persons with Disabilities:
Veronica Rosario, 210 Plain Drive term to expire December 2019

Motion carried 6/0.

Refund of Taxes

MOTION By Marc Weinberg
seconded by Pat Harmon
to refund taxes in the amount of $ 14,566.09
pursuant to Section 12-129 of the Connecticut General Statutes.
Motion carried 6/0.

Bill Name Prop Loc/Vehicle Info. Over Paid

2017-03-0050233 ACAR LEASING LTD 2016/1G11B55A1GF 125865 -253.93

CORELOGIC TAX SERVICES

2017-01-0016070  CENTRALIZED REFUNDS 478 BURNSIDE AVE -11,874.50
2017-03-0067005 HONDA LEASE TRUST ' 2016/19UDEZF3XGA015532 -239.44
2017-03-0068800 JULMISSE PIERRE A~ ) 2006/3VWRGT71K96M752133 -20.83
2017-04-0085956  NISSAN INFINITI LT 2015/1N4AL3AP2FNI00537 -34.78
2019-99-001449 SYKES COLLETTE PARKING TICKET -45.00
2017-03-0088531 VW CREDIT LEASING LTD 2015/ TVWATTA3ZFC010238 -291.24
2017-01-0005143  WELLS FARGO MOR'I;GAGE | 33 MELTON DR -1,796.37

TOTAL -$14,556.09

OPPORTUNITY FOR COUNCILLORS TO DIRECT QUESTIONS TO THE ADMINISTRATION

None

COUNCIL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTERS

None

June 18, 2019 6 Volume 88



OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO SPEAK

Esther Clarke informed the Council that she recently received an invoice from MDC in the
amount of $2.50, which is a new fee that will be billed monthly for the inspection of her back flow
pump at her home once every five years.

ADJOURNMENT

MOTION By Esther Clarke
seconded by Linda Russo
to adjourn (9:24 p.m.).
Motion carried 6/0.

The Chair announced that the next meeting of the Town Council would be July 16",

Attest M//u M |

Angela M. Attenello
TOWN COUNCIL CLERK

June 18, 2019 7 Volume 88



TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

DATE: July 8, 2019

TO: Richard F. Kehoe, Chair

FROM: Mayor Marcia A. Leclerc(/&/\/

RE: TENTATIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD AND THE

TEAMSTERS LOCAL #5671 UNION

On June 13, 2019 the Town of Fast Hartford and the Teamsters Local #671 Union (hereinafter
“Teamsters Union”) entered into a tentative agreement for a successor collective bargaining agreement
effective July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022. The tentative agreement was ratified by the bargaining
unit members on July 03, 2019.

The duration of the agreement is for three years. Below are the highlights of all the items that were
negotiated:

Highlights:

Article 2 — Union Security
Modifications to dues deduction language to conform with the United States Supreme Court
decision Janus v. AFSCME Council #31, 585 US ___ (2018).

Article 4 — Hours of Work and Overtime
Modification of maximum compensatory time accrual from ten (10} days / eighty {80} hours to
twelve (12) days / ninety-six {96) hours.

Article 8 — Wages and Benefits
Retroactiveto 7/1/19  2.0%
Effective 7/1/20 2.0%
Effective 7/1/21 1.25%

Article 9 -~ Insurance and Pension
Increase in retiree life insurance from $3,000 to $5,000.

Employees hired on and/or after July 1, 2020, will be required to contribute 1% of base pay towards the
OPEB Trust. The impetuses for the tentative agreement centered on maintaining the wage increases and
working conditions for the nineteen {19) positions in the Teamsters Union within the parameters
established in the Town’s Proforma for Labor Contract Negotiations. The nineteen {19) positions arein
the Telecommunication Operator Job Classification and work in the Public Safety Communications
Division of the Police Department. Currently, three (3) of the nineteen (19} positions are vacant and in
the process of being refilled by the department.

Attached to this memorandum is a memorandum from Mike Walsh, Director of Finance, with the
financial analysis of the three-year Teamsters Union tentative agreement. Also, attached for your review



is a clean copy of the tentative Teamsters Union Successor Contract; and a copy of the tentative
agreement highlighting all old language and negotiated changes accordingly.

Since this matter involves a need to fund the successor agreement, the Town’s Finance and Human
Resources Directors will be present at the Council meeting scheduled for Tuesday, July 16, 2019 should
there be any questions or concerns or a need to go into executive session.

The attached tentative agreement is being submitted to you within fourteen days from the date the
union members ratified the agreement. In accordance to Section 7-474 of the General Statutes of the
State of Connecticut “ Such request shall be considered approved if the legislative body fails to vote to
approve or reject such request within thirty days of the end of the fourteen-day period for submission to
said body.”

I respectfully request that this item be submitted to the Council at the July 16%, 2019 Council meeting
and recommend that the Council approve the tentative contract agreement at the July 16%, 2019
Council meeting for the reasons noted above.

C: Michael P. Walsh, Finance Director
Scott M. Sansom, Chief of Police
Santiago Malave, Human Resources Director



OFFICE OF HUMAN RESOURCES

DATE: JULY 03, 2019

TO: MAYOR MARCIA A. LECLERC

FROM: SANTIAGO MALAVE, HUMAN RESOURCES DIR}
RE: TENTATIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OREAS
HARTFORD AND THE TEAMSTERS LOCAL #671 UNION

On June 13, 2019 the Town of East Hartford and the Teamsters Local #671 Union (hereinafter
“T'eamsters Union”) entered into a tentative agreement for a successor collective bargaining
agreement effective July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022. The tentative agreement was ratified by
the bargaining unit members on July 03, 2019.

The duration of the agreement is for three years. Below are the highlights of all the items that
were negotiated:

Highliohts:
Article 2 — Union Security
Modifications to dues deduction language to conform with the United States Supreme Court
decision Janus v. AFSCME Council #31,585US ___ (2018).
Article 4 — Hours of Work and Overtime
Modification of maximum compensatory time accrual from ten (10) days / eighty (80) hours
to twelve (12) days / minety-six (96) hours.
Article 8 — Wages and Benefits
Retroactive to 7/1/19 2.0%

Effective 7/1/20 2.0%
Effective 7/1/21 1.25%



Article 9 — Imsurance and Pension

Increase in retiree life insurance from $3,000 to $3,000.

Employees hired on and/or after July 1, 2020, will be required to contribute 1% of base
pay towards the OPEB Trust.

I respectfully request that this item be submitted to the Council for the July 16, 2019 Council
meeting and recommend that the Council approve the tentative contract agreement at the July 16,
2019 Council meeting for the reasons noted above.

Attached to this memorandum for your use is a suggested transmittal memorandum to Council
Chamrman Richard F. Kehoe.

Cc: Michael P. Walsh, Finance Director
Scott M. Sansom, Chief of Police
Santiago Malave, Human Resources Director















2.7

3.0

3.1

3.4

35

The Town will provide each member of the Union with a copy of this Agreement within
thirty (30) days after the signing of this Agreement. A copy of the Personnel Rules and
Regulations and Merit System will be made available to each employee upon request
with no charge.

ARTICLE III - SENIORITY/LAYOFF/VACANCIES

The Town shall prepare a list of full-time telecommunicators showing their length of
service with the Town and deliver same to the Union on or before December 1st of each
year. Upon completion of their probationary period, new employees shall be added to
this list.

a. Seniority shall commence upon the date that the employee begins employment as
a Public Safety Telecommunicator in the bargaining unit. The employee's earned
seniority shall not be lost because of absence due to illness, pregnancy, maternity
leave, bereavement, jury duty, personal leave, or authorized leaves or while
eligible for recall. Seniority and seniority rights will not be accrued during unpaid
leaves of absence or layoff, but previously accrued seniority rights will not be lost
by the employee because of such leave or layoff. When more than one employee
is appointed on the same date, seniority shall be determined by their relative
positions on the eligibility list, or alphabetically by last name (as of employment
date) in the absence of a current eligibility list.

b. New telecommunicators shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months after
completing the training period but no less than one (1) year, and shall have no
seniority rights during this period, but shall be subject to all other provisions of
this Agreement. The Town may extend such probationary period for up to a
maximum of six (6) additional months. The dismissal of a probationary employee
during probationary period shall not be subject to the grievance procedures. All
employees who have completed their probationary period shall be full-time
employees and shall acquire seniority as of date of their employment.
Probationary employees may be evaluated once each month by their department
head or their designee.

C. Employees who are promoted shall serve a trial period of three (3) months, which
may be extended by an additional three (3) months by the Chief. Management
shall return an employee to the former pay grade or position if the employee fails
to successfully complete the trial period. Employees may be evaluated once each
month during trial period. Reduction in grade shall be only for just cause.

When a new position or assignment is created within the bargaining unit, the employee
with the highest bargaining unit seniority shall be given first opportunity to fill the
position, provided he or she has qualified and has demonstrated the capacity to perform
the duties of the position or assignment. If he or she refuses, it shall go to the next senior
person who has qualified.

The person appointed to the vacancy or new position and a Union Steward shall be
notified, in writing, of the appointment. Notification shall be made not later than forty-

{101821450.DOCX; v.}5



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

five (45) calendar days after the initial posting.

If no employees in the bargaining unit are qualified, the position may be filled through
recruitment of applicants from outside the bargaining unit.

Layoffs are permitted when an appointing authority, with the approval of the Mayor,
deems it necessary by reason of lack of work or funds, the abolition of the position,
material change in the duties or organization which are outside the employee's control
and which do not reflect discredit of the service of the employee. Positions in this
bargaining unit may be abolished upon recommendation of the Mayor and approval of
the Town Council.

a. In the event of a layoff, the employee shall be given at least two (2) weeks' notice
in writing, and the layoffs shall take effect as follows:

L. Temporary and Seasonal Employees
2. Part-Time Employees
3. Probationary Employees

In the event of further layoffs, they shall occur in reverse seniority within the
bargaining unit. (Example: The least senior person in his‘her classification
within the bargaining unit shall be laid off first etc.)

b. Employees who are laid off shall have recall rights for a period of twenty-four
(24) months from the date of layoff and only to the classification from which the
employee was laid off. The last employee in the classification laid off shall be the
first employee recalled to that classification. Employees shall have two (2) weeks
from the date the Town sends a notice of recall by certified mail to the employee
at their last known address to return to the job, unless there are extenuating
circumstances.

C. During the period of layoff the employee shall have the right to receive any
insurance benefits listed under Article IX of this labor agreement, subject to the
provisions of COBRA, as amended.

Laid off employees with the most seniority, in the reverse order provided in Section 3.9
of this Article, shall be rehired first and no new employee, full or part-time, shall be hired
until all laid off employees have been given an opportunity to return to work.

An employee shall lose his seniority rights under any of the following circumstances:

a. Resignation.
b. Discharge for just cause.
C. Failure to report to work within two (2) weeks after due notice by the Town to the

employee's last known address to return to work after layoff, provided the
employee makes known his desire, in writing, to return within five (5) days.

{101821450.DCCX; v.}6



3.11

4.0

4.1

4.2

For all purposes, except layoff, the seniority rights of the Stewards shall be exactly the
same as the seniority rights of all other employees. In the event of a layoff, the Stewards
will have super seniority during their term of office.

ARTICLE IV - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

a. Telecommunicators shall work a schedule of five (5) consecutive days on duty
followed by two (2) consecutive days off duty, with the exception of agreed shift
changes.

b. The work day shall be eight (8) hours, with one-half (%) hour paid meal break.
The meal break may be combined with one fifteen (15) minute break per Section
10.1. The meal break shall not be taken during either the first or last hour of the
employee’s shift.

a. Hiring of overtime shifts shall be fairly distributed within the Bargaining Unit to
all qualified members. Hiring of overtime shifts will be distributed equally with
an agreed upon method of hiring between the Bargaining Unit members and the
Department Head.

b. Overtime work, when required, will be offered to qualified full-time employees
within the bargaining unit only.

c. When overtime is required to fill a vacant shift or fill other demands of public
service, all eligible employees shall first be polled for voluntary acceptance of the
opening. If no volunteers are found, the vacant shift shall be split into two (2)
four-hour segments. The on-duty Telecommunicator with the least number of
total overtime hours during the calendar year shall be required to extend his/her
shift by four hours to fill the first portion of the vacant shift. The second portion
of the vacant shift shall be filled by the employee scheduled for the succeeding
shift who has the least number of total overtime hours during the calendar year.
In the event that employee cannot be contacted, the next scheduled employee on
the successor shift with the least number of total overtime hours shall be called,
until the position is filled. Seniority, from least to most, shall be used to
determine eligibility in the event of equality of total overtime hours.

d. Employees may voluntarily work sixteen (16) consecutive hours in conjunction
with a mandatory eight (8) hour rest period, however, no employee shall be
ordered to work in excess of twelve (12) consecutive hours except that if no
employee from the successor shift can be contacted, the employee from the
preceding shift may be required to work the full shift. In no case shall an
employee be required to work more than sixteen (16) consecutive hours.

e. If an employee has worked twenty-four (24) hours of voluntary or involuntary
overtime in five (5) consecutive calendar days, he/she will not be eligible to be

ordered in for involuntary overtime in the five (5) day work period.

a. Telecommunicators shifts are as follows:

{101821450.D0OCX; wv.}7









5.1

6.0

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Any unanticipated holiday or day of mourmning declared by the Mayor and celebrated by
all other Town employees, other than Board of Education employees, in the form of time
off with pay, shall be granted to the members of this bargaining unit by payment of an
additional day’s pay.

ARTICLE VI - VACATIONS

a. All full-time employees shall be entitled to vacation leave with pay, however,
vacation time shall not be granted to any new employee with less than six (6)
months of service with the Town. Upon appointment, new employees will accrue
vacation time at .83 days per month of service. Any unused vacation time accrued
prior to the first January 1% will be posted as the employee’s annual accrual on the
first January 1* following appointment. Following the first January 1%, employees
will no longer accrue vacation time monthly and shall accrue vacation time as
outlined below. Upon reaching January 1% following one full year of service,
employees shall accrue vacation time on January 1% in the following manner:

Number of Full Years of Number of
Service to be Completed Vacation
Within the Calendar Year Days
Following 1 Full Year to 4 years 10

5 through 9 years 15

10 through 14 years 20

15 years 21

16 years 22

17 years 23

18 years 24

19 or more years 25

Requested vacation periods will be granted by the Deputy Chief or his/her designee with
due consideration to both the wishes of the employee and the public safety and public
service needs of the Department.

Vacation requests submitted prior to March 1st of each year shall be processed in the
following manner:

Priority will be given to vacation requests which exceed four (4) work days. Priority will
then be given to seniority (i.e., in order to exercise seniority, a senior employee must
request more than four days if the same days have been requested by a junior employee
requesting more than four days). In all other cases, seniority shall prevail. A master
calendar indicating approved vacations shall be posted no later than March 15" of each
year. Vacation requests submitted on or after March 1 shall be processed on the basis of
(1) date of submission, (2) duration (3) seniority.

When an employee has no sick leave available, he/she may elect to use vacation leave as
sick leave.

When an employee is separated from Town service, he/she shall be paid his/her pro-rata

{101821450.D0CX; wv.}10



6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

accumulated vacation leave and compensatory time to a maximum of forty (40) vacation
days and ten (10) compensatory days. In the event of an employee's death, such payment
shall be made to his/her dependent survivor or estate if there is no dependent survivor.
Such payment will be made within two (2) weeks of the date of the employee's death, in a
lump sum, provided it does not cross the fiscal year. In the event that it does cross the
fiscal year, payment will be made in two (2) installments.

The maximum accumulation of vacation leave permitied is fifty (50) days; however, no
vacation beyond forty (40) days will be paid by the Town at retirement or separation, No
vacation leave may be used during the sixty (60} days prior to retirement.

Once vacation leave is granted, such leave shall not be canceled unless there exists a
demonstrated need resulting from an actual or imminent public safety emergency.

In the event of illness of a2 minimum of two days during an employee's vacation period,
the employee shall be given the option of charging the sick days to his/her sick time
provided a doctor's note is given to the department head.

Employees shall have the opportunity to purchase, via weekly payroll deductions, up to
five (5) additional vacation days per calendar year. The Authorization for Payroll
Deduction Form (Appendix F) for the Prepaid Vacation Program must be received in
Human Resources, Town Hall, no later than 4:30 p.m. on December 15™ of each year to
be eligible for Prepaid Vacation for the coming calendar year.

ARTICLE V]I - LEAVE PROVISIONS

Section 7.0: Sick Leave:

All employees shall earn paid sick leave at the rate of 1-1/4 days per month with no maximum on
accumulation. Sick leave with pay may only be used for the employee’s recovery from personal
illness or injury, or to permit the employee’s absence for a reasonable period to make
arrangements to care for a member of the immediate family.

a.

Accrual of earned sick leave credits will continue while employees are absent from work
due to vacation, injury, or illness, except for unpaid leave.

In exceptional cases, the Human Resources Director, with the advice of the department
head, may grant additional sick leave with pay. Requests for such additional sick leave
shall be in writing and signed by the employee, when possible.

Sick leave with pay will not be granted for recuperation from illness or injury which is
directly traceable to employment by another employer.

Two accrued sick days may be taken as sick/personal days at a minimum of one-quarter
(1/4) day segments for personal business or appointments that must be conducted during
working hours. Use of this time will not interrupt the earning of Earned Days (see 7.0g
below).

It shall be the responsibility of the employee to notify the department or division head in
{101821450.DOCX; v.}11



advance of sick leave usage, if possible, and in any event not later than one hour prior to
the commencement of the shift. If the absence exceeds five (5) working days, or when an
employee’s attendance shows frequent or habitual absence because of claimed sickness,
the employee shall provide the department head with a doctor’s certificate on the
approved form (Appendix D) within three (3) working days unless there are extenuating
circumstances that prevent the doctor, APRN or Physician’s Assistant from providing
such certificate within that time period.

It shall be the responsibility of the department head to maintain accurate up-to-date leave
records for his/her employees. Once every calendar year in the month of J anuary, the
department head shall notify all employees of the amount of vacation and sick leave to
their credit,

For every calendar quarter of perfect attendance, an employee shall earn one (1) Earned
Day. Maximum accrual of earned days shall be eight (8) days. A continuous absence
commencing in one (1) calendar quarter and continuing into another quarter will break
the perfect attendance for the initial quarter only. Perfect attendance, for the purpose of
this article, shall mean no time taken for tardiness, sick leave, unauthorized leave,
authorized leave without pay, or disciplinary suspension. Earned Days shall be used at
times mutually agreeable to the employee and department head. Requests for Earned
Day usage shall not be unreasonably denied. The Town will not provide payment to any
employee who wishes to cash in unused eamed days upon retirement or
voluntary/involuntary termination.

If an employee has unused sick leave at the time of his/her retirement, he/she shall be
paid in a lump sum for each day of unused sick leave up to a maximum of ninety (90)
days.

Section 7.1: Special Leave With Pav:

a.

Personal Leave: Employees shall be entitled to three (3) days personal leave each
calendar year to be used at the mutual agreement of the employee and the department
head taking into account the staffing needs of the department. Personal leave days
requested less than sixteen (16) hours in advance may be granted at the discretion of the
Department Head. Personal leave will be approved in the following manner: (1) date of
submission, (2) duration, (3) seniority. In the case of conflict, the Department Head
taking into account seniority will have the final authority; subject to the provisions of the
Grievance Procedure. These days are non-accumulative from calendar year to calendar
year. However, should operating needs require the Department Head to deny usage of
any of the three (3) personal leave days, such day(s) shall be carried over and utilized
within the first thirty-one (31) days of the following calendar year. Unused carryover
personal leave balance as of February 1 will be paid to the employee.

Workers’ Compensation: The Town will comply with all applicable state legislation
relating to Workers” Compensation.

Whenever an employee shall be absent because of a Town service connected injury or
occupational disease he/she will be compensated under the provisions of the Workers’
Compensation Act. Such absence will not be charged against accrued sick leave. In

{101821450.D0OCX; wv.}12



addition to payments received under the Workers’ Compensation Act, any employee with
six (6) months of continuous service shall receive a supplemental payment from the
Town, equal to the difference between his take-home pay (gross pay less deduction for
pension, income tax and FICA) and the payments received under the Workers’
Compensation Act for up to one year or maximum improvement, whichever comes first.

Current employees as of the ratification of this agreement shall continue to be eligible for
the supplemental payments described above for up to two (2) years in accordance with
the terms of the 2010-2013 agreement.

In those cases wherein the disabled employee receives damages or awards through
litigation or settlement against third parties, he/she will reimburse the Town for monies
received during such absence.

The Corporation Counsel is authorized by the Town to negotiate anything less than the
full amount of such reimbursement, subject to approval by the Town Council.

Employees shall report all on-the-job illnesses and injuries, in accordance with Workers’
Compensation Laws. The Town shall post prominently a notice designating the authority
to which employees shall report illness and injuries.

c. Jury Duty: The Town agrees to comply with Connecticut General Statutes, as amended
from time to time, to determine compensation for employees required to report for jury
duty.

d. Funeral Leave: Three (3) days of special leave with full pay, between the date of death
and the date of the funeral inclusive, shall be granted for death in the employee’s
immediate family. Immediate family, for purposes of this section, is defined as parents,
step-parents, grandparents, spouse, brother, step-brother, sister, step-sister, child, step-
child, grandchild, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, mother-in-
law, father-in-law, and any other relative that is domiciled in the employee’s household.

e. Military Leave: Employees shall be granted leave with full pay at current base rate for
the purpose of attending training camps for Reservists or National Guard members
provided:

o Military pay and wages paid by the Town together do not exceed the employee’s
regular wages, and the Town shall be reimbursed for any overpayment.

o Such summer training periods do not exceed two weeks.
f. Education Leave: Employces may be granted leave with pay to permit participation in
education or training courses which enhance the employee’s value to the Town. An
advance request for the above leave must be in writing and must have approval of the

department head and the Mayor.

Section 7.2: Family Medical Leave:

Employees have certain rights and responsibilities under the Federal Family and Medical Leave

{101821450.D0OC¥; wv.}13



Act (“FMLA”). These rights and responsibilities are posted on Town bulletin boards and
available through the Human Resources Department. If the employee has questions concerning
FMLA, he/she should contact the appropriate supervisor, manager, or Human Resources
Department.

The Town will comply with all of the terms of FMLA. These terms include but are not limited to
the following:

a. Pursuant to FMLA, employees may choose, or the employer (i.e. Town) may require the
employee to use, accrued paid leave to cover some or all of the FMLA leave taken. In
addition, employees may choose, or employers may require (unless it violates any
workers’ compensation law) the substitution of accrued paid vacation or accrued paid
personal leave for any of the situations covered by FMLA. Notwithstanding the above,
the employee has the right to retain 2 weeks of accrued paid vacation time.

b. To qualify for FMLA leave, employees requesting such leave must explain the reason for
the leave in writing or verbally to their department head so that the Town can determine
if FMLA-qualified leave will be granted.

C. The Town may require medical certification to document the reason for the leave, where
provided by law.
d. The Town will notify the employee in writing before the leave begins that the leave has

been designated as FMLA leave and will be deducted from the allowable maximum.
c. Duning the period of FMLA-qualified leave, the employee shall retain health benefits at
the same level as before the leave. The Town will continue to pay the premiums as

before the leave.

f. Employees, where authorized by law, may be required to provide a “fitness for duty”
certification upon return to work

Section 7.3: Unpaid Leave of Absence

The Human Resources Director, with advice of the department head, may grant a leave of
absence without pay for a period not to exceed one (1) year, provided such leave may not be
taken for the purpose of secking or performing other employment, and provided the employee
has previously exhausted all accumulated leave. Requests for such leave shall be made in
writing to the Human Resources Director and shall include a statement of the reasons for the
leave and proposed length of the leave.

a. During the period of leave without pay, except for military leave, the employee shall not
be credited for length of service, and shall not be credited with time for the purposes of
accruing sick leave, vacation leave, or Personal Days.

b. Except as provided for in 7.3.d.2 below, an employee shall be reinstated from unpaid
leave of absence to any position for which he/she qualified that is comparable to the
position the employee last held with the Town, but without any preferred status from
his/her prior employment.

{!01821450.DOCX; v.}14









age at which he or she becomes eligible for Medicare.

iv. The Town shall cease providing and/or paying for any and all health
insurance coverage when the retired employee reaches the age at which he
or she becomes eligible for Medicare.

9.2 Health Insurance Coverage for Retired Employees’ Spouses:

a.

The term spouse shall mean the retired employee’s husband or wife who shall
have been living with the employee as his or her husband or wife at the time of
the employee’s retirement.

For employees who retired between January 1, 1983 and December 31, 2010,
inclusive, the Town shall provide and pay for the insurance benefits as described
in Section 9.1 b for the retired employee’s spouse, under the following
circumstances:

i The retired employee must attain age 60 before his/her spouse will be
eligible for this coverage.

1i. If the retired employee remarries, the new spouse will not be cligible for
this coverage.

iil. In order for this coverage to be effective, the retired employee must pay to
the Town 50% of the monthly premium, as determined by the Town. This
premium shall be deducted from the retired employee’s monthly pension
check. If such deduction is not made continuously from his pension check
commencing with his 60™ birthday, all coverage to the spouse shall cease
and not be reinstated.

iv. When the retired employee’s spouse reaches the age at which he or she
becomes eligible for Medicare, the Town will pay 100% of the premium
for Parts A and B Supplemental coverage.

V. When the retired employee dies, all coverage to his/her spouse shall cease,
unless such spouse elects to continue this coverage by the deduction of
100% of the monthly premium, as determined by the Town, from his/her
pension check.

For employees who retire on or after January 1, 2010, the Town shall provide for
the insurance benefits as described in Section 9.1 b for the retired employee’s

spouse, under the following circumstances:

i. If the retired employee remarries, the new spouse will not be eligible for
this coverage.

ii.  Payment for such spousal benefits shall be subject to the following:

. Employees who retire at 55 years of age or under will pay 100% of

{!101821450.DOCX; wv.}17









13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

b.

Interpretation and application of the rules and regulations and policies of
the Police Department.

Matters relating to the interpretation and application of the articles and
sections of this Agreement.

The written grievance shall include:

1.

2.

3.

A statement of the grievance and facts involved.
The alleged violation of a specific provision of this Agreement.

The remedy requested.

Any employee may use this grievance procedure with or without Union assistance. No
grievance settlement made as a result of an individually processed grievance shall
contravene the provisions of this Agreement.

Step 1

Step 2

Step 3

Step 4

Any employee who has a grievance shall, within ten (10) calendar days of the
occurrence or event giving rise to the grievance, reduce the grievance to writing
and submit it to the Chief, or his designee. The Chief’s, or his designee’s,
decision shall be submitted in writing to the aggrieved employee and his
representative, if represented, within fourteen (14) calendar days of receiving
the grievance. If this does not resolve the problem, it may be processed to Step
2. At the option of the grievant, grievances involving discharge, suspension or
demotion following disposition by the Chief of Police, may be processed
beginning with Step 2.

If the grievance has not been settled, it shall be presented in writing to the
Human Resources Director within ten (10) calendar days after the decision of
the Chief of Police, or his designee, is received. If he so determines, the Human
Resources Director, or his designated representative, shall meet with the
interested parties no later than ten (10) calendar days after the receipt of the
grievance and, in any case, shall render his decision in writing within fifteen
(15) calendar days of the receipt of the grievance. If this decision does not
resolve the dispute, then the question may be processed to Step 3.

Upon mutual agreement, both parties may petition the State Board of Mediation
and Arbitration to appoint a mediator. This request must be made within ten
(10) calendar days of the transmittal of the written decision in Step 2. Should
mediation fail to resolve the question, then it may be processed to Step 4 within
ten (10) calendar days.

Either party may request the State Board of Mediation and Arbitration to
provide arbitration services within fifteen (15) calendar days following a

decision or recommendation at the preceding step.

The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on both parties.

{101821450.D0OCX; v.}20







received by the Town from a duly authorized officer of the Union.

13.8  In addition to those specified, the Union or the Town may at Step 3 and 4 of the
grievance procedure, have other representatives present during the presentation of
grievances, provided either party shall so advise the other a reasonable period in advance
of such hearing.

13.9 a.
13.9 b.
13.9 e
13.9 d.
13.10 a.
13.10 b.

Complaints Against Telecommunicators

Telecommunicators who are employed in the Police Department shall be entitled
to receive a copy of any citizen's complaint or internal complaint against such
Telecommunicator immediately upon conclusion of a preliminary inquiry by the
Chief of Police or his designee. Under normal circumstances, such preliminary
inquiry shall be concluded within thirty days from receipt of such complaint.

Rights of the Telecommunicator

If an investigation is commenced by Internal Affairs, such investigation shall
commence upon conclusion of the preliminary investigation and upon the signing
of an Internal Affairs complaint by the Chief of Police. Under normal
circumstances, the investigation by the Internal Affairs Division shall be
concluded within sixty (60) days from the signing of an Internal Affairs complaint
by the Chief. In extenuating circumstances, extensions of up to ninety (90) days
each shall be permitted for the completion of the Internal Affairs investigation,
with notice to a Union Steward.

Right to Union Representation

If the Telecommunicator so desires, a Union representative may be present during
any questioning which he/she reasonably believes may lead to disciplinary action
against such Telecommunicator,

Upon completion of any investigation a letter shall be sent to the bargaining unit
member notifying him/her that the investigation was completed, which rules, if
any, he/she is alleged to have violated, the date and time set for any administrative
hearing and enclosing a copy of all reports and other information obtained in any
investigation. The affected employee and the Union shall be notified in writing of
the outcome of the investigation within thirty (30) days of the hearing.

Internal Investigation Procedures

Whenever a Telecommunicator is under investigation for any reason which may
lead to disciplinary and/or criminal charges, such investigation shall be conducted
in the following manner:

Any questioning of the Telecommunicator shall be conducted at a reasonable
hour, unless the seriousness of the allegation, as determined by the Chief of
Police, warrants an immediate response, with payment in accordance with Article
IV.

Telecommunicators will never be subject to the "East Hartford, Connecticut
Police Department Rules and Regulations."

{!101821450.DOCX; wv.}22



13.10 c. No employee of the bargaining unit shall be disciplined for refusing to submit to a
polygraph test.

ARTICLE X1V - DISCIPLINE

140 a. The following types of disciplinary action may be invoked against employees.
They may be independently invoked.

L. Reprimand
An appointing authority shall report any verbal or written reprimand as a part of

the employee's service record by the forwarding of a written memorandum to the
Human Resources Director for inclusion in the employee's file. A copy of such
reprimand shall be forwarded to the employee and to a Union Steward. Such
reprimand shall remain a part of the employee's service record.

2. Suspension

An appointing authority may, for disciplinary purposes, suspend, without pay, any
employee under his control. Such suspension shall not exceed ten (10) working
days for any one offense. Suspensions totaling more than thirty (30) days in any
twelve (12) successive months shall be deemed a dismissal and be so treated.

3. Dismissal

An appointing authority may dismiss for cause any employee under his control
occupying a position subject hereto when he considers that the good of the service
shall be served thereby.

140 b. All suspensions and discharges must be given in writing with reasons stated and a
copy given to the employee and the Union at the time of the suspension or
discharge.

Depending on the offense, disciplinary action may include, but not be limited to,
verbal and/or written warnings, suspension, and discharge. Progressive discipline
shall be applied when appropriate. No employee shall be discharged or
suspended without just cause. Disciplinary action normally shall follow in this
order:

A. Verbal Warning
B. Written Warning
C. Suspension

D. Discharge

140 c. Employees shall not be discharged without just cause. The following shall be
sufficient causes for reprimand, suspension, or discharge though such action may
be for causes other than those enumerated:

1. Willful violation of the Provisions of the Charter.

2. Incompetence or inefficiency in the performance of the duties of the
position to which the employee has been appointed.

{101821450.D0OC¥; wv.}23



15.0

16.0

16.1

17.0

3. Wanton carelessness or negligence in the use and the care of Town
property.

4. Habitual tardiness or absence from duty which results in unsatisfactory
attendance. Unsatisfactory attendance is evident when the sum of days of
unscheduled absence is greater than 15 in a twelve-month period.
Potentially unsatisfactory attendance may be sufficient cause for a verbal
warning. Employees shall have the right to utilize the grievance procedure
pertaining to this Article.

5. Conviction of a felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude.

6. Intoxication on duty.

7. Conduct which reflects unfavorably upon the Town service.

8. Violation of any reasonable official order or failure to carry out any lawful

and reasonable directions made and given by a proper supervisor.

ARTICLE XV - CONVENTION LEAVE

Duly appointed Union members shall be entitled to leave with pay to conduct Unjon
business, such as Council meetings, Conventions, and training. The total amount of
Union business leave shall not exceed forty-eight (48) hours in any year. Leave may be
taken in increments of one (1) hour.

ARTICLE XVI - RIGHT TO REVIEW

Each employee shall have the right to see and review his or her personnel file upon
request by appointment with the Human Resources Director or his/her designee. The
Town shall provide copies of all materials in the file upon request of the employee.
Employees may request that the Town correct inaccurate or incorrect material. Failing
mutual agreement, the employee shall have the right to respond and it shall be made part
of the file. No separate active personnel file shall be maintained other than the one
subject to employee inspection.

Each employee will be given copies of any evaluation reports placed in the employee's
personnel file.

ARTICLE XVII - NON-DISCRIMINATION

The provisions of this Agreement shall be applied equally to all employees in the
bargaining unit without discrimination because of race, color, religion, gender, sexual
orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin, age, disability, genetic
information, marital status, veteran status, Union membership or other legally protected
category.

{101821450.DOCX; wv.}24



18.0

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

18.6

ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEQUS

a. Training
The Town agrees to abide by the State Laws governing the certification and re-
certification of Public-Safety Telecommunicators according to Connecticut
General Statutes 1n a timely manner.

b. Any Telecommunicator of the Police Department attending in-service training
school during his/her regularly scheduled working hours with the knowledge and
consent of the department head shall be granted time off from his/her regular
duties and be compensated at his/her regular rate. The Chief or his designee shall
make all in-service training assignments. The Town shall reimburse the
Telecommunicator for mileage associated with such training at the current LR.S.
rate.

C. Notices of job related training schools and in-service training which may be
available, shall be posted in the Department. The Chief or his designee shall
approve/disapprove all training and service assignments.

The Town agrees that past practices as defined by rulings of the Connecticut State Board
of Labor Relations (CSBLR), will be maintained unless changed by the terms of this
Agreement.

There shall be no alteration, variation, or amendment of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, unless made and agreed to in writing by both parties.

Access to Premises
The Union's representatives or authorized officers shall be permitted to confer with the
employees on the premises of the employer; however, conferences shall not interfere with
the normal operations of the department. The Union's representative will report to the
Watch Commander.

Court Time

Any employee of the bargaining unit required to testify in court as a witness for the Town
or in a civil action related to his’her employment with the Town, or appear at an
attorney's office for the purpose of trial preparation as a result of his/her employment
with the Town or appear as a witness in a criminal matter at the request of the State or
Federal prosecuting attorney as a result of his/her employment with the Town shall be
paid in accordance with Article I'V.

The Town shall reimburse any Telecommunicator for loss or damage of clothing and/or
personal property suffered in the performance of duty if due to negligence on the part of
the Town. Such claim for loss must be supported with reasonable proof of loss and of the
value of the clothing and/or property. Reimbursement shall not exceed $300.00.

All requests for any form of authorized leave, including but not limited to requests to use
accrued vacation leave, jury duty, earned days, military leave and compensatory time,
must be submitted not later than sixteen (16) hours prior to the starting time of the work
shift to which the request applies. This shall not apply for the requesting of emergency

{101821450.D0CX; v.}25



18.7

18.8

18.9

sick leave, family sick leave or funeral leave. When reasonably possible, notification of
an absence due to illness or injury must be submitted not later than twelve (12) hours
prior to the starting time of the work shift to which the request applies. If an employee’s
absence due to illness or injury will not result in additional overtime to the
Telecommunicators operation, the twelve (12) hour notice will not be required.

No more than two (2) members of any shift may be absent on the same day due to the use
of accrued leave other than sick leave, jury duty, funeral leave, or military leave.

Each employee shall be eligible for tuition reimbursement of up to $300.00 per semester
or quarter not to exceed $600.00 per contract year after successful completion of graduate
or undergraduate courses or programs at a recognized college or university directly
related to the position the employee holds with the Town. Reimbursement will be made
upon the employee providing evidence of satisfactory completion of the approved course
and a receipt for the tuition paid. Any employee who has been compensated under this
Section and who does not remain an employee for a minimum of two (2) years after
receiving such compensation will reimburse the Town for any or all monies paid to the
employee under this Section during the preceding two (2) years.

Employees who are certified as Communications Training Operators (CTO) shall be paid
an hourly differential of thirty percent (30%) of their hourly base rate for each hour or
portion of an hour that they spend in direct training of a TOPS trainee.

To qualify for the differential, the CTO must:

b. Be currently certified as a CTO by the Association of Public Safety
Communications Officials;

c. Be assigned on a daily basis by the Police Chief or his/her designee to
work directly with a trainee as a CTO;

d. Document the time spent providing training as a CTO and submit the
documentation as required by the Department;

€. Demonstrate continuing effectiveness in training as judged by Department
management;

The time spent by employees acquiring or maintaining the CTO certification will not be
subject to payment of the differential.

Reasonable time spent by the CTO in completion of required documentation regarding a
trainee’s progress will be subject to payment of the differential.

A CTO will be assigned to trainces one-on-one. CTO assignments will be made first on a
voluntary basis. In the absence of volunteers, a CTO will be assigned to a traince by
Department management. When more than one person volunteers for an assignment, the
CTOs will be alternated throughout the trainee’s training period.

The Chief or his/her designee shall have the authority to cancel this program based on the
{101821450.DOCX; v.}26






IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their names to be signed on this

FOR THE FOR
TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD TEAMSTERS LOCAL #JJli}
Mayor Marcia A. Leclerc Eric Downer, Teamsters
Staff Representative
Santiago Malave, HR Director For the Union
Police Chief Scott Sansom For the Union

Sandra L. Franklin

{!101821450.DOCX; v.}28




APPENDIX A —- TEAMSTERS LOCAL #Jlf AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYROLL
DEDUCTION

Deint) | 2ma Eiyect 1
{Printy TSehyt Ovae TSt YT

Emnlavea
‘_lﬂlltllvj LA ]

3 L ) e g

Qtenat A A
L= LT

{101821450.D0CX; v.}29







APPENDIX B — SHIFT ROTATION SCHEDULE

Shift rotation periods shall begin on the first Sunday after January 1% and the first Sunday after
July 4™ in each calendar year. The bidding period shall begin ninety (90) days prior to each
shift rotation period and shall be completed within sixty (60) days.

{101821450.D0CX; wv.}31






APPENDIX D - MEDICAL CERTIFICATE FORM

A medical certificate submitted in accordance with Article VII, Section 2 shall be on the
following form or shall contain substantially equivalent information.

HEALTH CARE PROVIDER NAME:

ADDRESS
TELEPHONE #
TO: Human Resources Director, Town of East Hartford
Asa duly licensed by the State of ,
(Physician, APRN, PA)
I hereby certify that who was seen by me on
(name of employee)
was unable to work during the continuous period
(date)
from to . He/she was under my care on or
(date) (date)
after

(date)

I also certify that said employee can return to duty with no restrictions on

(date)

Signature of Health Care Provider

Date of signature

{101821450.D0CX; v.}33









Trustees shall reasonably require; and the Trustees shall have the authority to have an audit of
the payroll and related wage records of the Town for all employees performing work within the
scope of and/or covered by this collective bargaining agreement for the purpose of determining
the accuracy of contributions to the Fund and adherence to the requirements of this section of the
collective bargaining agreement regarding coverage and contributions, such audit may, at the
option of the Trustees, be conducted by an independent certified public accountant or a certified
public accountant employed by the Fund.

If the Town shall fail to make contributions to the Health Fund by the twentieth (20%) day of the
month following the month during which the employees performed work or received pay or were
due pay within the scope of this collective bargaining agreement, up to and including the last
completed payroll period in the month for which contributions must be paid, or if the Town,
having been notified that its contributions to the Fund have been under-reported and/or
underpaid, fails within twenty (20) days after such notification to make any required self-audit
and or/contributions found to be due, the Local Union shall have the right after an appropriate
72-hour notice to the Town, to take whatever steps it deems necessary to secure compliance with
this agreement, any provisions of this collective bargaining agreement to the contrary
notwithstanding, and the Town shall be responsible to the employees for losses resulting
therefrom. Also, the Town shall be liable to the Trustees for all costs of collecting the payments
due together with attorney’s fees and such interest, liquidated damages or penalties which the
Trustees may assess or establish in their discretion. The Town’s liability for payment hereunder
shall not be subject to the grievance procedure and/or arbitration if such is provided in this
Agreement.

It is understood and agreed that once a payment or payments are referred to an attorney for
collection by the Trustees of the Health Fund and/or the Local Union, the Local Union and its
business agent or chief executive officer shall have no right to modify, reduce or forgive the
Town with respect to its liability for unpaid contributions, interest, liquidated damages or penalty
as may be established or assessed by the Trustees in their discretion against delinquent
Employers.

No oral or written modification of this section regarding the Health Fund shall be made by the
Local Union or the Town, and if made, such modification shall not be binding upon the
employees performing work within the scope of this collective bargaining agreement and
covered by this section or upon the Trustees of the Health Fund.

{101821450.DOCX; v.}36




APPENDIX F - AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYROLL DEDUCTION

AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYROLL DEDUCTION
PREPAID VACATION

To Be Filled Out By Employee

Employee’s Name:

(Please print full name)

Employee TOWN ID # Last 4 digits of SS #

I hereby authorize the Town of East Hartford to deduct from my earnings a
sufficient amount to providefor: 1 2 3 4 5 days prepaid vacation
effective January 1, 20 .

By signing below, I understand and agree to the following:

) I may only purchase up to five (5) days of additional vacation.

. The enrollment period shall be during business days from November 15th to December
15" of each calendar year.

] Up to 5 days worth of vacation shall be computed and deducted from my payroll in equal
installments over a 52-week period. Deductions will commence on January 1%,

. I will first exhaust all prepaid vacation before using any regular vacation for the current
calendar year.

) I will use all prepaid vacation within the current calendar year and will not carry over any
prepaid vacation into the following calendar year.

. Prepaid vacation will have no impact on my pension calculations.

° I understand my decision is irrevocable. However, in the event of untimely separation

from the Town of East Hartford, I will receive payment for any unused prepaid vacation
or I will reimburse the Town for any used vacation that was not prepaid.

L I must complete one year of service with the Town of East Hartford to become eligible
for this program.

] [ understand that all other applicable language in my respective Collective Bargaining
Agreement still applies.

. I understand that this authorized deduction applies only for the calendar year referenced

above and is not automatically renewed.

SIGNATURE: Date: ,
(Employee)

Return no later than Dec, 15 to: Office Use Only

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT
EAST HARTFORD TOWN HALL

740 MAIN ST.

EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108

{!101821450.D0CX; v.}37







AGREEMENT

OF THE PARTIES FOR A

WORKING AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
THE TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD
AND
TEAMSTERS LOCAL #671

(Telecommunicators)

JULY 1, 2019 — JUNE 30, 2022



Table of Contents

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION ...ttt seses e eeer e et seeneas s s s ssenseseeesasanenn, 3
ARTICLE II - UNION SECURITY ..rutuieiiticiiniietetees et sie sttt ste et es s e e sesanesne e 3
ARTICLE I - SENIORITY/LAYOFF/VACANCIES ......oooiitimeieteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e srasns 4
ARTICLE IV - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME ........c.oivitieteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesee e ees e 6
ARTICLE V - HOLIDAY S ...t sa s snacs s sse s e s ene e anesnes e nenns 9
ARTICLE VI - VACATIONS ... ooitiieeieeitneceeieses et st sebee st es e aeeestsesessenstsseneesssesassnns 9
ARTICLE VII - LEAVE PROVISIONS ..ottt ettt see e es e s e 10
ARTICLE VIII - WAGES AND BENEFITS .......oooiuiiieiecieeieieeeeseeeeeeseeses s e s senen oo 14
ARTICLE IX - INSURANCE AND PENSION .....coiiitiiiicaitecoeeieeseeseeeses e see e e es e 15
ARTICLE X - SAFETY AND HEALTH ..ottt e 17
ARTICLE XI - SAVINGS CLAUSE .....ccrmitiirite ettt sen s e e s 18
ARTICLE XII - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS ..ottt eteeeeeeeee s eeren e sevn s 18
ARTICLE XIII - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ......cooooiioiieeeiiceeeeeeeeee e eseee e e 18
ARTICLE XIV = DISCIPLINE .....c.ccvcimttimrrrmaanssneseseseessssse s eees s es s seene s seseseseesesessesssssanans 22
ARTICLE XV - CONVENTION LEAVE .....ccitiuiteteiieeeceea oot ee e esee e e er e, 23
ARTICLE XVI - RIGHT TO REVIEW ...c.coiiiiiiteie ettt se e s n s 23
ARTICLE XVII - NON-DISCRIMINATION .....ooioitiiiiis i eeiteeeeeseeseeeeeseesseseess s 23
ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEQUS ....c.ccootiiiiniietriieemstereee et seem e eeee e s ens e s oo 24
ARTICLE XIX - DURATION ..ottt ettt s vreee st aseseeseeese st eseeesessesesanes oo 26
APPENDIX A — TEAMSTERS LOCAL #671 AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYROLL

DEDUCTION ..ottt ettt nas et et s st s en et st ee e renen e e e e e snns s e 28
APPENDIX B — SHIFT ROTATION SCHEDULE .......coovieeieieseeeeee e s s s 30
APPENDIX C - WAGE SCHEDULE .....c.ccoiiiitttiiieietee ettt ottt es s ena e 31
APPENDIX D - MEDICAL CERTIFICATE FORM .......coocitiiiironecoeecoeeee oo 32
APPENDIX E - HEALTH INSURANCE ...ttt re e s enaeas 33
APPENDIX E - HEALTH AND WELFARE FUND ........coviriitieiceeeteseceeteeeese e e s eesns e e 34
APPENDIX F — AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYROLL DEDUCTION ......cocveeveoeesereerenns 36
APPENDIX G - MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT ......coocovoivieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeevee e eseresesenes s 37

2



WORKING AGREEMENT
Between
THE TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD
And
TEAMSTERS LOCAL #671

This agreement is entered into by and between the Town of East Hartford, hereinafter referred to
as the "Town" and the Teamsters Local #671, hereinafter referred to as the "Union."

1.0

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION

The Town recognizes the Teamsters Local #671, as the sole and exclusive bargaining
agent for the purpose of collective bargaining on matters of wages, hours of employment,
other conditions of employment and all other benefits derived through contractual
negotiations for all Telecommunications Operator, Public Safety, (hereinafier referred to
as employees) excluding: supervisors, professionals, uniformed and investigatory
employees of the Police and Fire Departments, and excluding all others excluded by the
Municipal Employee Relations Act (MERA).

ARTICLE II - UNION SECURITY

The Town agrees to deduct monthly Union dues on a weekly basis upon receiving a
union authorization form (appendix A) in whatever sum is established by the Union as
the regular monthly dues required by the local union’s by-laws. If, for any reason, a
deduction was not made on the payday in which Union dues are to be deducted, a
sufficient amount will be deducted in the first pay period in which the employee has
sufficient funds due him or her to bring the membership dues up-to-date. The Union
provided authorization form is attached hereto as Appendix A and made a part of this
Agreement.

The referenced amounts so deducted provided in 2.0 shall be remitted/mailed to the
Union on or before the 7 calendar day of the month following the month for which the
deductions were made.

The Town's obligation to make such deduction shall terminate automatically upon
termination of the employee who signed the authorization or upon his transfer to a job not
covered by this Agreement.

Employees may elect to opt out of union member status upon a written and notarized
letter, submitted to the Town’s Human Resources Director, stating their intentions to opt
out of member and revoke pay roll deduction.

During the term of this Agreement, the Town shall furnish the Union with an up-to-date
list of employees. When a new employee is hired, the Town shall notify the Union and
furnish the Union with the name, date of employment, classification and rate of pay of
the new employee. When the employment of an employee terminates, the Town shall

3



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.0

3.1

notify the Union and furnish the name and date of termination of the employee.

The Union steward will be provided up to 20 minutes on the clock, provided the
orientation/training occurs during his/her normal working schedule. Attendance by the
steward shall not cause a disruption of operations and the town shall not claim such
disruption in a constructive manner to deny the steward the ability to attend such
meeting.

The Town agrees that there will be no lockout of any employee or employees during the
life of this Agreement. The Union agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will
not authorize any strike.

At least one (1) bulletin board shall be reserved at an accessible place for the exclusive
use of the Union for posting of official Union notices or announcements within the Police
Communications Room.

The Union agrees that it will indemnify and save the Town harmless from any and all
liability, claim, responsibility, damage, or suit which may arise out of any action taken by
the Town in accordance with the terms of the dues check-off provisions of this Article, or
in reliance upon the authorization described herein, in an amount not to exceed the sum
received by the Union on account of the deductions made from eamings of such
employee or employees.

The Town will provide each member of the Union with a copy of this Agreement within
thirty (30) days after the signing of this Agreement. A copy of the Personnel Rules and
Regulations and Merit System will be made available to each employee upon request
with no charge.

ARTICLE III - SENIORITY/LAYOFF/VACANCIES

The Town shall prepare a list of full-time telecommunicators showing their length of
service with the Town and deliver same to the Union on or before December 1st of each
year. Upon completion of their probationary period, new employees shall be added to
this list.

a. Seniority shall commence upon the date that the employee begins employment as
a Public Safety Telecommunicator in the bargaining unit. The employee's earned
seniority shall not be lost because of absence due to illness, pregnancy, maternity
leave, bereavement, jury duty, personal leave, or authorized leaves or while
cligible for recall. Seniority and seniority rights will not be accrued during unpaid
leaves of absence or layoff, but previously accrued seniority rights will not be lost
by the employee because of such leave or layoff. When more than one employee
is appointed on the same date, seniority shall be determined by their relative
positions on the eligibility list, or alphabetically by last name (as of employment
date) in the absence of a current eligibility list.

b. New telecommunicators shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months after
completing the training period but no less than one (1) year, and shall have no
seniority rights during this period, but shall be subject to all other provisions of

4



34

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

this Agreement. The Town may extend such probationary period for up to a
maximum of six (6) additional months. The dismissal of a probationary employee
during probationary period shall not be subject to the grievance procedures. All
employees who have completed their probationary period shall be full-time
employees and shall acquire seniority as of date of their employment.
Probationary employees may be evaluated once each month by their department
head or their designee.

c. Employees who are promoted shall serve a trial period of three (3) months, which
may be extended by an additional three (3) months by the Chief. Management
shall return an employee to the former pay grade or position if the employee fails
to successfully complete the trial period. Employees may be evaluated once each
month during trial period. Reduction in grade shall be only for just cause.

When a new position or assignment is created within the bargaining unit, the employee
with the highest bargaining unit seniority shall be given first opportunity to fill the
position, provided he or she has qualified and has demonstrated the capacity to perform
the duties of the position or assignment. If he or she refuses, it shall go to the next senior
person who has qualified.

The person appointed to the vacancy or new position and a Union Steward shall be
notified, in writing, of the appointment. Notification shall be made not later than forty-
five (45) calendar days after the initial posting.

If no employees in the bargaining unit are qualified, the position may be filled through
recruitment of applicants from outside the bargaining unit.

Layoffs are permitted when an appointing authority, with the approval of the Mayor,
deems it necessary by reason of lack of work or funds, the abolition of the position,
material change in the duties or organization which are outside the employee's control
and which do not reflect discredit of the service of the employee. Positions in this
bargaining unit may be abolished upon recommendation of the Mayor and approval of
the Town Council.

a. In the event of a layoff, the employee shall be given at least two (2) weeks' notice
in writing, and the layoffs shall take effect as follows:

1. Temporary and Seasonal Employees
2. Part-Time Employees
3. Probationary Employees

In the event of further layoffs, they shall occur in reverse seniority within the
bargaining unit. (Example: The least senior person in his/her classification
within the bargaining unit shall be laid off first etc.)

b. Employees who are laid off shall have recall rights for a period of twenty-four
(24) months from the date of layoff and only to the classification from which the
employee was laid off. The last employee in the classification laid off shall be the
first employee recalled to that classification. Employees shall have two (2) weeks

5



3.9

3.10

3.11

4.0

4.1

from the date the Town sends a notice of recall by certified mail to the employee
at their last known address to return to the job, unless there are extenuating
circumstances.

During the period of layoff the employee shall have the right to receive any
insurance benefits listed under Article IX of this labor agreement, subject to the
provisions of COBRA, as amended.

Laid off employees with the most seniority, in the reverse order provided in Section 3.9
of this Article, shall be rehired first and no new employee, full or part-time, shall be hired
until all laid off employees have been given an opportunity to return to work.

An employee shall lose his seniority rights under any of the following circumstances:

a.

b.

Resignation.
Discharge for just cause.
Failure to report to work within two (2) weeks after due notice by the Town to the

employee's last known address to return to work after layoff, provided the
employee makes known his desire, in writing, to return within five (5) days.

For all purposes, except layoff, the seniority rights of the Stewards shall be exactly the
same as the seniority rights of all other employees. In the event of a layoff, the Stewards
will have super seniority during their term of office.

ARTICLE 1V - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

Telecommunicators shall work a schedule of five (5) consecutive days on duty
followed by two (2) consecutive days off duty, with the exception of agreed shift
changes.

The work day shall be eight (8) hours, with one-half () hour paid meal break.
The meal break may be combined with one fifteen (15) minute break per Section
10.1. The meal break shall not be taken during either the first or last hour of the
employee’s shift.

Hiring of overtime shifts shall be fairly distributed within the Bargaining Unit to
all qualified members. Hiring of overtime shifts will be distributed equally with
an agreed upon method of hiring between the Bargaining Unit members and the
Department Head.

Overtime work, when required, will be offered to qualified full-time employees
within the bargaining unit only.

When overtime is required to fill a vacant shift or fill other demands of public
service, all eligible employees shall first be polled for voluntary acceptance of the
opening. If no volunteers are found, the vacant shift shall be split into two (2)
four-hour segments. The on-duty Telecommunicator with the least number of

6



4.2

total overtime hours during the calendar year shall be required to extend his/her
shift by four hours to fill the first portion of the vacant shift. The second portion
of the vacant shift shall be filled by the employee scheduled for the succeeding
shift who has the least number of total overtime hours during the calendar year.
In the event that employee cannot be contacted, the next scheduled employee on
the successor shift with the least number of total overtime hours shall be called,
until the position is filled. Seniority, from least to most, shall be used to
determine eligibility in the event of equality of total overtime hours.

Employees may voluntarily work sixteen (16) consecutive hours in conjunction
with a mandatory eight (8) hour rest period, however, no employee shall be
ordered to work in excess of twelve (12) consecutive hours except that if no
employee from the successor shift can be contacted, the employee from the
preceding shift may be required to work the full shift. In no case shall an
employee be required to work more than sixteen (16) consecutive hours.

If an employee has worked twenty-four (24) hours of voluntary or involuntary
overtime in five (5) consecutive calendar days, he/she will not be eligible to be

ordered in for involuntary overtime in the five (5) day work period.

Telecommunicators shifts are as follows:

A Squad 23:30 hours to 07:30 hours
B Squad 07:30 hours to 15:30 hours
C Squad 15:30 hours to 23:30 hours

SEE APPENDIX B FOR ROTATION OF THIS SCHEDULE

Employees shall be paid an hourly differential of ten percent (10%) of their
hourly base rate for each hour that they work on third shift. The third shift
differential shall apply to all hours paid or worked, including temporary
assignments to third shift.

Overtime at the rate of one and one-half (1.5) times the regular hourly rate shall
be paid for each quarter hour or more worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day
or in excess of forty (40) hours per week. Overtime will be paid at double time
rate when it is performed on the holidays listed below,

Contractual Holidays:

New Year's Day January 1st

Martin Luther King Birthday Federal Observance
Lincoln's Birthday Federal Observance
Washington's Birthday Federal Observance

Good Friday Federal Observance
Memorial Day Last Monday in May
Independence Day July 4th

Labor Day Federal Observance
Columbus Day Second Monday of October
Veteran's Day Federal Observance
Thanksgiving Day 4th Thursday in November



43

4.4

4.5

4.6

Christmas Day December 25th

c. For the purposes of pay computation, the pay period begins on Sunday and ends
the following Saturday.

d. The Town shall have the right to require overtime work consistent with the needs
of public safety and service. When conditions require the prompt and urgent
mobilization of public safety employees to respond to emergencies (including but
not limited to fires, floods, natural disasters, strikes and demonstrations), the
Chief of Police shall have the right to order a full or partial mobilization of
Telecommunicators without regard to any method of equalization of employee
overtime or any overtime rotational hiring scheme or method.

Until a probationary employee has completed required training and has been certified by
the Chief to work independently, the employee shall not be eligible for overtime shifts,
nor subject to ordering in,

Compensatory time shall not accumulate to more than twelve (12) working days, or
ninety-six hours. Compensatory time off will be taken at the mutual convenience of the
employee and the department head, as far as practical. In the case of conflict, the
department head taking into account seniority will have the final authority, subject to the
provisions of the Grievance Procedure.

Compensatory time may be accrued at the employee's discretion at the rate of one and
one-half (1-1/2) hours for each hour of overtime worked subject to the following rules:

1. Maximum accrual twelve (12) days (96 hours)

2. Any employee who reaches the maximum of 96 hours will thereafter be paid
overtime for any work in excess of 8 hours per day or 40 hours per week for as
long as he/she has 96 hours compensatory time accrued.

3. No employee's accrual will be allowed to exceed the 96 hour limit.

Any employee called in to work outside the regular schedule shall be guaranteed a
minimum of four (4) hours work, or pay for actual time worked if by mutual agreement.

Shift Swaps will be admimstered according to the following procedures:

a. All exchanges must be requested in advance in writing and be approved or
disapproved by the Chief or his/her designee.

b. Once a swap has been approved, the responsibility for the shift rests with the
employee now scheduled to work. If the employee(s) becomes ill and cannot
work, he/she shall be charged with the sick time deduction and the shift will be
processed as any other open shift. Any and all types of approved time off will be
deducted from the employee taking responsibility for the shift.



5.0

5.1

6.0

6.2

ARTICLE V - HOLIDAYS

Bargaining unit members will receive a lump sum equivalent to seven percent (7%) of
their base salary as holiday compensation. This lump sum payment will be based upon
the rates of pay effective on December 1 and shall not become part of base pay.

The seven percent (7%) lump sum holiday compensation will be paid annually in the first
pay period in December.

The seven (7%) percent lump sum holiday compensation shall be prorated on a monthly
basis for bargaining unit members who are hired or who voluntarily separate from
employment during the course of the year, regardless of the specific date on which such
hiring or voluntary separation occurs. For example, if an employee works 6 of the 12
contractual holidays he/she would be compensated 6/12™ (i.e., '4) of the lump sum
holiday compensation. For purposes of this Section, termination during an employee’s
probationary period shall not constitute involuntary separation barring the employee from
receiving the prorated holiday compensation.

Any unanticipated holiday or day of mourning declared by the Mayor and celebrated by
all other Town employees, other than Board of Education employees, in the form of time
off with pay, shall be granted to the members of this bargaining unit by payment of an
additional day’s pay.

ARTICLE VI - VACATIONS

a. All full-time employees shall be entitled to vacation leave with pay, however,
vacation time shall not be granted to any new employee with less than six (6)
months of service with the Town. Upon appointment, new employees will accrue
vacation time at .83 days per month of service. Any unused vacation time accrued
prior to the first January I* will be posted as the employee’s annual accrual on the
first January 1% following appointment. Following the first January 1%, employees
will no longer accrue vacation time monthly and shall accrue vacation time as
outlined below. Upon reaching January 1% following one full year of service,
employees shall accrue vacation time on January 1 in the following manner:

Number of Full Years of Number of
Service to be Completed Vacation
Within the Calendar Year Days
Following 1 Full Year to 4 years 10

5 through 9 years 15
10 through 14 years 20
15 years 21
16 years 22
17 years 23

18 years 24

19 or more years 25

Requested vacation periods will be granted by the Deputy Chief or his/her designee with
9



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

due consideration to both the wishes of the employee and the public safety and public
service needs of the Department.

Vacation requests submitted prior to March 1st of each year shall be processed in the
following manner:

Priority will be given to vacation requests which exceed four (4) work days. Priority will
then be given to seniority (i.e., in order to exercise seniority, a senior employee must
request more than four days if the same days have been requested by a junior employee
requesting more than four days). In all other cases, seniority shall prevail. A master
calendar indicating approved vacations shall be posted no later than March 15" of each
year. Vacation requests submitted on or after March 1 shall be processed on the basis of
(1) date of submission, (2) duration (3) seniority.

When an employee has no sick leave available, he/she may elect to use vacation leave as
sick leave.

When an employee is separated from Town service, he/she shall be paid his/her pro-rata
accumulated vacation leave and compensatory time to a maximum of forty (40) vacation
days and ten (10) compensatory days. In the event of an employee's death, such payment
shall be made to his/her dependent survivor or estate if there is no dependent survivor.
Such payment will be made within two (2) weeks of the date of the employee's death, in a
lump sum, provided it does not cross the fiscal year. In the event that it does cross the
fiscal year, payment will be made in two (2) installments.

The maximum accumulation of vacation leave permitted is fifty (50) days; however, no
vacation beyond forty (40) days will be paid by the Town at retirement or separation. No
vacation leave may be used during the sixty (60) days prior to retirement.

Once vacation leave is granted, such leave shall not be canceled unless there exists a
demonstrated need resulting from an actual or imminent public safety emergency.

In the event of illness of a minimum of two days during an employee's vacation period,
the employee shall be given the option of charging the sick days to his/her sick time
provided a doctor's note is given to the department head.

Employees shall have the opportunity to purchase, via weekly payroll deductions, up to
five (5) additional vacation days per calendar year. The Authorization for Payroll
Deduction Form (Appendix F) for the Prepaid Vacation Program must be received in
Human Resources, Town Hall, no later than 4:30 p.m. on December 15% of each year to
be eligible for Prepaid Vacation for the coming calendar year.

ARTICLE VII - LEAVE PROVISIONS

Section 7.0: Sick Leave:

All employees shall earn paid sick leave at the rate of 1-1/4 days per month with no maximum on
accumulation. Sick leave with pay may only be used for the employee’s recovery from personal
illness or injury, or to permit the employee’s absence for a reasonable period to make

10



arrangements to care for a member of the immediate family.

a.

Accrual of earned sick leave credits will continue while employees are absent from work
due to vacation, injury, or illness, except for unpaid leave.

In exceptional cases, the Human Resources Director, with the advice of the department
head, may grant additional sick leave with pay. Requests for such additional sick leave
shall be in writing and signed by the employee, when possible.

Sick leave with pay will not be granted for recuperation from illness or injury which is
directly traceable to employment by another employer.

‘Two accrued sick days may be taken as sick/personal days at a minimum of one-quarter
(1/4) day segments for personal business or appointments that must be conducted during
working hours. Use of this time will not interrupt the earning of Earned Days (see 7.0g
below).

It shall be the responsibility of the employee to notify the department or division head in
advance of sick leave usage, if possible, and in any event not later than one hour prior to
the commencement of the shift. If the absence exceeds five (35) working days, or when an
employee’s attendance shows frequent or habitual absence because of claimed sickness,
the employee shall provide the department head with a doctor’s certificate on the
approved form (Appendix D) within three (3) working days unless there are extenuating
circumstances that prevent the doctor, APRN or Physician’s Assistant from providing
such certificate within that time period.

It shall be the responsibility of the department head to maintain accurate up-to-date leave
records for his/her employees. Once every calendar year in the month of January, the
department head shall notify all employees of the amount of vacation and sick leave to
their credit.

For every calendar quarter of perfect attendance, an employee shall earn one (1) Earned
Day. Maximum accrual of earned days shall be eight (8) days. A continuous absence
commencing in one (1) calendar quarter and continuing into another quarter will break
the perfect attendance for the initial quarter only. Perfect attendance, for the purpose of
this article, shall mean no time taken for tardiness, sick leave, unauthorized leave,
authorized leave without pay, or disciplinary suspension. Earned Days shall be used at
times mutually agreeable to the employee and department head. Requests for Earned
Day usage shall not be unreasonably denied. The Town will not provide payment to any
employee who wishes to cash in unused camed days upon retirement or
voluntary/involuntary termination.

If an employee has unused sick leave at the time of his/her retirement, he/she shall be
paid in a lump sum for each day of unused sick leave up to 2 maximum of ninety (90)
days.

Section 7.1: Special Leave With Pay:

a.

Personal Leave: Employees shall be entitled to three (3) days personal leave each

11




calendar year to be used at the mutual agreement of the employee and the department
head taking into account the staffing needs of the department. Personal leave days
requested less than sixteen (16) hours in advance may be granted at the discretion of the
Department Head. Personal leave will be approved in the following manner: (1) date of
submission, (2) duration, (3) seniority. In the case of conflict, the Department Head
taking into account seniority will have the final authority; subject to the provisions of the
Grievance Procedure. These days are non-accumulative from calendar year to calendar
year. However, should operating needs require the Department Head to deny usage of
any of the three (3) personal leave days, such day(s) shall be carried over and utilized
within the first thirty-one (31) days of the following calendar year. Unused carryover
personal leave balance as of February 1 will be paid to the employee.

Workers’ Compensation: The Town will comply with all applicable state legislation
relating to Workers” Compensation.

Whenever an employee shall be absent because of a Town service connected injury or
occupational disease he/she will be compensated under the provisions of the Workers’
Compensation Act. Such absence will not be charged against accrued sick leave. In
addition to payments received under the Workers’ Compensation Act, any employee with
six (6) months of continuous service shall receive a supplemental payment from the
Town, equal to the difference between his take-home pay (gross pay less deduction for
pension, income tax and FICA) and the payments received under the Workers’
Compensation Act for up to one year or maximum improvement, whichever comes first.

Current employees as of the ratification of this agreement shall continue to be eligible for
the supplemental payments described above for up to two (2) years in accordance with
the terms of the 2010-2013 agreement.

In those cases wherein the disabled employce receives damages or awards through
litigation or settlement against third parties, he/she will reimburse the Town for monies
received during such absence,

The Corporation Counsel is authorized by the Town to negotiate anything less than the
full amount of such reimbursement, subject to approval by the Town Council.

Employees shall report all on-the-job illnesses and injuries, in accordance with Workers’
Compensation Laws. The Town shall post prominently a notice designating the authority
to which employees shall report illness and injuries.

Jury Duty: The Town agrees to comply with Connecticut General Statutes, as amended
from time to time, to determine compensation for employees required to report for jury
duty.

Funeral Leave: Three (3) days of special leave with full pay, between the date of death
and the date of the funeral inclusive, shall be granted for death in the employee’s
immediate family. Immediate family, for purposes of this section, is defined as parents,
step-parents, grandparents, spouse, brother, step-brother, sister, step-sister, child, step-
child, grandchild, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, mother-in-
law, father-in-law, and any other relative that is domiciled in the employee’s household.

12



Military Leave: Employees shall be granted leave with full pay at current base rate for
the purpose of attending training camps for Reservists or National Guard members
provided:

o Military pay and wages paid by the Town together do not exceed the employee’s
regular wages, and the Town shall be reimbursed for any overpayment.

o Such summer training periods do not exceed two weeks.

Education Leave: Employces may be granted leave with pay to permit participation in
education or training courses which enhance the employee’s value to the Town. An
advance request for the above leave must be in writing and must have approval of the
department head and the Mayor.

Section 7.2: Family Medical Leave:

Employees have certain rights and responsibilities under the Federal Family and Medical Leave
Act (“FMLA”). These rights and responsibilities are posted on Town bulletin boards and
available through the Human Resources Department. If the employee has questions concerning
FMLA, he/she should contact the appropriate supervisor, manager, or Human Resources
Department.

The Town will comply with all of the terms of FMLA. These terms include but are not limited to
the following:

a.

Pursuant to FMLA, employees may choose, or the employer (i.e. Town) may require the
employee to use, accrued paid leave to cover some or all of the FMLA leave taken. In
addition, employees may choose, or employers may require (unless it violates any
workers’ compensation law) the substitution of accrued paid vacation or accrued paid
personal leave for any of the situations covered by FMLA. Notwithstanding the above,
the employee has the right to retain 2 weeks of accrued paid vacation time.

To qualify for FMLA leave, employees requesting such leave must explain the reason for
the leave in writing or verbally to their department head so that the Town can determine
if FMLA-qualified leave will be granted.

The Town may require medical certification to document the reason for the leave, where
provided by law.

The Town will notify the employee in writing before the leave begins that the leave has
been designated as FMLA leave and will be deducted from the allowable maximum.

During the period of FMLA-qualified leave, the employee shall retain health benefits at
the same level as before the leave. The Town will continue to pay the premiums as
before the leave.

Employees, where authorized by law, may be required to provide a “fitness for duty”
certification upon return to work

13



Section 7.3: Unpaid Leave of Absence

The Human Resources Director, with advice of the department head, may grant a leave of
absence without pay for a period not to exceed one (1) year, provided such leave may not be
taken for the purpose of secking or performing other employment, and provided the employee
has previously exhausted all accumulated leave. Requests for such leave shall be made in
writing to the Human Resources Director and shall include a statement of the reasons for the
leave and proposed length of the leave.

a.

8.0

During the period of leave without pay, except for military leave, the employee shall not
be credited for length of service, and shall not be credited with time for the purposes of
accruing sick leave, vacation leave, or Personal Days.

Except as provided for in 7.3.d.2 below, an employee shall be reinstated from unpaid
leave of absence to any position for which he/she qualified that is comparable to the
position the employee last held with the Town, but without any preferred status from
his/her prior employment.

Any employee who is on an unpaid leave of absence shall not be paid for any holidays or
sick leave during the period of absence. Authorized unpaid leaves of absence for one (1)
month or less will not be used as a basis for reducing employee benefits or seniority.

The Town will comply with the terms of Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act.

1. No employee shall lose any seniority standing because of any military service
including service in the National Guard or organized Reserves.

2. Upon returning from extended active military service, an employee shall be
reinstated to his former job, or one of like rank, and shall receive credit for the
yearly increments awarded, if any, during his/her absence for military service,
provided that he/she reports for work within ninety (90) days of his discharge
from military service. The Human Resources Director will so notify, in writing,
all employees entering extended active duty in the military service.

3. The Town will give credit to the employee for time spent in military service for
retirement purposes.

4. The employee’s accumulation of sick leave upon leaving for extended active duty
in the military service shall be retained to his/her credit when he/she returns.

ARTICLE VIII - WAGES AND BENEFITS

The compensation plan shall be made a part of this Agreement and attached hereto as
Appendix C.

Wages: Retroactive to 7/1/19 2.0%
Effective 7/1/20 2.0%

14



8.1

3.2

8.3

8.4

9.0

9.1

Effective 7/1/21 1.25%

Employees shall advance one step as follows on their anniversary date;

Step 1 Hire
Step 2 1 year
Step 3 2 years
Step 4 3 years
Step 5 4 years

Employees required to use a privately-owned automobile for the conduct of Town
business shall be reimbursed, once a month, for all mileage driven at the published LR.S.
rate.

No employee will be paid more than the maximum, nor less than the minimum listed for
his/her position grade.

All employees shall be paid by direct deposit and shall receive paperless paycheck stubs
by electronic mail.

ARTICLE IX - INSURANCE AND PENSION

Health Insurance Coverage for Active Employees: Active employee insurance benefits
are outlined in Appendix E.

Health Insurance Coverage for Retired Employees:

a. “Retired employee” shall mean a former employee who was continuously
employed by the Town until commencement of a pension benefit, who has met
the requirements for a normal or disability retirement as defined by the pension
plan. “Vested benefit recipient” shall mean any former employee who terminated
service after meeting the requirements for vesting under the pension plan.

b. For employees who retire on or before December 31, 2010, the Town shall
provide and pay for upon retirement the Preferred Provided (PPO) Plan with
Managed Care provisions and Full Service Prescription Drug coverage. Effective
July 1, 2017, the retiree PPO will be replaced with a High Deductible Health Plan.
The HDHP will have deductibles of $1500/$3000. There will be no Town seed.

For retirees who reach the age at which they become eligible for Medicare, Parts
A and B Supplemental coverage shall be provided in place of the foregoing
coverage. Major Medical coverage will be offered provided that the retiree pays
100% of the premium.Employees who retire on or after January 1, 2011 will be
subject to the following:

i. Employees who retire at 55 years of age or under will pay 50% of the cost

of employee-only insurance coverage until the employee reaches the age
at which he or she becomes eligible for Medicare;

15




i,

iti.

v.

Employees who retire at 56 through 59 years of age will pay 25% of the
cost of employee-only insurance coverage until the employee reaches the
age at which he or she becomes eligible for Medicare;

Employees who retire at 60 through 64 years of age will pay 0% of the
cost of employee-only insurance coverage until the employee reaches the
age at which he or she becomes eligible for Medicare.

The Town shall cease providing and/or paying for any and all health
insurance coverage when the retired employee reaches the age at which he
or she becomes eligible for Medicare.

9.2 Health Insurance Coverage for Retired Employees’ Spouses:

a.

The term spouse shall mean the retired employee’s husband or wife who shall
have been living with the employee as his or her husband or wife at the time of
the employee’s retirement.

For employees who retired between January 1, 1983 and December 31, 2010,
inclusive, the Town shall provide and pay for the insurance benefits as described
in Section 9.1 b for the retired employee’s spouse, under the following
circumstances:

1l.

iii.

iv.

The retired employee must attain age 60 before his/her spouse will be
eligible for this coverage.

If the retired employee remarries, the new spouse will not be eligible for
this coverage.

In order for this coverage to be effective, the retired employee must pay to
the Town 50% of the monthly premium, as determined by the Town. This
premium shall be deducted from the retired employee’s monthly pension
check. If such deduction is not made continuously from his pension check
commencing with his 60" birthday, all coverage to the spouse shall cease
and not be reinstated.

When the retired employee’s spouse reaches the age at which he or she
becomes eligible for Medicare, the Town will pay 100% of the premium
for Parts A and B Supplemental coverage.

When the retired employee dies, all coverage to his/her spouse shall cease,
unless such spouse elects to continue this coverage by the deduction of
100% of the monthly premium, as determined by the Town, from his/her
pension check.

For employees who retire on or after January 1, 2010, the Town shall provide for
the insurance benefits as described in Section 9.1 b for the retired employee’s
spouse, under the following circumstances:

le



9.3

9.4

9.5

10.0

1. If the retired employee remarries, the new spouse will not be eligible for
this coverage.

ii.  Payment for such spousal benefits shall be subject to the following:

° Employees who retire at 55 years of age or under will pay 100% of
spousal coverage until the spouse reaches the age at which he or
she becomes eligible for Medicare;

] Employees who retire at 56 through 59 years of age will pay 75%
of spousal coverage until the spouse reaches the age at which he or
she becomes eligible for Medicare;

] Employees who retire at 60 through 64 years of age will pay 50%
of spousal coverage until the spouse reaches the age at which he or
she becomes eligible for Medicare.

° The Town shall cease providing and/or paying for any and all
health insurance coverage when the employee’s spouse reaches the
age at which he or she becomes eligible for Medicare.

iii. This premium shall be deducted from the retired employee’s monthly
pension check. If such deduction is not made continuously from his or her
first pension check all coverage to the spouse shall cease and not be
reinstated.

iv. When the retired employee dies, all coverage to his or her spouse shall
cease, unless such spouse elects to continue this coverage by the deduction
of 100% of the monthly premium from his/her pension check.

Each retiree will be provided with a five thousand dollars ($5,000)-life insurance policy.

The employee Retirement Plan shall be a part of the Agreement and annexed thereto.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”). All employees hired on or after July

1, 2020, shall contribute one percent (1.0%) of their annual base pay (not including
overtime) towards the Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”) Trust. This employee
contribution shall be on a pre-tax basis. Employees required to contribute to the OPEB
Trust are not required to make an employee contribution towards employee-only retiree
insurance; these employees are, however, required to make contributions towards any
spouse and/or dependent insurance.

ARTICLE X - SAFETY AND HEALTH

A Safety Committee consisting of two members representing the Union and two
members representing the Town shall be appointed and said committee shall meet with
the Town to review and recommend safety and health conditions.

17




10.1

10.2

11.0

12.0

13.0

a. An advisory committee will be developed upon the signing of this contract which
will consist of two (2) Union members and the Chief of Police or his/her
designee. This committee will meet monthly at a mutually convenient time and
location to discuss matters of mutual interest to include, but not limited to,
staffing, policy and procedures of the Communication Center.

An employee may be away from his/her work station for a maximum of thirty (30)
minutes during the workday for breaks. One fifteen (15) minute break may be combined
with the meal break.

The Town shall provide each employee with a proper identification card which will

include photo and other data for identification purposes where there is a demonstrated
need.

ARTICLE XI - SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Agreement shall be held for any reason
to be inoperative, void, or invalid, the validity of the remaining portions of this
Agreement shall not be affected thereby, it being the intention of the parties in adopting
this Agreement that no portion or provisions herein shall become inoperative or fail by
reason of the invalidity of any other portion or provision and the parties do hereby
declare that it would have severally approved of the adopted provisions contained herein,
separately and apart from the other.

ARTICLE XTI - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Except as specifically abridged or modified by any provision of this Agreement, the
Town will continue to have, whether exercised or not, all of the rights, powers and
authority heretofore existing, including but not limited to the following:

Determine the standards of sclection for employment; direct its employees; take
disciplinary action; issue rules and regulations; maintain the efficiency of governmental
operations; determine the methods, means and personnel by which the Town's operations
are to be conducied; determine the content of job classifications; exercise complete
control and discretion over its organization and the technology of performing its work;
and fulfill all of its legal responsibilities. The above rights and prerogatives are inherent
in the Town Council and the Mayor by virtue of statutory and charter provisions and
cannot be subject to any grievance or arbitration proceeding except as specifically
provided for in this Agreement, but the manner of exercises of such rights may be subject
to the grievance procedure described in this Agreement.

ARTICLE XIII - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

In order to insure fair and equitable treatment of all employees of the Department, there is
hereby established a formal procedure to permit discussion and resolution of all
grievances.

a. Definition of a grievance shall be as follows:

18




13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

Discharge, suspension or other disciplinary action.
Unequal application of contract provisions.

Interpretation and application of the rules and regulations and policies of
the Police Department.

Matters relating to the interpretation and application of the articles and
sections of this Agreement.

The written grievance shall include:

A statement of the grievance and facts involved.
The alleged violation of a specific provision of this Agreement.

The remedy requested.

Any employee may use this grievance procedure with or without Union assistance. No
grievance settlement made as a result of an individually processed grievance shall
contravene the provisions of this Agreement.

Step 1

Step 2

Step 3

Step 4

Any employee who has a grievance shall, within ten (10) calendar days of the
occurrence or event giving rise to the grievance, reduce the grievance to writing
and submit it to the Chief, or his designee. The Chief’s, or his designee’s,
decision shall be submitted in writing to the aggrieved employee and his
representative, if represented, within fourteen (14) calendar days of receiving
the grievance. If this does not resolve the problem, it may be processed to Step
2. At the option of the grievant, grievances involving discharge, suspension or
demotion following disposition by the Chief of Police, may be processed
beginning with Step 2.

If the grievance has not been settled, it shall be presented in writing to the
Human Resources Director within ten (10) calendar days after the decision of
the Chief of Police, or his designee, is received. If he so determines, the Human
Resources Director, or his designated representative, shall meet with the
interested parties no later than ten (10) calendar days after the receipt of the
grievance and, in any case, shall render his decision in writing within fifteen
(15) calendar days of the receipt of the grievance. If this decision does not
resolve the dispute, then the question may be processed to Step 3.

Upon mutual agreement, both parties may petition the State Board of Mediation
and Arbitration to appoint a mediator. This request must be made within ten
(10) calendar days of the transmittal of the written decision in Step 2. Should
mediation fail to resolve the question, then it may be processed to Step 4 within
ten (10) calendar days.

Either party may request the State Board of Mediation and Arbitration to
provide arbitration services within fifteen (15) calendar days following a

19



13.6

decision or recommendation at the preceding step.
The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on both parties.

The authority of the arbitrator shall be limited to the application and
interpretation of this Agreement. He shall have no authority to add or subtract
from this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted so as to
limit the authority of the Superior Court to determine the question of
arbitrability.

The cost of the arbitration mutually incurred shall be shared equally by both
parties. Costs incurred by the parties as individuals shall be borne by the party
incurring the cost.

Use of AAA. Notwithstanding the foregoing, within ten (10) calendar dates
following receipt of notice of filing for arbitration, either party may exercise its
right to transfer the arbitration proceedings to the American Arbitration
Association (AAA). Arbitration(s) transferred to AAA will be administered by
and under the rules of the AAA. The cost of the arbitration mutually incurred
shall be shared equally by both parties. Costs incurred by the parties as
individuals shall be borne by the party incurring the cost.

Expedited Arbitration. The parties may agree to the utilization of an expedited
arbitration system following Step 2 for cases of unpaid suspension and any other
cases mutually agreed by the parties. Cases designated by the parties to be heard
in expedited arbitration will be scheduled for hearing as agreed to by the parties.
A mutually agreed single arbitrator shall be utilized in accordance with the
procedures of the contractually provided arbitration forum. All other provisions
of this Agreement concerning grievances and arbitration shall apply to expedited
cases.

Failure by any representative of the Town of East Hartford to take action within
the time limit prescribed in this Grievance Procedure shall constitute a denial of
the grievance on the last day allowed for such action by the representative of the
Town, and the grievant or the Union shall be permitted to proceed to the next
level on the basis of such denial. Failure by the grievant or the Union to proceed
to the next level within the prescribed limits at any level of the procedure shall
constitute acceptance of the decision rendered at the last level of the Grievance
Procedure. However, all time limits expressed herein may be waived by mutual
written agreement.

Telecommunicators, not to exceed three (3) members of the Union, as shall be designated
by the Union for the purpose of contract negotiations shall be afforded the necessary
amount of time, without loss of pay, to conduct such business.

Stewards, not to exceed two (2) members of the Union, as shall be designated by the
Union for the purpose of adjusting grievances shall be afforded the necessary amount of
time, without loss of pay, to conduct such business.

20



137  The Union shall furnish the Town with a list of its Stewards, and shall, as soon as
possible, notify the Town, in writing, of any change therein. Such notification shall be
sent to the Human Resources Director, Town Hall, East Hartford. No Steward shall be
recognized by the Town until such written notification of his/her appointment shall be
received by the Town from a duly authorized officer of the Union.

13.8  In addition to those specified, the Union or the Town may at Step 3 and 4 of the
grievance procedure, have other representatives present during the presentation of
grievances, provided either party shall so advise the other a reasonable period in advance
of such hearing.

13.9 a.
139 b.
139 ¢
13.9 4.
13,10 a.

Complaints Against Telecommunicators

Telecommunicators who are employed in the Police Department shall be entitled
to receive a copy of any citizen's complaint or internal complaint against such
Telecommunicator immediately upon conclusion of a preliminary inquiry by the
Chief of Police or his designee. Under normal circumstances, such preliminary
inquiry shall be concluded within thirty days from receipt of such complaint.

Rights of the Telecommunicator

If an investigation is commenced by Internal Affairs, such investigation shall
commence upon conclusion of the preliminary investigation and upon the signing
of an Internal Affairs complaint by the Chief of Police. Under normal
circumstances, the investigation by the Internal Affairs Division shall be
concluded within sixty (60) days from the signing of an Internal Affairs complaint
by the Chief. In extenuating circumstances, extensions of up to ninety (90) days
each shall be permitted for the completion of the Internal Affairs investigation,
with notice to a Union Steward.

Right to Union Representation

If the Telecommunicator so desires, a Union representative may be present during
any questioning which he/she reasonably believes may lead to disciplinary action
against such Telecommunicator.

Upon completion of any investigation a letter shall be sent to the bargaining unit
member notifying him/her that the investigation was completed, which rules, if
any, he/she is alleged to have violated, the date and time set for any administrative
hearing and enclosing a copy of all reports and other information obtained in any
investigation. The affected employee and the Union shall be notified in writing of
the outcome of the investigation within thirty (30) days of the hearing,

Internal Investigation Procedures

Whenever a Telecommunicator is under investigation for any reason which may
lead to disciplinary and/or criminal charges, such investigation shall be conducted
in the following manner:

Any questioning of the Telecommunicator shall be conducted at a reasonable
hour, unless the seriousness of the allegation, as determined by the Chief of
Police, warrants an immediate response, with payment in accordance with Article
IV.

21



13.10 b. Telecommunicators will never be subject to the "East Hartford, Connecticut
Police Department Rules and Regulations."

13.10 c. No employee of the bargaining unit shall be disciplined for refusing to submit to a
polygraph test.

ARTICLE X1V - DISCIPLINE

140 a. The following types of disciplinary action may be invoked against employees.
They may be independently invoked.

1. Reprimand
An appointing authority shall report any verbal or written reprimand as a part of

the employee's service record by the forwarding of a written memorandum to the
Human Resources Director for inclusion in the employee's file. A copy of such
reprimand shall be forwarded to the employee and to a Union Steward. Such
reprimand shall remain a part of the employee's service record.

2. Suspension

An appointing authority may, for disciplinary purposes, suspend, without pay, any
employee under his control. Such suspension shall not exceed ten (10) working
days for any one offense. Suspensions totaling more than thirty (30) days in any
twelve (12) successive months shall be deemed a dismissal and be so treated.

3. Dismissal

An appointing authority may dismiss for cause any employee under his control
occupying a position subject hereto when he considers that the good of the service
shall be served thereby.

140 b. All suspensions and discharges must be given in writing with reasons stated and a
copy given to the employee and the Union at the time of the suspension or
discharge.

Depending on the offense, disciplinary action may include, but not be limited to,
verbal and/or written warnings, suspension, and discharge. Progressive discipline
shall be applied when appropriate. No employee shall be discharged or
suspended without just cause. Disciplinary action normally shall follow in this

order:

A. Verbal Warning
B. Written Warning
C. Suspension

D. Discharge

140 c. Employees shall not be discharged without just cause. The following shall be
sufficient causes for reprimand, suspension, or discharge though such action may
be for causes other than those enumerated:

22



15.0

16.0

16.1

17.0

1. Willful violation of the Provisions of the Charter.

2, Incompetence or inefficiency in the performance of the duties of the
position to which the employee has been appointed.

3. Wanton carelessness or negligence in the use and the care of Town
property.
4, Habitual tardiness or absence from duty which results in unsatisfactory

attendance. Unsatisfactory attendance is evident when the sum of days of
unscheduled absence is greater than 15 in a twelve-month period.
Potentially unsatisfactory attendance may be sufficient cause for a verbal
waming. Employees shall have the right to utilize the grievance procedure
pertaining to this Article.

5. Conviction of a felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude.

6. Intoxication on duty.

7. Conduct which reflects unfavorably upon the Town service.

8. Violation of any reasonable official order or failure to carry out any lawful

and reasonable directions made and given by a proper supervisor.

ARTICLE XV - CONVENTION LEAVE

Duly appointed Union members shall be entitled to leave with pay to conduct Union
business, such as Council meetings, Conventions, and training. The total amount of
Union business leave shall not exceed forty-eight (48) hours in any year. Leave may be
taken in increments of one (1) hour.

ARTICLE XVI - RIGHT TO REVIEW

Each employee shall have the right to see and review his or her personnel file upon
request by appointment with the Human Resources Director or histher designee. The
Town shall provide copies of all materials in the file upon request of the employee.
Employees may request that the Town correct inaccurate or incorrect material. Failing
mutual agreement, the employee shall have the right to respond and it shall be made part
of the file. No separate active personnel file shall be maintained other than the one
subject to employee inspection.

Each employee will be given copies of any evaluation reports placed in the employee's
personnel file.

ARTICLE XVII - NON-DISCRIMINATION

The provisions of this Agreement shall be applied equally to all employees in the
bargaining unit without discrimination because of race, color, religion, gender, sexual
orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin, age, disability, genetic

23




18.0

18.1

18.2

183

18.4

18.5

18.6

information, marital status, veteran status, Union membership or other legally protected
category.

ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS

a. Training
The Town agrees to abide by the State Laws governing the certification and re-
certification of Public-Safety Telecommunicators according to Connecticut
General Statutes in a timely manner.

b. Any Telecommunicator of the Police Department attending in-service training
school during his/her regularly scheduled working hours with the knowledge and
consent of the department head shall be granted time off from his/her regular
duties and be compensated at his/her regular rate. The Chief or his designee shall
make all in-service training assignments. The Town shall reimburse the
Telecommunicator for mileage associated with such training at the current LR.S.
rate.

c. Notices of job related training schools and in-service training which may be
available, shall be posted in the Department. The Chief or his designee shall
approve/disapprove all training and service assignments.

The Town agrees that past practices as defined by rulings of the Connecticut State Board
of Labor Relations (CSBLR), will be maintained unless changed by the terms of this
Agreement,

There shall be no alteration, variation, or amendment of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, unless made and agreed to in writing by both parties.

Access to Premises

The Union's representatives or authorized officers shall be permitted to confer with the
employees on the premises of the employer; however, conferences shall not interfere with
the normal operations of the department. The Union's representative will report to the
Watch Commander.

Court Time

Any employee of the bargaining unit required to testify in court as a witness for the Town
or in a civil action related to his’/her employment with the Town, or appear at an
attorney’s office for the purpose of trial preparation as a result of his/her employment
with the Town or appear as a witness in a criminal matter at the request of the State or
Federal prosecuting attorney as a result of his/her employment with the Town shall be
paid in accordance with Article IV,

The Town shall reimburse any Telecommunicator for loss or damage of clothing and/or
personal property suffered in the performance of duty if due to negligence on the part of
the Town. Such claim for loss must be supported with reasonable proof of loss and of the
value of the clothing and/or property. Reimbursement shall not exceed $300.00.

All requests for any form of authorized leave, including but not limited to requests to use

24



18.7

18.8

18.9

accrued vacation leave, jury duty, earned days, military leave and compensatory time,
must be submitted not later than sixteen (16) hours prior to the starting time of the work
shift to which the request applies. This shall not apply for the requesting of emergency
sick leave, family sick leave or funeral leave. When reasonably possible, notification of
an absence due to illness or injury must be submitted not later than twelve (12) hours
prior to the starting time of the work shift to which the request applies. If an employee’s
absence due to illness or injury will not result in additional overtime to the
Telecommunicators operation, the twelve (12) hour notice will not be required.

No more than two (2) members of any shift may be absent on the same day due to the use
of accrued leave other than sick leave, jury duty, funeral leave, or military leave.

Each employee shall be eligible for tuition reimbursement of up to $300.00 per semester
or quarter not to exceed $600.00 per contract year after successful completion of graduate
or undergraduate courses or programs at a recognized college or university directly
related to the position the employee holds with the Town. Reimbursement will be made
upon the employee providing evidence of satisfactory completion of the approved course
and a receipt for the tuition paid. Any employee who has been compensated under this
Section and who does not remain an employee for a minimum of two (2) years after
receiving such compensation will reimburse the Town for any or all monies paid to the
employee under this Section during the preceding two (2) years.

Employees who are certified as Communications Training Operators (CTO) shall be paid
an hourly differential of thirty percent (30%) of their hourly base rate for each hour or
portion of an hour that they spend in direct training of a TOPS trainee.

To qualify for the differential, the CTO must:

b. Be currently certified as a CTO by the Association of Public Safety
Communications Officials;

C. Be assigned on a daily basis by the Police Chief or his/her designee to
work directly with a trainee as a CTO;

d.  Document the time spent providing training as a CTO and submit the
documentation as required by the Department;

€. Demonstrate continuing effectiveness in training as judged by Department
management;

The time spent by employees acquiring or maintaining the CTO certification will not be
subject to payment of the differential.

Reasonable time spent by the CTO in completion of required documentation regarding a
trainee’s progress will be subject to payment of the differential.

A CTO will be assigned to trainees one-on-one. CTO assignments will be made first on a
voluntary basis. In the absence of volunteers, a CTO will be assigned to a trainee by
Department management. When more than one person volunteers for an assignment, the

25



18.10

CTOs will be alternated throughout the trainee’s training period.

The Chief or his/her designee shall have the authority to cancel this program based on the
Department’s needs.

The Town will provide six (6) sets of uniforms (long or short sleeve polo shirts and
pants) for employees. All Telecommunication Operators will wear dark “5.11” pants,
“Dockers”, or similar style long pants as long as they fit properly. The Chief or his
designee may periodically review this matter to ensure the pants are in accordance with
the established understanding between the parties. The employees will be responsible for
keeping the uniforms neat, clean, in good repair and well pressed at all times. Employees
can turn in uniforms that have excessive wear or damage from normal use. Employees
shall be required to wear uniforms that have been selected by the Town, as a condition of
employment, and they shall be subject to, and must comply with, the uniform and
appearance policy and standards prescribed by the Chief of Police. No employee, while
in uniform, shall wear any item not specifically authorized by the Chief of Police. The
Chief of Police or his designee may modify the dress guidelines (on a case by case basis)
due to medical or other special circumstances.

18.11 The Town will establish a performance evaluation system, which includes the following:

19.0

 East Hartford Public Safety Communications Performance Appraisal Process, APCO
Standards

e [East Hartford Performance Appraisal Form

o East Hartford Performance Appraisal Policy and instructions

ARTICLE XIX - DURATION

(Amend.) This Agreement shall be effective as of the first day of July 2019 and shall
remain in full force and effect until the 30th day of June 2022, except that it may be
amended at any time by mutual agreement, or upon the anniversary date of said
Agreement by giving to the other party not less than one hundred twenty (120) days’
written notice of intention to negotiate a successor agreement.

26



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their names to be signed on this

FOR THE
TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD

Mayor Marcia A. Leclerc

Santiago Malave, HR Director

Police Chief Scott Sansom

Sandra L. Franklin

27

FOR
TEAMSTERS LOCAL #671

Eric Downer, Teamsters
Staff Representative

For the Union

For the Union



APPENDIX A — TEAMSTERS LOCAL #671 AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYROLL
DEDUCTION

Dtpeant A ddroca
T T IO

Cityr and Stata
VILJ [SIWLE Ry sy Ry

28



CHECKOFF AUTHORIZATION
AND ASSIGNMENT

I hereby authorize my employer to

{Print Name)

deduct from my wages each and every month an amount equal to the monthly dues, Initiation fees and
uniform assessments of Local Union 671, and direct such amounts so deducted to be turned over each
month to the Secretary-Treasucer of such Local Union for and on my behalf.

This authorization is voluntary and is not conditioned on my present or future membership in the Union.

"This authorization and assignment shall be irrevocable for the term of the applicable contract between the
union and the employer or for one year, whichever is the lesser, and shall automaticaily renew itself for
successive yearly or applicable contract periods thereafter, whichever is lesser, unless I give written
notice to the company and the union at least sixty (60) days, but not more than seventy-five {(75) days
before any periodic renewal date of this authorization and assignment of my desire to revoke same.

Signature

Social Security Number Date

Address

City State Zip Code

Employer

Union dues are not deductible as charitable contributions for Federal Income Tax purposes.

29



APPENDIX B — SHIFT ROTATION SCHEDULE

Shitt rotation periods shall begin on the first Sunday after January 1 and the first Sunday after
July 4™ in each calendar year. The bidding period shall begin ninety (90) days prior to each
shift rotation period and shall be completed within sixty (60) days.

30




APPENDIX C - WAGE SCHEDULE
TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD
TELECOMMUNICATIONS OPERATOR

TEAMSTERS LOCAL #671

STEP1 STEP2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5

7/1/19 2.0% $50,643 $53,144 $55,769 558,521 562,435
increase

7/1/20 2.0% 551,656 554,207 556,884 $59,691 $63,684
increase

71721 1.25% 552,302 454,885 $57,595 $60,437 564,480
increase

31




APPENDIX D - MEDICAL CERTIFICATE FORM

A medical certificate submitted in accordance with Article VII, Section 2 shall be on the
following form or shall contain substantially equivalent information.

HEALTH CARE PROVIDER NAME:

ADDRESS
TELEPHONE #
TO: Human Resources Director, Town of East Hartford
Asa duly licensed by the State of ,
(Physician, APRN, PA}
I hereby certify that who was seen by me on
(name of employee)
was unable to work during the continuous period
(date)
from to . He/she was under my care on or
(date) (date)
after

(date)

I also certify that said employee can return to duty with no restrictions on

(date)

Signature of Health Care Provider

Date of signature

32



APPENDIX E - HEALTH INSURANCE

The Town of East Hartford agrees that all members of the Teamsters shall opt out of the Town’s
insurance plan (including Dental, Vision, Health, Prescription and Life) and further agrees to pay
the Teamster’s insurance premium based on the following rates:

Year 2019-2020  $10.20 per 40 hour workweek x 52 weeks per employee
Year 2020-2021  $10.55 per 40 hour workweek x 52 weeks per employee
Year 2021-2022  $10.90 per 40 hour workweek x 52 weeks per employee

Eligible Teamsters’ members who retire during the term of this contract from Town service may

be eligible to receive the benefits listed in Sections 9.2 and 9.3. Those eligible are defined in
Appendix G MOU which was renewed with this 2019-2022 contract.

33




APPENDIX E - HEALTH AND WELFARE FUND

This Health Fund Article shall supercede and prevail over any other inconsistent provisions or
articles contained within this Agreement.

Commencing with the signing of this Agreement, and for the duration of the current collective
bargaining agreement between Local Union 671 and the Town of East Hartford (“the Town™),
and any renewals or extensions thereof, the Town agrees to make payments to the IBT Local 671
Health Services and Insurance Fund (“the Fund”), for each and every employee performing work
within the scope of and/or covered by this collective bargaining agreement whether such
employee is a regular, probationary, temporary or casual employee, irrespective of his/her status
as a member or non-member of the Local Union, from the first hour of employment subject to
this collective bargaining agreement, as follows:

For each hour or portion thereof, figured to the nearest quarter hour for which an employee
receives pay or for which pay is due, the Town shall make a contribution of $9.95 to the
Health Fund but not more than $398.00 per week for any one employee from the first hour of
employment in such week. Commencing with the 1st day of July, 2018 the said hourly
contribution rate shall be $10.20 but not more than $408.00 per week for any one employee.
Commencing on the Ist day of July 2020, the said hourly contribution rate shall be $10.55
but not more than $422.00 per week for any one employee. Commencing with the 1st day of
July 2021, the said hourly contribution rate shall be $10.90 but not more than $436.00 per
week for any one employee.

For purposes of this section, each hour for which wages are paid or due, or any portion thereof,
figured to the nearest quarter hour, as well as hours of paid vacation, paid holidays and other
hours for which pay is due or received by the employee, shall be counted as hours for which
contributions are payable. In computing the maximum amount due any week, there shall be no
daily limit on the number of hours for any one day in such week, whether such hours are
performed on straight time or overtime rates, the payments shall be made at the amounts set forth
above.

If an employee is absent because of illness or off-the-job injury and notifies the Town of such
absence, the Town shall continue to make a required contribution of forty (40) hours for a period
of four (4) weeks. If any employee is injured on the job, the Town shall continue to pay a
required contribution until such employee returns to work, however, such contributions of thirty-
two (32) hours shall not be paid for a period of more than twelve (12) months. The Town agrees
to and accepts the Health Fund’s Agreement and Declaration of Trust as amended, and ratifies
the selection of the Town Trustees now or hereafter serving as such, and all action heretofore or
hereafter taken by them within the scope of their authority under such Agreement and
Declaration of Trust.

The parties agree that the Health Plan adopted by the Trustees of the Health Fund shall, at all
times, conform to requirements of the Internal Revenue Code so as to enable the Town at all
times to treat its contributions made to the Fund as a deduction for income tax purposes.

It is also agreed that all contributions shall be made at such time and in such manner as the
Trustees shall reasonably require; and the Trustees shall have the authority to have an audit of
the payroll and related wage records of the Town for all employees performing work within the

34




scope of and/or covered by this collective bargaining agreement for the purpose of determining
the accuracy of contributions to the Fund and adherence to the requirements of this section of the
collective bargaining agreement regarding coverage and contributions, such audit may, at the
option of the Trustees, be conducted by an independent certified public accountant or a certified
public accountant employed by the Fund.

If the Town shall fail to make contributions to the Health Fund by the twentieth (20" day of the
month following the month during which the employees performed work or received pay or were
due pay within the scope of this collective bargaining agreement, up to and including the last
completed payroll period in the month for which contributions must be paid, or if the Town,
having been notified that its contributions to the Fund have been under-reported and/or
underpaid, fails within twenty (20) days after such notification to make any required self-audit
and or/contributions found to be due, the Local Union shall have the right after an appropriate
72-hour notice to the Town, to take whatever steps it deems necessary to secure compliance with
this agreement, any provisions of this collective bargaining agreement to the contrary
notwithstanding, and the Town shall be responsible to the employees for losses resulting
therefrom. Also, the Town shall be liable to the Trustees for all costs of collecting the payments
due together with attorney’s fees and such interest, liquidated damages or penalties which the
Trustees may assess or establish in their discretion. The Town’s liability for payment hereunder
shall not be subject to the grievance procedure and/or arbitration if such is provided in this
Agreement.

It is understood and agreed that once a payment or payments are referred to an attorney for
collection by the Trustees of the Health Fund and/or the Local Union, the Local Union and its
business agent or chief executive officer shall have no right to modify, reduce or forgive the
Town with respect to its liability for unpaid contributions, interest, liquidated damages or penalty
as may be established or assessed by the Trustees in their discretion against delinquent
Employers.

No oral or written modification of this section regarding the Health Fund shall be made by the
Local Union or the Town, and if made, such modification shall not be binding upon the

employees performing work within the scope of this collective bargaining agreement and
covered by this section or upon the Trustees of the Health Fund.

35



APPENDIX F — AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYROLL DEDUCTION

AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYROLL DEDUCTION
PREPAID VACATION

To Be Filled Out By Employee

Employee’s Name:

(Please print full name)

Employee TOWN ID # Last 4 digits of SS #

I hereby authorize the Town of East Hartford to deduct from my earnings a
sufficient amount to providefor: 1 2 3 4 5 days prepaid vacation
effective January 1, 20 .

By signing below, I understand and agree to the following:

° I may only purchase up to five (5) days of additional vacation.

° The enrollment period shall be during business days from November 15th to December
15" of cach calendar year.

. Up to 5 _days worth of vacation shall be computed and deducted from my payroll in equal
installments over a 52-week period. Deductions will commence on January 1%,

° I will first exhaust all prepaid vacation before using any regular vacation for the current
calendar year.

° I will use all prepaid vacation within the current calendar year and will not carry over any
prepaid vacation into the following calendar year.

. Prepaid vacation will have no impact on my pension calculations.

. I understand my decision is irrevocable. However, in the event of untimely separation

from the Town of East Hartford, I will receive payment for any unused prepaid vacation
or I will reimburse the Town for any used vacation that was not prepaid.

) I must complete one year of service with the Town of East Hartford to become eligible
for this program.

L I understand that all other applicable language in my respective Collective Bargaining
Agreement still applies.

. I understand that this authorized deduction applies only for the calendar year referenced

above and is not automatically renewed.

SIGNATURE: Date: s
(Employee)

Return no later than Dec, 15 to: Office Use Only

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT
EAST HARTFORD TOWN HALL

740 MAIN ST.

EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108

36



APPENDIX G - MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, in 2010, the Town of East Hartford (the “Town™) and Teamsters, Local 671 (the
“Union”)(collectively, the “Parties”) engaged in negotiations for a successor agreement to the
collective bargaining agreement effective July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2010;

WHEREAS, as part of those negotiations, the Parties modified Article IX of the 2005-2010
collective bargaining agreement which pertains to the health insurance benefits offered to

retirees;

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to exempt nine bargaining unit members who will eligible to retire
in or before 2019 from the above modifications to the health insurance provisions in the 2007-
2010 collective bargaining agreement; and

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree to the following:

1.

Any bargaining unit members who are eligible to retire on or before December 31,
2019 will retain the current level for retiree health insurance under the same
conditions that were available to them prior to the 2010 negotiations. This provision
also includes the continuation of the Town’s providing and paying for the current
Medicare supplemental coverage for the above affected group of cligible employees.

Unless the Union is agreeable, there shall be a lockout of any negotiations regarding
the above benefits for the above-affected group of eligible employees.

Should the Town make any changes to the retiree’s health insurance plan that would
enhance the above benefits such changes shall not be affected by the lockout
provision referenced in paragraph 2, above, and would not preclude the receiving of
these benefits by all employees except that the Town cannot remove, alter or change
in any way the lockout on retirees health insurance negotiations in paragraph 2,
above, or the retirees health insurance provisions of this Agrecment.

This Memorandum of Agreement was renewed with the 2019-2022 contract,

37




MEMORANDUM

DATE: June 27, 2019
TO: Marcia A, Leclerc, Mayor
FROM: Michael P. Walsh, Director of Finance

TELEPHONE:  (860) 291-7246

RE: Teamsters Contract Settlement ~ Contingency Transfers

By way of this memo, attached please find the Budgetary Transfer of Funds forms for the
settlement of the Teamster’s contract.

Approval of the form will provide the funding to satisfy the contract settlement through June
30, 2020.

Please contact e if you have any questions or problems on any of the aforementioned
information.




feert
%Frg

[EITPRYY © /m 2seaInd enue a3etoay
[BITDAlY /M DSEATW] [eninre aSeIaay

i yoea gogs mowe 3
(3%€°€“%%°€ ‘%0 070T 1 A{ ve Szpnnlaq wedgmay 5,

Spurrun ap sy xea od OPO°GS 03 00)'ES WO SJT] F3UHAL VSEIIIN OF 3503 FE B
' 18 vopuqold passed aaey oym sxoqumew T1 0} pred aq s 0er'es ‘wonesymes uodp ¢
TRISUTROY, 2 OF BU0YAY 0F 1500 JEITPAUL U UI 25YBXIT A[MOY A Susserder aseamur Tesjpat ou ey 7
SIJRUR [ROIpYUI 22IMal 107 1SN, §IJO A PIemol Leninre pocs Apyeumxoxdde syngrmaes M QZ0T ‘T [ 199y pomy seafordwma map] T

BECL 919°gLL 1054 VLT 08T'SHT L8749 08TEvL Ee],
%000 - - - - - - -
%00°0 - - - - - - - v
BECT e0¥'es S0z'0e TES'Er £ETL9 Sre'01 LET'L9 21891 £
%S0t | Te0'ss 91568 TER'EL $92°05 $39'sT ¥og'oe 78957 z
%861 081'se 081'ae - 031'se 08152 ost'sz 081'cE 1
%00°0 - - - - - C—- - L]
Uy AsTIDUY JSTIENIY P5TITNI] Penuo) ACAZ IDL r=or, DX To L TEIX
oy of 19N BNy [ PINIEN |_regimor 301 wufalepy  oupaSesm
LEL'9EET  gigol POSBOCT  FB9SC  OSUBRTL  0SIST  DOOBSTL - 000'6ST’L meL
II0¢s1 Ie6'L 09095t 090'e 000°€51 000°S 00070St - 000°08T safepm 10
9T'WIL  ETEL POFEST'T  $29TT  OSLISI'T  08LET  000'GOL'L - 00U’60T'T saep “Foy
TROLased  %SCT  [HOLAEE %007 [UOLased 0400 |, [HI0LeseR %000 6T/0she
zefash e 1Z/0¢/ 02/e 0z/0s/4 eT/L® 611085 MO oseg
£Xeax TATBX (1534 12eHUOd-2T T
6L pataao) sasfojdura
670T ‘oum| 3o se paredory
Y/N STTT JPRI0Y) STASHIES, 23 30 SIFAEry
EYS uRLT 9% soSeat enpy PIORTCE] ST 30 UMOL, ST




Town Of East Hartford
Request for Budgetary Transfer of Funds

Department Name CONTINGENCY Date July 186, 2019
Fund Name General Fiscal Year 2019-20 Fund Number GO1
Tor Account No, Account Name Amount Fram: Account Ne. Account Name Amount
PS Commo — Permanent | G5400-60110 $ 25,180 Contingency Reserve | G9600-60201 $ 25,180
: " =Contrart Nen
Tolal 1 25,180 Total | § 25 180
JUSTIFICATION: Provide deteit and specific reasons for this transfer.

This should include future budget impact on both the “to” and the “from” accounts. Attach additio

To provide a source of funds to settle the Teamster's Labor Contract for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.

)

Signature- DirectorfDepartment Head

a

information if necessary.

(ol

™

Appravals E hggf é é-:

PG

Finance Director Date Approved
Mayor Date Approved
Town Couneil/Clerk Date Approved

Transfer

Finance DEPARTMENT USE ONLY

Date Entered

Entered By




T134919v2

AGREEMENT BETWEEN
EAST HARTFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION
AND
EAST HARTFORD EDUCATIONAL ADMINISTRATIVE

AND SUPERVISORY UNIT

FOR THE PERIOD

July 1, 2020 - Jupe 30, 2023



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE
I RECORTULON ... .oveveeeeees oo e 1
I Board Prerogatives ...........oooviiiiiiiiiiis e 2
I Work Year ..o 2
v Assignments and Transfers ............o.ooeii vviiviiieeieeieean. 3
\Y% Leave ProviSions ........ccccveeiiiiiiniiieiins e eeiiieeee v 5
VI SAlArIEs ..o 11
VII INSUTANCE ...t e 13
VIII Grievance Procedure ...........ooouviiiiiniiis o 15
IX Miscellaneous ..........ccooiiiiiiiii s e 17
X DUration ..........veuiiiiiiii e e 17
Signature Page .........o.oooiiiii 18
APPENDICES
A-1 Salary Schedules effective July 1, 2020 effective July 1, 2021
and effective July 1, 2022..........ooiiiiini e 19
B High Deductible Health Plan...............ccc.cooeeieiivneeennnnn. 21

7134919v2



THIS AGREEMENT MADE AND ENTERED INTO by and between the EAST
HARTFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION (hereinafter referred to as the "Board") and the
EAST HARTFORD EDUCATIONAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND SUPERVISORY
UNIT (hereinafter referred to as the "Unit").

ARTICLE
RECOGNITION

1.1 The Board recognizes the Unit for the purpose of professional negotiation,
as the exclusive representative of the entire administrators’ unit consisting of all
professional employees of the Board who are employed in positions requiring an
intermediate administrator or supervisory certificate or the equivalent thereof and who
are eligible for membership under Section 10-153b of the General Statutes of
Connecticut, (hereinafter referred to as “administrators ™).

1.2 (a) The Board agrees to deduct from each administrator for whom a
voluntary written dues deduction authorization is submitted an
amount equal to the Unit membership dues by means of payroll
deductions. The amount of the dues deduction from each paycheck
shall be equal to the total Unit membership dues divided by the
number of paychecks from and including the first paycheck in July,
through December. The amount of Unit membership dues shall be
certified by the Unit to the Board prior to the opening of school
each year.

(b) Those administrators whose employment commences after the start
of the school year shall pay a pro-rated amount equal to the
percentage of the remaining school year. The Unit shall provide
the Board with written notice as to the pro-rated dues amount to be
deducted.

(c) The Board agrees to forward to the Unit each month a check for
the amount of dues deducted during that month. The Board shall
include with such check a list of administrators for whom such
deductions were made.

{d) The Unit shall hold the Board harmless against any and all claims,
demands, liabilities, lawsuits, attorney’s fees or other costs which
may arise out of, or by reason of, actions taken against the Board
as a result of the enforcement or administration of this article.

T734919v2



ARTICLE II
BOARD PREROGATIVES

2.1  Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the Board and the
Superintendent of Schools reserve and retain full rights, authority and discretion, in the
proper discharge of their duties and responsibilities, to control, supervise and manage the
East Hartford Public Schools and its professional staff under governing law, ordinances,
rules and regulations - Municipal, State and Federal.

ARTICLE 111
WORK YEAR

3.1  The work year for administrators shall be established by the Board upon
the recommendation of the Superintendent after consultation with the Unit. If the work
year of an administrator is changed, the Superintendent shall so notify the administrator
prior to May 15 of the previous contract year. No individual administrator's work year
shall be reduced more than once during the term of this agreement.

3.2 This Agreement is based on a work year of either 220 work days for
employees in Category A, as noted in Schedule A-1, or 199 work days, for employees in
Category B, as determined by the Board in accordance with Section 3.1. If an individual
administrator’s work year is changed from the number of days specified to not less than
199 nor more than 220 days, his/her annual salary shall be adjusted accordingly on a per
diem basis. If the change is to more than 220 days or fewer than 199 days, as
applicable, the parties shall negotiate an appropriate adjustment in salary. If the parties
are unable to reach agreement with regard to such salary adjustment, the matter shall be
submitted to impasse resolution procedures in accordance with the Teacher Negotiation
Act.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, K-12 Supervisors may work up to five (5)
additional days per year, with the approval of the Superintendent or his/her designee.
This Agreement is based on a work year for K-12 Supervisors which does not involve
direct teaching responsibilities.

The work year for 199 day administrators shall be the teacher work year, plus the
five days before teachers begin, the five days after teachers end the school year, and four
other days during school vacations or the summer. Any variation from this schedule
must be approved in advance by the Superintendent or his/her designee. The work year
for 220-day administrators shall be the teacher work year, plus at least five days prior to
the start of the teacher work year and at least five days after the end of the teacher work
year, plus the remaining number of days necessary for a total of 220 work days.

TT34919v2



3.3 Twelve month administrators shall be required to work 220 work days
within a contract year (July 1 through June 30), provided that administrators may carry
over up to ten (10) non-work days into the following contract year with the
understanding that in the normal contract year twelve month administrators will have 27
non-work days. Any non-work days carried over must be used by September 30 of the
following contract year or such days will be lost. Twelve month administrators may take
up to ten (10) non-work days when school is in session, subject to the approval of the
Superintendent. Twelve month administrators shall be paid for up to five (5) non-work
days, if they have earned them, when they retire or resign from their position, provided
that they have provided the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee with written
notice of such retirement or resignation at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date
of retirement or resignation. No non-work days may be taken within such thirty-day
notice period. Non-work days shall be pro-rated for any partial year of service
beginning from the prior July 1.

3.4 Principals shall be responsible for arranging coverage of their positions on
each day during their work year except those on which school offices are closed, or on
which they are on authorized leave. Authorization for coverage must be approved by the
Superintendent or his/her designee in cases where additional compensation is to be paid.

3.5  The Superintendent and High School or Middle School Principal shall
agree on the number of days to be assigned to administrators during the summer (in
addition to the applicable number of days set forth in Section 3.2) with the cap of 20 days
for the high school and 10 days for the middle school.

ARTICLE IV
ASSIGNMENTS AND TRANSFERS

4.1  All assignments and transfers within the bargaining unit shall be made by
the Superintendent or his/her designee after consultation with the administrator(s)
involved.

4.2 Inthe event a member of the Unit is transferred from a higher paying
administrative position to a lower paying administrative position, such member shall
continue to be compensated as if he/she had remained in the higher paying principalship
for one year after the effective date of the transfer.

4.3 When the Superintendent or the Board transfers a member of the
bargaining unit to a higher paid position on an acting basis, or assigns a member of the
bargaining unit to assume the duties of a higher paid position for more than five )
consecutive days, such employee shall be compensated at the per diem equivalent of the
higher paid position based on either the same step that he/she holds in the lower position
or the step for the higher position that provides a salary increase for the administrator
(whichever is greater), retroactive from the first day of such transfer or assignment for

-3-
7734919v2



the duration of such transfer or assignment. In addition, after fifteen (15) days, the
Board shall afford a substitute in the regular position for an administrator filling in for
another assignment.

4.4  If the Board significantly modifies the duties of an existing bargaining unit
position, or creates a new bargaining unit position during the term of this agreement, it
shall provide the Unit with a copy of the job description for such new or medified
position, together with a proposed salary range. Upon request of the unit, the parties
shall meet to negotiate such salary range, pursuant to Section 10-153f(e) Conn. Gen.
Stats., and any negotiated agreement shall be effective as of the date such position is
filled or modified.

4.5  Notice of all vacancies that arise in bargaining unit positions shall be
posted on central office bulletin boards and in each building for a period of ten (10)
central office working days, and shall be sent to all administrators who request such
notice. Administrators who wish notice of vacancies that arise during the summer
months must leave their summer addresses with the Director of Human Resources and
must provide the Director of Human Resources with self-addressed, stamped envelopes
in order to receive such notices.

4.6  Criteria for determining whose employment shall be affected by lay-off
shall incorporate factors of seniority, quality of performance and qualifications. The
Superintendent shall determine qualifications. Qualifications shall include possession of
a Connecticut State Certification and training.

In the event of a reduction in the number of certified administrators in East
Hartford, the following rank order shall apply wherem an administrator with a higher
rank may bump into a lower position if he or she has the qualifications to do so.

RANK ORDER
CATEGORY A - 220 day positions
Level 1 EHHS Principal
Level 2 EHMS Principal, Woodland Principal

Level 3 Elementary Principal
CIBA Principal
Sunset Ridge Principal
Synergy Principal
Principal of Early Childhood Learning Center

Level 4 EHHS First Assistant Principal
Special Education Supervisors

-4 -
7734919v2



Supervisor of Professional Development & Evaluation
Data Analyst/School Improvement Specialist

Level 5 EHHS Assistant Principal, EHHS Assistant Principal/Scheduler
EHMS First Assistant Principal
Secondary Curriculum Supervisors (English, Math, Science, Social
Studies)

Level 6 Secondary Curriculum Supervisor of College & Career Readiness
K-12 Supervisor

CATEGORY B - 199 day positions
Level 1 Adult Ed Supervisor

Level 2 Assistant Principal EHMS (199-day position), Assistant Principal
Elementary School, Sunset Ridge/CIBA Assistant Principal

In the event there is a layoff within the Unit, the person whose position is
eliminated shall be able to bump the least senior person within the same or lower rank, in
the order of the levels as set forth in the rank order above.

4.7  Inthe event that administrative positions below the rank of Superintendent
and above the rank of teacher are eliminated, such personnel may elect to exercise
seniority based upon his/her certification endorsement(s) and length of continuous service
in the district for open positions within the bargaining unit at or below the level from
which the administrator was laid off, for a period of eighteen months.

ARTICLE V
LEAVE PROVISIONS

Leave

5.1  Each administrator in a Category B position shall receive leave of absence
with full pay for sickness at the rate of sixteen (16) days a year. Each administrator in a
Category A position shall receive a leave of absence with full pay for sickness at the rate
of eighteen (18) days a year.

For employees hired as administrators before July 1, 2003, these days may
accumulate to two hundred twenty-five (225) days. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any
such administrator who has accrued more than two hundred twenty-five (225) sick days
as of June 30, 2008 shall be permitted to retain such accumulated sick days, but shall not
be permitted to accumulate any additional sick days on or after July 1, 2008 unless and

. -5-
7734919v2



until such time as such administrator’s total sick leave accumulation falls below two
hundred twenty-five (225) days. Sick days used by administrators shall first be charged
to their current year’s allotment of 16 or 18 days (as applicable), and shall then be
charged to their accumulated sick leave. Accumulated sick leave will be determined on
the basis of such person's service with the Board since the most recent date of hire.

Employees hired as administrators after June 30, 2005 may accumulate sick leave
up to one hundred fifty (150) days. Sick days used by administrators shall first be
charged to their current year’s allotment of 16 or 18 days (as applicable), and shall then
be charged to their accumulated sick leave. For such administrators, near June 15 of
each year, any number of sick days remaining in the current year’s allotment in excess of
150 days, shall be paid to the administrator at the rate of 25% of the per diem rate for
those days. If the administrator’s accumulated days drop below 150 days in any given
year, this stipulation shall not apply for that year.

5.2 Sick leave credits will not accumulate while such person is absent from
work on leave without pay.

5.3  Sick leave may be used in the following cases:
(a) Personal illnesses or physical incapacity.

(by  Enforced quarantine of such person in accordance with the
community health regulations.

) Illness or physical incapacity in such person's immediate family.
For the purposes of this section immediate family is defined as
spouse, parent, stepparent, grandparent, grandchild, brother,
sister, child, stepchild, and also any relative who is domiciled in
such person's house.

(d) Absence for personal business beyond the individual's control and
which cannot be conducted outside of school hours. Except in
emergencies, the request for personal leave must be made by the
individual at least five (5) business days prior to such leave to the
Superintendent. Such request must be accompanied by justification
in the form of a statement of the general reason for the request
(attendance in court, home maintenance emergency, etc.), except
that for two (2) days per year said request need not state the reason
for the leave. Personal days may be used for legal, medical or
family reasons fitting the above definition, but may not be used for
recreation or social reasons or to extend vacation or holiday
periods.

T734919v2



5.4  In exceptional cases, the Board may grant additional sick leave with or
without pay. Requests for such additional sick leave shall be in writing and must be
signed by such person when possible.

5.5  Sick leave may not be used for recuperation from illness or injury which is
directly traceable to employment by another employer.

5.6 It shall be the responsibility of the administrator to notify the central office
in advance of extended absence if possible.

(a) The Superintendent may request an appropriate medical certificate
from any administrator for any leave of any duration.

(b) When required to provide a certificate, the administrator shall have
the option of providing a certificate from a doctor of his/her own
choosing, in which case the employee shall pay, or a doctor chosen
by the Board, in which case the Board shall pay. In any case, the
Board may seek the judgment of its own physician.

5.7  Any administrator who is on leave of absence of more than one month
without pay shall not be paid for sick leave for any reason.

Funeral Leave

5.8  Three (3) days special leave with full pay shall be granted for death in the
immediate family of an administrator. Immediate family for purposes of this clause is
defined as parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse, brother, sister, child, stepchild,
grandchild and also any relative who is domiciled in the employee's house. One (1) day
special leave with full pay shall be granted for death of a son-in-law, daughter-in-law,
brother-in-law, sister-in-law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of an administrator.
Additional days may be requested pursuant to Section 5.3 (d).

Jury Duty

5.9  An administrator who is absent from work in order to report for jury duty
or appear as a witness under a legally enforceable subpoena shall receive a leave of
absence with full pay. An administrator shall remit per diem jury pay, but not traveling
expenses, to the Board when he/she receives jury duty pay from the state. This
provision shall not apply to legal proceedings wherein the administrator or the Unit is a

party.

Professional Conferences-Visitation Day

5.10 Upon approval of the Superintendent or his/her designees, a visiting day
or leave with full pay may be granted to an administrator for visiting other schools,

-7 -
7734919v2



attending conferences, or attending professional meetings. Travel expenses may be
granted in accordance with Board Policy.

Religious Leave

5.11 Up to three (3) full days of paid leave may be granted to administrators for
the celebration of religious high holy days. The request for such leave must be submitted
at least five (5) business days prior to such leave to the Superintendent.

Maternity/Adoptive/Childrearing Ieave

5.12 The Board agrees to abide by the provisions of any applicable law
regarding family and medical leave and/or disability maternity leave.

Childrearing or adoptive leave for purposes other than disability must be requested, in
writing, prior to (a) the time disability sick leave due to pregnancy commences, or (b)
the time that the spouse of a certified staff member is determined to be disabled as a
result of pregnancy, or (c) the adoption of a minor child, whichever is applicable.

(a) Childrearing or adoptive leave shall commence at the end of
disability sick leave as determined by medical authority, as
applicable.

(b) If disability sick leave commences between September 1 and
Jamuary 31, the childrearing leave shall extend for the remainder of
the school year. Notification of intent to return shall be submitted
by April 1 of the calendar year in which the certificated staff
member plans to return. Failure to notify will constitute a
resignation.

(c) If the disability sick leave commences between February 1 and
August 31, the childrearing leave shall extend for the remainder of
the school year and may extend for the next full school year if the
administrator elects to do so in writing at the time the leave is
requested. Notification of intent to return shall be submitted by
April 1st of the calendar year in which the certified staff member
plan to return. Failure to notify will constitute a resignation.

(d) The certified staff member will be reinstated to a position for
which he/she is certified and qualified provided his/her status has
not been affected by Article 4.6 of this Agreement.

(e) The certified administrator absent on childrearing leave will return
to the salary step appropriate to position and years in service.

-8-
T734919v2



(0

(&)

(h)

Upon the expiration of any FMLA leave applicable to the
administrator’s childrearing leave, the administrator may continue
insurance coverage at the administrator’s expense for the duration
of the childrearing leave.

Credit toward longevity shall not be granted for this period of
leave.

Sick leave not used during disability leave shall be restored upon
return to the system.

General Purpose Leave

7734919v2

5.13 The Superintendent or his/her designee shall consider and may grant such
leaves as requested in writing for general purposes under the following conditions:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

g

Such leaves shall be without pay.
Such leaves shall be for a period of one school year.

Applications must be submitted prior to March 1st of the school
year preceding the school year for which the leave is being
requested.

Candidate must have completed at least ten (10} years of
satisfactory service with the Board.

During such leave, the administrator may continue insurance
coverage provided that he/she pays one hundred percent (100%) of
the costs for such insurance, except as otherwise provided by law.
This subsection E will not apply in any situation in which an
administrator is employed by a charter school or any other
employer during the period of leave.

Administrators must notify the Board by March 1st of the leave
year of their decision whether or not to return to their
administrative position. Failure to notify results in automatic
resignation. This date is of the essence.

Administrator returns to normal salary sequence and benefits.



Sabbatical Leave

5.14 Upon the recommendation of the Superintendent a sabbatical leave may be
granted at the discretion of the Board for purposes of professional growth and
development.

a) The Administrator must have completed at least (7) years of
satisfactory service with the Board.

b) Sabbatical leave may be granted for one-half of a school year or
for one entire school year.

c) Applications for sabbatical leave should be submitted to the
Superintendent on or before February 1st and must be on the form
available from the personnel department. The deadline of
February 1st may be waived by the Superintendent.

d) Written notice of the Board's decision on each sabbatical leave
application will be given to each applicant by April 1.

e) Administrators absent on sabbatical leave shall be paid 75% of the
contract rate in effect during such leave; provided, however,
reductions shall be made, where necessary, so that the total of such
payments, together with any amounts received in connection with
the activities carried on during the sabbatical leave, do not exceed
the salary to which such administrator would have been entitled
under this contract for service with the Board during the period of
the sabbatical leave. In addition to such salary, the Board may, in
its discretion, reimburse the administrator for travel and other
expenses related to the sabbatical leave. During the sabbatical
leave, the administrator may continue insurance coverage at the
administrator’s expense for the duration of the leave.

) In extraordinary cases where an administrator plans to study in
areas determined by the Board to be critical, the seven (7) year
requirement of 5.16(a) may be waived and the employee may
receive up to 100% of the contract rate referred to in 5.16(e).

g) An administrator absent from service because of sabbatical leave,
shall be entitled to such advancement on the salary schedule as
he/she would have received had he/she remained in the system.

h) In the event that completion of the approved professional objectives
of the sabbatical leave is made impossible by illness or injury,
salary payments will be continued beyond the date such disability

- 10 -
7734519v2



1s incurred for a period equivalent to the sick leave credit accrued
by the administrator.

1) Administrators who are granted sabbatical leave shall as a
condition of acceptance agree to return to service in the school
system for a pertod of two (2) full contract years following the
completion of the sabbatical leave. In the event an administrator
does not fulfill his/her agreement to serve two full contract years
following the completion of the sabbatical leave, the following
provisions shall apply:

1) For service of less than one full contract year following
completion of the sabbatical, the administrator shall reimburse
the Board for the full amount of all compensation paid to the
administrator during the period of the sabbatical leave.

2) For service of more than one full contract year but less than two
full contract years following completion of the sabbatical, the
administrator shall reimburse the Board in an amount equal to
one-half of the total compensation paid to the administrator
during the period of the sabbatical leave.

3) Such reimbursement shall be made to the Board in one lump
sum within sixty days of the end of the sabbatical leave.

Union Leave

5.15 In order to enhance the public image of the East Hartford Public Schools
and to promote professional development, a union leave provision will be provided for
the Unit President/designee to perform his/her elected duty as President/designee of the
Unit. The Unit President/designee will seek the permission of the Superintendent to
attend functions that are commensurate with the duties of the office. The Superintendent
shall have the right, in his or her discretion, to grant or deny any such requests. The
denial of any such requests shall not be subject to the grievance and/or arbitration
procedure.

ARTICLE VI
SALARIES

6.1  The salary schedule for the three years of this agreement are set forth on
Schedules A-1 attached hereto.

6.2  Salaries for positions which are changed from one work year to another
shall be adjusted in accordance with the provisions of section 3.2 of this agreement.

-11 -
7734919v2



6.3  Any administrator who is promoted to a higher salaried position shall not
be placed lower than two steps below the step he/she had attained in his/her previous
position.

6.4  Administrators who work 199 days per year shall have the option of
choosing either 21 equal pay periods or 22 pay periods (21 equal pay periods plus one
balloon check) and shall indicate their choice. Administrators employed under the
provisions of any state or federal grant program will be subject to pay periods established
by the fiscal year of the program.

6.5  The provisions of Section 6.5 shall apply only to employees hired as
administrators prior to July 1, 2014. On completion of 10 years of service in East
Hartford, $500 will be added to the administrator’s salary schedule. This will be
increased by $500 each five year period thereafter until retirement. Credit shall be given
for years necessary to achieve longevity for United States Military Service which
interrupts service in East Hartford; such credit not to exceed two years.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the longevity amounts for employees hired as
administrators prior to July 1, 2014 will be frozen at the longevity amounts received by
such administrators in 2019-20, with no further increases in such dollar amounts.

Longevity payments will be included in the per diem rate for the purposes of
payments made under Section 6.8 for retirees who qualify for the benefit set forth in
Section 6.8. For purposes of this section “years of service” shall be defined as
continuous years of certified service with East Hartford Public Schools. A period of
reduction in force (“RIF”) will not count toward service time but will not be deemed a
break in service.

6.6  Administrators who are awarded a doctorate in a program approved by
NCATE or any other mutually acceptable accrediting agency shall receive an annual
salary differential of $5000.

6.7  Any adminjstrator who is called to perform his/her regular duties for
additional days beyond his/her work year will be paid on a per diem basis. This
provision shall not apply to situations where the administrator has failed to complete the
customary duties of the position within the work year.

6.8  Employees hired as administrators before July 1, 2005 and leaving the
public school teaching and administration while eligible for retirement under the State
Teachers Retirement Plan, shall receive retirement separation pay for a minimum of
fifteen (15) years continuous service in East Hartford, based on forty percent (40%) of
accumulated unused sick leave, up to a maximum of eighty (80) days’ pay for two
hundred (200) days of accumulated unused sick leave. Payment is at the administrator’s
per diem pay rate, based on the administrator's work year in the year immediately

-12 -
7734919v2



preceding retirement. In order to be eligible for such payment, each administrator must
provide the Superintendent with written notice of such retirement resignation at least
ninety (90) days in advance of the effective date of retirement. However, in the event of
unforeseen personal circumstances for the administrator, the Superintendent, within
his/her discretion, may waive this 90 day notice requirement. The Board shall pay to the
estate of an administrator who dies before retirement, but would otherwise be eligible for
a benefit under this paragraph, an amount computed as if the administrator had retired on
the date of death.

6.9  When an administrator conducts a staff development workshop for district
personnel at the request of the Superintendent, and when the workshop involves
significant preparation outside the administrator’s regular workday, the administrator
shall be compensated at the rate of $100 per day for each day on which the workshop is
presented. Prior to the commitment of time under this section, application for
compensation shall be made to the Superintendent/designee, and no compensation shall
be payable under this section unless the Superintendent/designee has approved such
compensation in writing in advance.

ARTICLE VII
INSURANCE

7.1  The Board shall maintain a High Deductible Health Plan/Health Savings
Account (hereinafter “HSA Plan”) for all eligible administrators, spouses and dependents
as set forth in Appendix B. Enrollment in the insurance plans shall be subject to any and
all eligibility requirements established by the insurance carrier and/or plan administrator,
at group rates subject to conditions imposed by the carriers, with the employee portion of
such coverage to be paid through payroll deduction.

The Board will not fund any portion of the deductible under the HSA Plan.

Effective with the 2021-22 contract year, the Board will not process employee
contributions into employees’ Health Savings Accounts, unless the Board and the Union
mutually agree otherwise.

Employees enrolled in the high deductible health plan must remain in the plan for
the entire plan year.

The administrators’ premium contributions toward the HSA Plan will be as
follows:

Effective July 1, 2020: 10.0%
Effective July 1, 2021: 11.0%
Effective July 1, 2022: 12.0%

-13 -
7734919v2



The Board will also provide for all administrators Blue Cross Full Service Dental
Plan with riders A, B, C. The administrators’ premium contributions toward the dental
plan will be as follows:

Effective July 1, 2020: 23.0%
Effective July 1, 2021: 24.0%
Effective July 1, 2022: 25.0%

The administrators’ premium contributions shall be based on the fully-insured
rates for the plan selected.

The Board will adopt an Internal Revenue Code Section 125 plan which allows
administrators to pay insurance contributions with pre-tax dollars. The Board will also
afford administrators the opportunity to participate in flexible spending accounts for
dependent care, consistent with the provisions of applicable law, up to the dollar limits
set forth in the Section 125 plan maintained by the Town of East Hartford.

7.2 The Board shall provide and pay for life insurance with double indemnity
for each member of the Unit in an amount equal to two times (2x) his/her annual salary
rounded up to the next higher $1,000 and shall provide any pay for coverage in the
amount of $3,000 for each member of the Unit who retires from the district. The Board
shall facilitate the purchase of additional life insurance by individual administrators (but
not retirees) at group rates, carrier permitting.

7.3  Administrators under the Teachers’ Retirement Act shall be permitted to
continue their health insurance in accordance with C.G.S. 10-183t.

7.4 The Board shall have the right to self-insure for any of the insurance
benefits described in this Article and/or to change administrators/carriers/plans for any
of the insurance benefits, provided that the overall level of benefits, when considered as
a whole, remains substantially comparable to the overall level of benefits in effect
immediately preceding any such change.

7.5  The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act ("PPACA"; Public
Law 111-148) has set forth and codified under the Internal Revenue Code (IRC)
§49801 the imposition of an excise tax related to employer provided health insurance
plans that exceed certain value thresholds. Should any Federal statute or regulation
pertaining to IRC §49801 be mandated to take effect during the term of this
Agreement, triggering the imposition of an excise tax with respect to any of the
contractually agreed upon insurance plans offered herein, the parties agree to
commence mid-term negotiations in accordance with the Teacher Negotiation Act.
During such mid-term negotiations, the parties will reopen Section 7.1 (including the
related Appendix B of the contract) for the purpose of addressing the impact of the excise
tax. No other provision of the contract shall be reopened during such mid-term
negotiations.

-14 -
7734919v2



ARTICLE VII
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

8.1 A grievance is defined as an event or condition which affects the welfare
or conditions of employment of an administrator or a group of administrators and/or the
application of any provision of the Agreement.

8.2 Any complaint or grievance not presented for disposition through the
grievance procedure set forth above within fifteen (15) business days of the occurrence of
the facts or condition giving rise thereto, or within fifteen (15) business days of the
grievant’s knowledge of their occurrence, whichever comes later, shall not thereafter be
treated or processed as a grievance under this Agreement. In the case of an individual
grievance, knowledge shall be presumed to take place no later than thirty (30) calendar
days after the occurrence in question.

8.3  The primary function of this procedure is to seck to resolve the contractual
problems of individual administrators or groups of administrators. This is to be done
with the least possible publicity maintaining professional confidences so as to curtail any
adverse effect on the school system or the profession.

8.4  Procedural Steps

Step 1: An administrator with a grievance shall first discuss it with
his/her immediate superior in an effort to resolve the matter informally.

Step 2: In the event the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the Unit shall
present the grievance in writing to the Superintendent within fifteen (15) business days of
the event giving rise to the grievance. Within five (5) business days after the receipt of
the written grievance, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall meet with the
admimistrator in an effort to resolve the grievance. The Superintendent shall render
his/her decision in writing to the administrator and the Unit within five (5) business days
after the conclusion of said meeting.

Step 3: In the event the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the Unit shall
file the grievance in writing with the Board of Education within ten (10) business days of
the Step 2 response or within ten (10) business days of the deadline for such response,
whichever occurs sooner. Within ten (10) business days after the receipt of the written
grievance, the Board of Education or its designated representatives shall meet with the
aggrieved person in an effort to resolve the grievance. The decision shall be rendered in
writing to the administrator and the Umit within ten (10) business days after the
conclusion of said meeting.

-15-
7734919v2



Step 4:

A. In the event that the grievance is not resolved at Step 3, the Unit
may file the grievance for arbitration with the American Dispute Resolution Center
(ADRC), with a copy to the Board, within twenty (20) business days after the Step 3
decision or within twenty {20) business days of the deadline for such decision, whichever
OCCUrs sooner

B. The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the
administrative procedures, practices and rules of ADRC. The arbitrator shall hear and
decide only one grievance in each case. He/she shall be bound by and must comply with
all of the terms of this Agreement. He/she shall have no power to add to, delete from,
or modify in any way any of the provisions of this Agreement. When the complaint or
grievance involves the interpretation or application of a specific provision of the
Agreement between the parties, the decision of the arbitrator shall be binding upon both
parties, and upon all administrators involved as grievants, during the life of the
Agreement. In all other instances, the decision of the arbitrator shall be advisory. The
cost for the services of the arbitrator including per diem expenses, if any, and actual
travel and subsistence, shall be borne equally by the Board and the Unit.

8.5  No individual administrator may submit a grievance at Steps 2, 3 or 4 of
the grievance procedure; only the Unit may submit grievances at Steps 2, 3 or 4 of the
grievance procedure. Any administrator may be represented at all stages of this
grievance procedure by himself or a representative of the East Hartford Educational
Administrative and Supervisory Unit. When an administrator is not represented by the
Unit, the Unit shall have the right to be present and to state its views at all stages of this
grievance procedure.

8.6 The Unit shall have the right to initiate a grievance which in the opinion of
the President of the Unit or his/her designee affects a group of administrators and such
action shall be taken in the name of the President of the Unit or his/her designee.

8.7  Simce it is important that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible,
the number of days indicated at each level of the grievance procedure should be
considered maximum. These time limits may, however, be extended by mutual
agreement. The failure of an administrator (aggrieved) to proceed to the next step of the
grievance procedure within the time limits set forth shall constitute a waiver of any
future appeal concerning the particular grievance. The failure of an administrator or one
who is grieved against at any step to communicate his/her decision to the aggrieved
within the specified time limits shall permit the aggrieved to proceed to the next step.

- 16 -
7734919v2



ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOQUS

9.1  Any item not covered in this Agreement may hereafter be governed by the
modification of existing policies, rules and/or regulations or by the adoption by the
Board of new policies, rules and/or regulations subject to the provisions of the Teacher
Negotiations Act. In the event of a conflict between any provision of this Agreement and
any board policy, rule or regulation, the terms of this Agreement shall control.

9.2  The Board shall notify the Unit through the Board Agenda of any
proposed modification or adoption of any new Board policy.

9.3 An administrator has the right to review the contents of his/her personnel
file, and the right to reply to any document contained therein with a formal letter which
will be placed in the file. An administrator will be notified when any critical material is
placed in his/her personnel file, and shall have the right to examine and reply to such
material as set forth in the preceding sentence.

9.4  Any administrator who uses his/her personal vehicle on approved Board
business in or out of the district during the work day or after hours will be reimbursed at
the IRS rate, in accordance with all applicable IRS regulations. In order to be eligible
for such reimbursement, the administrator must submit a written request for
reimbursement to the Business Office no later than the thirtieth (30™) calendar day of the
calendar month following the travel, except that reimbursement requests for mileage for
the months of May and June must be submitted by the tenth (10™) calendar day of the
calendar month following the travel. Payment will be monthly.

9.5 Inthe event that any portion of this Agreement is found to be illegal, void,
or voidable, it is agreed that such finding will have no effect on the remaining portion of
this Agreement. Both parties will meet within ten (10) work days and bargain such new
language as is necessary to comply with such restrictions.

2.6 No administrator shall be suspended, reduced in rank or compensation or
denied an increment without just cause.

ARTICLE X
DURATION

10.1 This Agreement contains the full and complete agreement between the
Board and the Unit on all negotiable issues, and neither party shall be required during the
term thereof to negotiate upon any issue, whether it is covered or not covered in this
Agreement, except as may otherwise be required by this Agreement.

-17 -

T734919v2



10.2 This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from July 1, 2020
through June 30, 2023,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto caused this
Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives this ﬂz day of

Tuné- 2019

EAST HARTFORD EDUCATION EAST HARTFORD BOARD OF
ADMINISTRATIVE AND SUPERVISORY EDUCATION

UNIT

By By T

}ésidenl” / / Chairperson

- 18 -
T734919v2



Schedule A-1

2020-21 (1.50% GWI, with step) 1 2 3 4

Al. | EHHS Principal 151,928 | 154,277 | 156,636 | 158,979

A2. | EHMS Principal, Woodland Principal 143,826 | 146,181 | 148,531 | 150,891
Elementary Principal, CIBA Principal, Sunset Ridge ‘

A3, Principal*, Synergy Principal, Principal of Early 138,140 | 140,497 | 142,849 | 145,203
Childhood Learning Center
EHHS First Assistant Principal, Special Education

Ad. Supervisors, Supervisor of Professional Development & | 130,939 | 133,297 { 135,649 138,001
Evaluation, EHHS Assistant Principal/Scheduler
EHHS Assistant Principal, EHMS First Assistant

AS. Principal, Data Analyst/School Improvement Specialist 126,450 | 128,802 | 131,155 | 133,508
Secondary Curriculum Supervisors (English, Math,
Science, Social Studies), Secondary Curriculum

A. Supervisor of College ;L Career Rrgadihess, K-12 121,959 | 124,307 | 126,661 | 129,014
Supervisors

B1. Ass@stant Pr?ncipal EHMS (199), Sunset Ridge/CIBA 114,972 | 117,154 | 119,497 | 121,848
Assistant Principal

B2. | Adult Ed Supervisor 112,059 | 114,418 | 116,780 | 119,137

B3. Assistant Principal Elementary School 107,826 | 110,175 | 112,535 | 114,879
2021-22 (2.00% GWI, with step) 1 2 3 4

Al. | EHHS Principal 154,967 | 157,363 | 159,769 | 162,159

A2. | EHMS Principal, Woodland Principal 146,703 | 149,105 | 151,502 | 153,909
Elementary Principal, CIBA Principal, Sunset Ridge

A3. | Principal*, Synergy Principal, Principal of Early 140,903 | 143,307 | 145,706 | 148,107
Childhood Learning Center
EHHS First Assistant Principal, Special Education

Ad. | Supervisors, Supervisor of Professional Development & | 133,558 | 135,963 | 138,362 | 140,761
Evaluation, EHHS Assistant Principal/Scheduler
EHHS Assistant Principal, EHMS First Assistant

AS. Principal, Data Analyst/School Improvement Specialist 128,979 | 131,378 1 133,778 | 136,178
Secondary Curriculum Supervisors (English, Math,
Science, Social Studies), Secondary Curriculum

AS. Supervisor of College c;{. Career eradiness, K-12 124,398 | 126,793 | 129,194 | 131,504
Supervisors

BL. Ass@stant Pr%nc@pal EHMS (199), Sunset Ridge/CIBA 117,271 | 119,497 | 121,887 | 124,285
Assistant Principal

B2. Adult Ed Supervisor 114,300 | 116,706 | 119,116 | 121,520

B3. Assistant Principal Elementary School 109,983 | 112,379 | 114,786 | 117,177

T734919v2

-19 -




Schedule A-1

(Continued)
2022-23 (2.00% GWI, with step) 1 2 3 4
Al. | EHHS Principal 158,066 | 160,510 | 162,964 | 165,402
A2, EHMS Principal, Woodland Principal 149,637 | 152,087 | 154,532 | 156,987
Elementary Principal, CIBA Principal, Sunsct Ridge
A3. | Principal*, Synergy Principal, Principal of Early 143,721 | 146,173 | 148,620 | 151,069
Childhood Learning Center
EHHS First Assistant Principal, Special Education
Ad. Supervisors, Supervisor of Professional Development & | 136,229 | 138,682 | 141,129 | 143,576
Evaluation, EHHS Assistant Principal/Scheduler
EHHS Assistant Principal, EHMS First Assistant
AS. Principal, Data Analyst/School Improvement Specialist 131,559 | 134,006 | 136,454 | 138,902
Secondary Curriculum Supervisors (English, Math,
Science, Social Studies), Secondary Curriculum
A6, Supervisor of College & Carcer Rzadiness, K-12 126,886 | 129,329 | 131,778 | 134,226
Supervisors
Bl Assistant Pr%nc?pal EHMS (199), Sunset Ridge/CIBA 119,616 | 121,887 | 124,325 | 126,771
Assistant Principal
B2. | Adult Ed Supervisor 116,586 | 119,040 | 121,498 | 123,950
B3. | Assistant Principal Elementary School 112,183 | 114,627 | 117,082 | 119,521

Employees who have not reached the maximum step shall advance one step on the salary scale at the

beginning of the 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23 contract years.

*Notwithstanding the A.3 salary rate set forth above for the position of Sunset Ridge Principal, the
current Sunset Ridge School Principal, Daniel Catlin, shall continue to be paid at the A.2 salary rate

for as long as he holds the position of Sunset Ridge School Principal.

The East Hartford Middle School Principal and Sunset Ridge Principal shall each have $5,000 to use

in his/her discretion to assign the scheduling responsibilities of East Hartford Middle School and

Sunset Ridge School to a 10-month administrator or any teacher, in recognition of the fact that such

scheduling responsibilities will be conducted outside the regular work day for said administrator
and/or teacher.

T734919v2

-20 -




HIGH DEDUCTIBLE HEALTH PLAN
HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNT

APPENDIX B

THIS IS 4 BRIEF SUMMARY OF THE BENEFITS COVERED UNDER THE PLAN. IT IS NOT INTENDED TO BE A COMPLETE LIST OF

BENEFITS
In-Network Out-of-Network
Member pays: Memnber pays:
COST SHARE
PROVISIONS
Annual Deductible (single/ family) $2,000/$4,000
Coinsurance Not applicable 20%
Out of Pocket Maximum (Including Deductible) $4,000 / $8,000 $4,000/$8,000
(single/ family)
Lifetime Maximum Unlimited Unlimited
Single Deductible must be satisfied before any Covered Services
In-Network After Annual Out-of-Network After Annual
Deductible Deductible
PREVENTIVE CARE Member pays: Member pays:
Well child care No cost share Deductible & Coinsurance
Adult Physical examinations No cost share Deductible & Coinsurance
Other Preventive Screenings:
Routine gynecological care: pap smear & pelvic No cost share Deductible & Coinsurance
exam
Mammography, Prostate, colorectal, No cost share Deductible & Coinsurance
colonoscopy, lipid & diabetic
Hearing & Vision screening No cost share Deductible & Coinsurance
Immunizations and Vaccinations (other than those No cost share Deductible & Coinsurance
needed for travel)
) HOSPITAL SERVICES
All Inpatient Admissions Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Specialty Hospital Deductible & Coinsurance
100 days per member per Calendar Year - Deductible
additional visits are available once maximum is
met, subject to Out of Network cost shares
Outpatient Surgery in a licensed ambulatory Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
surgical center
s LT S DIAGNOSTIC SERVICES .- = 7 L Sl
Diagnostic lab and x-ray Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
High Cost Diagnostic Tests Deductible & Coinsurance
MRI, MRA, CAT, CTA, PET, and SPECT scans Deductible
-21 -

7734919v2




THERAPY SERVICES

Outpatient Rehabilitation
Outpatient Rehabilitation and restorative physical,
occupational, speech and chiropractic therapy for
up to 50 combined visits per Calendar Year.
Additional visits are available once maximum is
met, subject to Out of Network cost shares,

Deductible

Deductible & Coinsurance

Allergy Office Visit/Testing

Deductible

Deductible & Coinsurance

Allergy Injections - Immunotherapy or other
therapy treatments

Deductible

Deductible & Coinsurance

MEDICAL EMERGENCY/URGENT CARE SERVICES

Emergency Room Treatment Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Emergency cost share waive if the Member is
admitted directly to the Hospital from the
EMErgency room
Ambulance- Land & Air: Paid according to the Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance

Department of Public Health Ambulance Service
Rate Schedule

PHYSICIAN MEDICAL/SURGICAL SERVICES

Medical Office Visits

Deductible

Deductible & Coinsurance

Services of a Physician or Surgeon (Other than a
medical office visit.

Deductible

Deductible & Coinsurance

In-Network Afier Annual
Deductible
Member pays:

Out-of-Network After Annual
Deductible
Member pays.

MENTAL HEALTH

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES

Oulpatient Treatment for Mental Health Care and Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Substance Abuse Care
Inpatient Hospital Services
In a Hospital or Residential Treatment Center for Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Mental Health Care
Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Inpatient Rehabilitation Treatment for Substance
_ Abuse Care
In a Hospital or a Substance Abuse Treatment
Facility
OTHER MEDICAL SERVICES
Skilled Nursing Facility
Up to 120 days per Calendar Year Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Private Duty Nursing
Lirnited to $15,000 per Plan Year
Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Immunizations and Vaccinations for
Travel
=22

T734919v2




Prescription Drugs
Retail Pharmacy:
The maximum supply of a drug for which benefits will
be provided when dispensed under any one prescription
is a 30 day supply.

Diabetic equipment, drugs, and supplies.
Mail Order Pharmacy:
The maximum supply of a drug for which benefits will
be provided when dispensed under any one prescription

is a 90 day supply.

Diabetic equipment, drugs, and supplies.

Deductible

Deductible

Deductible & Coinsurance

Deductible & Coinsurance

Prescription drugs —afrer deductible
{when purchased from network pharmacy)

Retail (30 day supply)
$10 Tier 1 co payment
$25 Tier 2 co payment
$40 Tier 3 co payment

Mail Order (90 day supply)
$10 Tier 1 co payment
$50 Tier 2 co payment
$80 Tier 3 co payment

Deductible & Coinsurance
Per prescription

Deductible & Coinsurance
Per prescription

Human Organ and Tissue Transplant Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Unlimited Maxirmum

Home health care Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance

Nursing and therapeutic services limited to 200

visits per calendar year
Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Home health aide services limited to 80 visits that
are (applicable to the 200 visit fimif)

Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance

In the Home Hospice Medical Social Services

under the direction of a Physician Up to $420

Infusion Therapy
Unlimited lifetime maximum Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Durable Medical Equipment and Prosthetic Devices Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Hearing Aid Coverage
Available for dependent children age 12 years and
under with a maximum of $1,000 within a two year
period
Diabetic equipment and supplies
Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Ostomy Related Services
Hospice Care ( Inpatient) Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
Wig
Up to $500 maximum per Member per Plan Year
X

7734919v2




Specialized Formula Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance

Infertility Services - covered only to the levels Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance
pursuant to State of CT mandate

Office Visits
Outpatient Hospital
Inpatient Hospital
Infertility Drugs
The maximum supply of a drug for which benefits
will provided when dispensed under any one
prescription is 30 day supply

Maternity Deductible Deductible & Coinsurance

Dependent Maximum age is 26 years.

Notes to Benefit Descriptions

»  Skilled nursing facility services limited to 120 days per calendar year.

»  Home health care services are limited to 200 visits per calendar year.

e - Inpatient rehabilitative services limited to 100 days per member per calendar year.

e PT, OT, ST, and chiropractic services limited to 50 combined visits per member per calendar year.
» Inpatient hospitalizations require authorizations.

»  For a complete list of exclusions and limitations, please reference your Certificate of Coverage.

This does not constitute your health plan or insurance policy. It is only a general description
of the plan.

-24 -
7734919v2




TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

DATE: July 8, 2019

TO: Richard F. Kehoe, Chair

FROM: Mayor Marcia A. Leclerc

RE: Resolution: STP Urban System Project 42-318, LOTCIP Project L042-001

Brewer Street Reconstruction

Attached is a resolution which, when approved, will authorize the Town of East Hartford to proceed with
the Brewer Street Reconstruction Project.

The Capitol Region Council of Governments has selected this project as a regional priority and has
agreed to utilize federal funds for right-of-way, preliminary engineering and construction activities. To
date, the Town has issued a press release, ran several newspaper advertisements, mailed a notice to
abutters and officials and held a public information meeting. No opposition to the project has been
identified. At this time, a Town Council resolution supporting the funding is required.

Please place this information on the Agenda for the July 16", 2019 meeting. | recommend that the
Town Council approve this request as submitted and adopt the attached Resolution.

Thank you.

C: T. Baptist, Acting Public Works Director



RESOLUTION
of the
TOWN COUNCIL
of the
TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD, CT.

RE: Connecticut DOT Projects 42-318 & L042-0001
Brewer Street Reconstruction
Main Street (State Route 517) to 200’ east of Jefferson Lane
Approximately 3,188 LF of complete road reconstruction.

WHEREAS, the Town of East Hartford has published display advertisements, issued a
press release to local news agencies, and mailed a formal letter to both abutting property
owners and a number of officials and agencies, announcing the proposed STP Urban
Transportation project known as Brewer Street Reconstruction Project #42-318 and Local
Transportation Capital Improvements Program (LOTCIP) Project L042-0001; and

WHEREAS, a public informational meeting was held on Thursday, June 13, 2019 at the
Welling Conference Room, East Hartford Town Hall, 740 Main Street, East Hartford, CT
from 6:00 PM to 8:00 PM at which meeting residents had an opportunity to voice their
concerns as well as within a fourteen (14) day period subsequent to the meeting for
additional written comments; and

WHEREAS, the Capitol Region Council of Governments has selected this project as a
regional priority and has agreed to utilize federal funds for right-of-way, preliminary
engineering and construction activities; and

WHEREAS, the STP Urban project is located on a municipally owned road, preliminary
engineering and construction will be performed by the Town of East Hartford or its
consultant(s), and right-of-way will be performed by the Connecticut Department of
Transportation each utilizing 80% Federal funds, 10% state funds and 10% local funds
for all phases, with the Town of East Hartford contributing additional non-participating
costs; and

WHEREAS, the LOTCIP project is located on a municipally owned road, preliminary
engineering and construction will be performed by the Town of East Hartford or its
consultant(s), and right-of-way will be performed by the Connecticut Department of
Transportation utilizing 100% local funds for design and 100% state funds for right-of
way and construction; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council has considered the concerns of the residents from the
public informational meeting and the subsequent fourteen (14) day comment period and
finds that the proposed Brewer Street Reconstruction project is in the best interest of the
Town of East Hartford, and will promote the health, safety and general welfare of its
residents and provide for convenience and safety of the motoring public.



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: that the East Hartford Town Council, based
on the above information, and by virtue of this resolution, hereby fully supports the
advancement of the proposed project through final design and construction.

Richard F. Kehoe Date
Town Council Chairman



MARCIA A. LECLERC Phone: 860 291-7380
MAYOR TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD o 860 291 7280
740 Main Street

East Hartford, Connecticut 06108

DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC WORKS

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Marcia A. Leclerce '
. . . . IR B <:'_-;-§)
FROM: Tom Baptist, Acting Public Works Director _ -~ 7L /"= foleS2
DATE: July 5, 2019 N
RE: Referral to Town Council

STP Urban System Project 42-318
LOTCIP Project 1.042-001
Brewer Street Reconstruction

'T'he Town is completing a public information effort to gauge support for the project before the state-
town agreement is drafted to fund the project. The DOT requires the Town to complete the public
information process to confirm that there is no opposition to the project. To date, the Town issued a
press release, ran several newspaper advertisements, issued a press release, mailed a notice to abutters
and officials, and held a public informational meeting. No opposition to the project has been identified.

>> At this time, a Town Council resolution supporting the funding is required (see attached).

Please request that the resolution is placed on the upcoming Town Council agenda. Thank you for your
ussistunce,

I1\_State & Federal Projects\d2-318 Brewer Street 1 & II\Public Informatiom2019 PI Effort2019-07-05 Memo to Mayor for Brewer Phase.docx



TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

DATE: July 8, 2019

TO: Richard F. Kehaoe, Chair

FROM: Mayor Marcia A. Leclerckw/-

RE: Resolution: 2019 Civic Engagement Project Grant

The Town of East Hartford is eligible to apply to the Hartford Foundation for Public Giving for a Civic
Engagement Grant in the amount of $25,000. If successful, the funds will be used to enhance local
efforts to engage traditionally underrepresented voters through a nonpartisan Get Qut the Count
(GOTC) Census 2020 campaign.

Attached is a draft resolution authorizing an application to the Hartford Foundation for Public Giving for
the grant funding. Please place this information on the agenda for the July 16", 2019 meeting.

I recommend that the Town Council approve this request as submitted and adopt the attached
resolution.

Thank you.

C: E. Buckheit, Development Director
S. Morgan, Library Director
P. O'Sullivan, Grants Manager



I, Angela M. Attenello, the duly appointed Clerk of the Town Council of the Town
of East Hartford, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State
of Connecticut, hereby certify that the following is a true copy of a resolution
adopted at a meeting of the East Hartford Town Council of said corporation, duly
held on the 16th day of July, 2019

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS; the Census, as required by the United States Constitution, is vital to
our communities in determining how and where state and federal dollars are
distributed and how congressional seats are apportioned; and

WHEREAS; several census tracts in the Town of East Hartford and in Greater
Hartford as a whole have historically suffered from an undercount of vulnerable
populations; and,

WHEREAS the Hartford Foundation for Public Giving has made funding available
to increase Census 2020 awareness among hard to count residents in the
Greater Hartford region through Get Out the Count (GOTC) outreach and other
efforts,

NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED,; that Marcia A. Leclerc, Mayor of
the Town of East Hartford, is authorized to make application to, and execute and
approve on behalf of this corporation, any and all documents, contracts, and
amendments as may be required by the Hartford Foundation for Public Giving as
they pertain to this Civic Engagement Project grant.

AND | DO CERTIFY that the above resolution has not been in any way .altered,
amended, or repealed, and is now in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | do hereunto set my hand and affix the corporate seal
of said Town of East Hartford the __ day of July, 2019.

Seal Signed:

Angela M. Attenello, Council Clerk



TOWN COUNCIL RESOLUTION
GRANT INFORMATION FORM

Grant Description:  Civic Engagement Project Grant

Funder: Hartford Foundation for Public Giving
Grant Amount; $25.000

Frequency: One time [ Annual (] Biennial [ Other

First year received: N/A

Last 3 years received: N/A N/A N/A

Funding level by year:  $ N/A SN/A $ N/A

Is a local match required? [ Yes X No

If yes, how much?  Not applicable

From which account? Not applicable

Grant purpose: The Civic Engagement Project seeks to enhance local efforts to engage
traditionally underrepresented voters through a nonpartisan Get Qut the
Count (GOTC) Census 2020 campaign.

Results achieved: Increased Census participation by traditionally underreported groups in the
Town of East Hartford.

Duration of grant: September 1, 2019 through February 28. 2020

Status of application: Submitted (July 12, 2019 due date)

Meeting attendee: Library Director Sarah Morgan. x4340

t

Comments: "The Town is applying for the grant with the Library as the lead agency.
Grant activities will involve other Town departments and East Hartford

CONNects, as well as community nonprofits and agencies. The Raymond

Library Company, a 531(c)3, will serve as the fiscal agent for the grant. as
per the Foundation’s requirements. The deadline for the application
prevents Council consideration prior to submission. The Town retains the
right to withdraw the application if Council approval is not secured."”




GRANTS ADMINISTRATION

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Marcia A. Leclerc

,
FROM: Paul O*Sullivan, Grants Manager 22,

SUBJECT: Council Resolution — Application to the Hartford Foundation for Public
Giving for a 2019 Civic Engagement Project Grant

DATE: July 5, 2019

Attached is a draft Town Council resolution authorizing you as Mayor to apply to the
Hartford Foundation for Public Giving (HFPG) for a 2019 Civic Engagement Project
Grant.:

The Library is currently working with several community organizations to apply for a
Civic Engagement Grant from the HFPG. If successful, the funds will be used to enhance
local efforts to engage traditionally underrepresented voters through a nonpartisan Get
Out the Count (GOTC) Census 2020 campaign.

An excerpt from the HFPG website concerning the Civic Engagement Project Grant
Program is attached for your information.

I respectfully request that this item be placed on the Town Council agenda for their
meeting to be held on July 16, 2019. Please contact me at extension 7206 if you have any
questions.

Attachments: as stated

Cc:  Eileen Buckheit, Development Director
Sarah Morgan, Library Director



Hartford Foundation Civic Engagement
Project 2019: Request for Proposals

Hartford Foundation Civic Engagement Project:
Get Out the Count (GOTCO)

Request for Proposals

Hartford Foundation Civic Engagement Project
June, 2019

Consistent with Hartford Foundation's strategic priorities, our region's progress requires
broader awareness of critical issues and meaningful civic engagement by diverse
residents.

Get Out the Count

Census 2020 is less than a year away. The Census, as required by the United States
Constitution, is vital to our communities. It determines how state and federal dollars are
distributed and how congressional seats are apportioned. The data collected through the
census impacts policies and programs in the public, nonprofit, and private sectors. In our
region, hard-to-count tracts include Hartford, East Hartford and Manchester with the
highest non-response being in Hartford (70%); Manchester (17%) and East Hartford
(13%).

As critical as the Census is to every community in the United States, the 2020 Census has
been plagued by leadership transitions at the Census Bureau, low levels of funding,
implementation of new technology, and the proposed addition of a citizenship question.
At the local level, this has resulted in a lack of information, promulgation of
misinformation, and heightened fear, and there is real risk of not achieving a fair and
accurate count for the 2020 Census. This would have long-term and devastating effects
on our region.

Funding Opportunity

The Hartford Foundation for Public Giving is pleased to announce continued funding
support under its Civic Engageinent Project. This project seeks to both enhance local
efforts to increase Census 2020 awareness among hard to count residents in the Greater
Hartford region through GOTC outreach and other efforts.

Hartford Foundation for Civic Engagement Project: Get out the Count is an effort
by the Hartford Foundation to increase participation in the 2020 Census, particularly
among residents of hard-to-count tracts in Hartford, East Hartford and Manchester. Get
out the Count objectives are to increase the distribution of accurate information about



participating in the Census, and to engage all residents to complete a Census
questionnaire once and in the right place. Our grants seek to support organizations in
reaching residents from locations or populations that have been undercounted in previous
years' census.

What are Census 2020 Get out the Count activities?

« Census information dissemination,

» (Census 2020 participation outreach particularly among hard to count populations
including but not limited to children 0 to 5 years of age, seniors, immigrants,
veterans, and people with disabilities.

» Questionnaire completion via online, phone, or by mail.

« Other related civic education efforts that promote the Census and its importance.

General Eligtbility for Get out the Count Grants:

» Significant portion of the work will benefit residents of the Hartford Foundation's
29-town region.

» Have an ability to engage undercounted residents. Communities reached should
include people from one or more of the following target groups: 1) people of color,
particularly Hispanics of any race and Black voters, 2) young people, especially
those between the ages of 18-24, and/or 3) residents of Hartford and/or undercounted
census tracts in East Hartford, and Manchester.

» Can conduct the work for this grant starting from September 1, 2019 forup to a
period of 18 months.

« Are a 501(c)(3) nonprofit. Community groups that are not incorporated can use
another 501(c)(3) organization as a fiscal agent.

« Board of directors and staff are representative of the racial/ethnic diversity of the
region served.

Grants Inciude:

» A project grant of up to $25,000.
+ Resources, materials, and tools for a successful Census 2020 program.

About the Hartford Foundation for Public Giving:

The Hartford Foundation is the community foundation jor the 29-town Greater Hartford,
Connecticut region, dedicated to improving the quality of life for area residents. One of
the oldest and largest community foundations in the country, the Hartford Foundation
receives gifts from thousands of generous individuals, families and organizations, and
works with them to help them achieve their charitable goals. Since 1925, the Foundation
has awarded grants of more than $720 million and provided a host of other support and
training services to a broad range of area nonprofit organizations. Through its Nonprofit
Support Program, the Foundation also helps improve the capacity and performance of
the region's nonprofit agencies.



TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

DATE: July 8, 2019

TO: Richard F. Kehoe, Chair
FROM: Mayor Marcia A. Leclere
RE: Resolution: Project Safe Neighborhood Grant

The Town of East Hartford is eligible to apply to the United States Attorney’s Office, District of
Connecticut for a grant funding under the Project Safe Neighborhoods Program. The grant program is
designed to fund innovative projects to reduce gun and gang-related violence and promoted safe
communities across the state.

The Town seeks funding in the amount of $48,060 to benefit the Adventure Plus program. The program
aims to bring together at-risk youth and police officers together for a day of teambuilding activities, a
lunch meal, and dialogue developed to build stronger refationship and understanding between the two
groups.

Attached is a draft resolution authorizing an application to the United States Attorney’s Office, District
of Connecticut for the grant funding. Please place this information on the agenda for the July 16%, 2019
meeting. | recommend that the Town Council approve this request as submitted and approve the
attached resolution.

Thank you.

C E. Buckheit, Development Director
P. O'Suliivan, Grants Manager
C. Nolen, Youth Services Director



t, Angela M. Attenello, the duly appointed Clerk of the Town Council of the Town
of East Hartford, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State
of Connecticut, hereby certify that the following is a true copy of a resolution
adopted at a meeting of the East Hariford Town Council of said corporation, duly
held on the 16th day of July, 2019

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS; the United States Attorney’s Office, District of Connecticut has made
grant funds available through the Project Safe Neighborhoods Program and;

WHEREAS; this program is designed to fund innovative projects to reduce gun
and gang-related violence and;

WHEREAS; the Adventure Plus Program was developed to improve the
relationship between the police and the youth of East Hartford

NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED,; that Marcia A. Leclerc, Mayor of
the Town of East Hartford, is authorized to make application to, and execute and
approve on behalf of this corporation, any and all documents, contracts, and
amendments as may be required by the United States Attorney’s Office, District
of Connecticut as they pertain to this Project Safe Neighborhoods grant.

AND 1 DO CERTIFY that the above resolution has not been in any way altered,
amended, or repealed, and is now in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | do hereunto set my hand and affix the corporate seal
of said Town of East Hartford the _ day of July, 2019.

Seal Signed:

Angela M. Atienello, Council Clerk



Grant Description:

Funder:

(Grant Amount;

TOWN COUNCIL RESOLUTION
GRANT INFORMATION FORM

Project Safe Neighborhoods

United States Attorney’s Office, District of Connecticut

$48.060

Frequency: X Onetime [ Annual (J Biennial [ Other

First year received:

Last 3 years received:

Funding level by year:  § N/A $N/A $N/A

N/A

NA  NA  NA

Is a local match required? [ Yes X No

If yes, how much?

N/A

From which account? N/A

Grant purpose:

Results achieved:

Duration of grant:

Status of application:

Meeting attendee:

Comments:

To fund innovative projects to reduce gun and gang-related violence.

Program seeks to fund projects that will enhance progress toward the
following priorities:

e Gun and Gang Crime Investigation/Suppression
e Firearms Analysis

e Training

e Prevention/Education Programs

One Year

Under development

Youth Services Director Cephus Nolen, x7181

Town application seeks funding for the Adventure Plus program. This

program aims to bring together at-risk youth and police officers together
for a day of teambuilding activities, a lunch meal, and dialogue developed

to build stronger relationships and understanding between the two groups.




GRANTS ADMINISTRATION

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Marcia A. Leclerc
FROM: Paul O’Sullivan, Grants ManageW

SUBJECT: Council Resolution — Application to the United States Attorney’s Office
for a Project Safe Neighborhoods Grant

DATE: July 5,2019

Attached is a draft Town Council resolution authorizing you as Mayor to apply to the
United States Attorney’s Office, District of Connecticut, for a grant under the Project
Safe Neighborhoods Program.

This grant program is designed to fund innovative projects to reduce gun and gang-related
violence. The overall goal for this initiative is to promote safe communities across the
state through the reduction of gun violence and gang activity, with special focus on areas
with increased rates of violent crime/gang activity. I have attached more information on
Project Safe Neighborhoods.

The Town’s application seeks funding for the Adventure Plus program. This program,
started in 2012, aims to bring together at-risk youth and police officers together for a day
of teambuilding activities, a lunch meal, and dialogue developed to build stronger
relationships and understanding between the two groups. I have attached more
information on Adventure Plus.

In 2017, the state agency funding Adventure Plus changed its guidelines and informed the
Town that police officer salaries would no longer be an eligible expense under its grant
program. This resulted in a suspension of the Adventure Plus program until an alternate
funding source could be located. The Project Safe Neighborhoods affords the Town an
opportunity the restart this effective program.

I respectfully request that this item be placed on the Town Council agenda for their
meeting to be held on July 16, 2019. Please contact me at extension 7206 if you have any

questions.

Attachments: as stated

Cc:  Eileen Buckheit, Development Director
Cephus Nolen, Youth Services Director



PROJECT SAFE NEIGHBORHOODS

2018 Application Guidelines and Procedures

Introduction

The Office of the United States Attorney (USAQ), District of Connecticut has been designated to
receive funds for the Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) grant program. This program is
designed to fund innovative projects to reduce gun and gang-related violence. The Justice
Education Center, Inc.(JEC) has been designated as the fiscal agent to administer these funds in
Connectcut.

This document provides potential applicants with program criteria and eligibility information so
that formal application proposals may be prepared. Please contact Laura Whitacre at The Justice
Education Center, Inc. at (860) 231-8180 or Laura@justiceeducationcenter.org to request
technical assistance. Additional information can also be obtained regarding the Project Safe
Neighborhoods initiative by visiting the official program website at https://www.justice.gov/psn.

Eligible Applicants

Project Safe Neighborhoods grant awards may be made to law enforcement agencies, state
agencies, local units of government, and non-profit agencies. A "local unit of government" is
defined as any city, town, township, or other general purpose political subdivision of a state.

Deadline

The PSN grant program for the District of Connecticut will accept applications until 5:00 pm
Monday, July 29, 2019. Applications must be submitted to both, AUSA Michael Gustafson
at Mike.Gustafson@usdoj.gov and Sherry Haller, Executive Director of Justice Education
Center at JusticeEducation@aol.com.

Funding Policies

A. Programs funded under PSN must be twelve months in length. Note: Second or
subsequent year funding is not guaranteed. New and continuation projects will
compete equally each year. In such a competitive environment, “need” and the
use of effective data-driven strategies will be key factors for funding selections, in
addition to evaluating performance results.

B. All subgrantees will agree to abide by all applicable guidelines, including grant
Terms and Conditions and any Special Conditions.

C. PSN funds can be used to fund salaries and fringe benefits; necessary equipment;

contractual services when applicable; travel and training costs; and other needed
supplies.

Page 1



Funding Priorities

The overall goal for this initiative is to promote safe communities across the state through the
reduction of gun violence and gang activity, with special focus on areas with increased rates of
violent crime/gang activity. Toward that goal, the program seeks to fund projects that will
enhance progress toward the below priorities. However, innovative projects outside of these
priorities which are aimed at reducing firearm and gang violence will also be considered.

L.

Gun and Gang Crime Investigation/Suppression: Programs (or task forces) to
target perpetrators of gun and gang-related crimes. This can include the illegal
possession of firearms, the illegal sale of guns or crimes proven to be committed
to benefit a gang/group. Multi-agency cooperation should be demonstrated (e.g.
both state and federal involvement).

Firearms Analysis: Programs that should enhance and provide support for state
and Jocal law enforcement agencies that analyze firearms and ballistic evidence
(including NIBIN anatysis and tracing of firearms).

Training: Training to enhance the effective implementation of PSN programs
both local and statewide. Agencies and departments are encouraged to choose
topics such as gang investigations, firearms investigations and crime gun
identification and tracking.

Prevention/Education Programs: Programs that establish adult and/or juvenile
prevention, education courses on firearm safety and laws regarding gun-related
offenses, Gang Resistance Education and Training (G.R.E.A.T.), youth mentoring
programs, community gang awareness training, offender notification call-ins, and
re-entry programs are suggested.

Matching Requirement

Funding will provide for 100% of project costs. No cash or in-kind match will be required.

Guidelines for the Use of Grant Funds

A. Allowable Expenses:

1.

Personnel, overtime, training as a component of an overall program, equipment, and
supplies are allowable expenses. All expenditures must be related to the
implementation of an actual program. This program must be defined in the program
narrative sections of the application. '

All grant-funded personnel must have one hundred percent of their time dedicated to
grant activities (See also all non-supplanting provisions in the Grant Terms and
Conditions.).

Page 2



UINOA % 321|0d UdaM139
sdiysuone|ay Ja119g buip|ing HLMDA

IH0ALHHH 1SH3

51JIN41S




"siaguinu 3soyl Ul Joidey bullngruiuod sanisod
B SEM aAlRNIUL SNTd FINLNIAQY DU 9A31[3q M "WIISAS 1IN0 3IUSAN[ 3]
Ul paAJOAUL 10U 3Jam OYm SYINOA G € JO 9SBAIDUI UB pUB S1SDUIe (3G JO UOIIdNpaJ B -
Sjella)ad gy §G 1 pue S1Sadle 3]IusAnl zgz auam a4yl ‘S 102 Ul "9yl 2yl 01 sjeltasau
0Z 1 3J9M 343yl pue S1sadte 3[IU3AN[ ZO§ spew 3d1|od piojiieH 1seq ‘21027 U]
"AllUNW WO N0 Ul S3SaJJ4e 3|1USAN[ Ul uondNpal e paldeduwl A|gelou Sey SIDIAIDS
YINOA pue Ssjooyds dijqnd 3yl ‘wawinedsaq 931j0d 9yl uaamiaq uollelodqe|jod 2yl 0O

"S9DUIJJO SNILIS JO Jeuiwid J3Yl 104 Y[ p40j1ieH 1587 3Y) 0] pa.lajal ud(
pey wesboud syi1 uj paredidilied saey oym siuspnis ayl Jo %0€ ARrewixoiddy O

‘140 Aep 49yl uo weaboud
9yl J40Mm 01 paiallun|oA (YinoA yum Apdadip diom 01 paubisse asoyl pue s,0¥S
‘s10sinladns Bulpn|ox9) siadl440 jo43ed 91q1biI2 3yl 40 %08 ‘Dwi siyl buung O

‘P40j1eH 1Se] Ul Sjooyds Unoj je (| -9 sapelb ul ‘g -2 | sebe) weisboud ayy ul
payedidiied syinoA 0S| 1noge Z 10z PUe 2102 jo bunds ayy usamiag M

2102 jo bunds syy ur uebaq aA13eINUl SNTd TININTAAY YL D

G AR e

Viva



SSe|D> 3y1 Jo uoneanp inoybnoayl siamsue B suonsanb usdp .

ssuoayl  d11-0, ® ulejdwo) o) Aldwor, uo suolsshdsig -

SOLIBURDS WOOISSE|D 3AIDRIIIUI YINOA/3d]j0d JO UOIIDIDS

S9SIDI9X? 1 SaWebh buip|inquesl sAIIDBIDIUI JO UOIIDIDS .

papianoad youn| AyyjesH .

papinosd J31em pa|110q pue sydeus AylesH .

(SS94p [ensed ul) SJad144Q 3D1|0d (2) oML

UOISS3S 31 peaj 01 SI0IR}|IDB) YIBIIINO SIDIAIDS YINOA 240W 10 (Z) OM] -
(SIUapnN1s Yim sinoy 4noy) weidboud dnoy (S) ALl V

ueipienb/iualed e Aq paubis 3q 1snw ajeddied 031 dijs UOISSIWIBY -
(S.0YUS / SI921}JO YINOA 10U) 15| SWILISA0 Aq pap1IuSpl SI9DJO 321|0d
(YanoA ysu-ybiy e 10u) 4jeis jooydss Aq pa3129|3s swuapnis bunedipiued .
il 241 Aq pauiajal aq Aew sjuapnis bunedpiued .

FUALINYLS WV




TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

DATE: July 8, 2019

TO: Richard F. Kehoe, Chair —~

FROM: Mayaor Marcia A. LeclerCM
RE: Resolution: Youth Service Bureau Grant

The Town of East Hartford is once again eligible for funding under the State Department of Children and
Families Youth Service Bureau (YSB) Grant program. The town will apply to the 2019-2021 Connecticut
State Department of Children and Families Youth Service Bureau Grant Program.

The Town will be required to provide a local match of 100%, which will come from already-budgeted
Youth Services’ funds and grants. The YSB grant will provide our Youth Services department with funding
for administration, counseling and programming. The amount of the grant is yet to be determined.

Attached is a draft resolution authorizing an application to the State Department of Children and
Families for the grant funding. Please place this information on the agenda for the July 16%™, 2019
meeting. | recommend that the Town Council approve this request as submitted and adopt the attached
resolution.

Thank you.
C:  P.O'Sullivan, Grants Manager

E. Buckheit, Development Director
C. Nolen, Director of Youth Services



I, Angela M. Attenello, do hereby certify that | am the Council Clerk of the Town of East
Hartford, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Connecticut having its principal place of business at 740 Main Street, East Hartford.

The following is a true and correct copy of a resolution, duly adopted and ratified by the
Town of East Hartford Town Council on July 16, 2019, in accordance with the
constituent charter of the Town of East Hartford; and the same have not in any way been
modified, repealed or rescinded, but are in full force and effect.

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Connecticut Department of Children and Families has made available
funding through the Youth Service Bureau Grant Program, and;

WHEREAS, the purpose of this program is to assist municipalities (or private agencies
serving youth which are designated to act as agents for such municipalities), in
establishing, maintaining or expanding such Youth Service Bureaus,

NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED: that Marcia A. Leclerc, Mayor of the
Town of East Hartford, is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of this municipality a
grant application to the State of Connecticut Department of Children and Families for a
“Youth Service Bureau Grant” and to file any amendments or reports as may be required
to successfully complete the terms of the grant contract.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that That Marcia A. Leclerc is currently serving as Mayor
of the Town of East Hartford. Her current term of office began on November 13, 2017
and will continue until November 11, 2019. As the Mayor, Marcia A. Leclerc serves as
the Chief Executive Officer for the Town of East Hartford, and is duly authorized to enter
into agreements and contracts on behalf of the Town of East Hartford.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | do hereunto set my hand and affix the corporate seal of said
Town of East Hartford this day of July, 2018.

Angela M. Attenello, Town Council Clerk

Seal



TOWN COUNCIL RESOLUTION
GRANT INFORMATION FORM

Grant Description: ~ Youth Service Bureau Grant Program

Funder: State Department of Children and Families
Grant Amount; To be determined

Frequency: [ Onetime [ Annual (4 Biennial [ Other

First year received: 2001*

Last 3 years received: 018 017 016

Funding level by year:  $43.652 $43.652  $43.652

Is a local match required? B4 Yes I No

If yes, how much? 100 percent of grant amount

From which account? Match comes from already-budgeted Youth Services funds and grants

Grant purpose: The Youth Service Bureau Grant Program seeks to assist municipalities in
establishing, maintaining or expanding Youth Service Bureaus.

Results achieved: Youth Service Bureaus are organized to provide administrative services,
including an assessment of youth needs and the coordination of services
for youth, and direct services for youth that may include recreational
activities, individual and group counseling, parent training and family
therapy and others

Duration of grant: Two years, with funds distributed annually (Town submits application in
year one and programmatic budget update in year two).

Status of application: Under development

Meeting attendee; Youth Services Director Cephus Nolen, x7181

Comments: *Grants Office records for this program go back to 2001. It is likely the
Town received this grant prior to that date. The state has operated this

grant program since 1979




GRANTS ADMINISTRATION

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Marcia A. Leclerc
FROM: Paul O’Sullivan, Grants Manager_@nd%

SUBJECT: Council Resolution — State Department of Children and Families Youth
Service Bureau Grant

DATE: July 5, 2019

The State Department of Children and Families (DCF) makes grant funds available to
local Youth Service Burcaus to support a number of Youth Services Activities. The Town
of East Hartford will apply to the 2019 - 2021 Connecticut State Department of Children
and Families Youth Service Bureau Grant Program.
These grant funds will support:

A. The positions of Director, Counseling Coordinator, and Program Coordinator;

B. Counseling services;

C. Program services including, but not limited to, positive youth development
programs. '

The specific amount of the grant is yet to be determined. Last year’s grant totaled
$43,652.

I respectfully request that the attached resolution be placed on the Town Council agenda
for the July 16, 2019 meeting. This resolution will allow you to make application and

execute documents related to the DCF grant.

Please contact me at extension 7206 if you have any questions.

Attachments (2)

Cc: Eileen Buckheit, Development Director
Cephus Nolen, Youth Services Director



L

IL.

2019-21 Youth Service Bureau Grant Application

Purpose and General Information

The purpose of the Youth Service Bureau (YSB) Grant Program is to assist municipalities
and private youth-serving organizations designated to act as agents for municipalities in
establishing, maintaining or expanding such YSBs.

Overview

Local communities began to develop YSBs in the 1960°s as a response to a growing number
of issues affecting youth. The role of the YSBs has been expanded to include both advocacy
and coordination of a comprehensive service delivery system for youth. YSBs are organized
to provide:

1. Administrative services, including an assessment of youth needs and the coordination
of services for youth.
2. Direct services for youth that may include:
* recreational activities:
¢ individual and group counseling;
¢ parent training and family therapy;
¢ work placement and employment counseling;
¢ alternative and special educational opportunities;
s outreach programs;
s teen pregnancy services;
* suspension/expulsion services;
¢ diversion from juvenile justice services;
e preventive programs including youth pregnancy, youth suicide, violence, alcohol
and drug use; and
* programs that develop positive youth involvement.
3. Administrative core unit functions which include:
» general administration;
e research;
e resource development;
* community involvement; and
s youth advocacy.

Additionally, each YSB is required to have an advisory board responsible for making
recommendations on overall policy and program direction of the YSB.

The number of YSBs participating in the state’s grant program has increased from 56 YSBs
serving 71 towns in 1979-80 to 102 bureaus serving 145 towns in 2018-19. State funding for
the grant program has increased from $900,000 in 1979-80 to a high of $3.3 million in 1994-
95. The program was funded at $2,598,486 in 2018-19.



] ARTFORD TELEPHONE

(860) 528-4401

FAX (860) 289-1249

SCOTT M. SANSOM \Seht

Ly
CHIEF OF POLICE East Hartfo )*’IQ{
EC

www.easthartfordct.gov

it 06108-2638
July 10, 2019

Richard F. Kehoe, Chairman
East Hartford Town Council
740 Main Street

East Hartford, CT 06108

Re: Outdoor Amusement Permit Application -
“Summerfield Summer Bash”

Dear Chairman Kehoe:

Attached please find the amusement permit application from Summerfield
Townhouses by Angela Elder its Property Manager. The applicant seeks an
amusement permit for the purpose of holding a Summerfield Summer Bash event to be
held at Summerfield Townhouses, 66 Plain Drive on Tuesday, July 23, 2019 from 12
PMto 4 PM. The event will include bounce houses, food truck and a DJ providing
music.

Pursuant to Town Ordinance (TO) 5-3, a review of the application was completed by
the Directors of the Fire, Health, Parks and Recreation, and Public Works
Departments as well as the Offices of Corporation Counsel and Finance.

The Inspections and Permits Department states that permits and inspections may be
required for temporary installations.

The Fire Department conducted a review and approves subject to the following
conditions:

e« Fire Marshal will have to ihspect bounce house, tent and food truck.

*» There are no anticipated cost to the department.
The Health Department approves the application as submitted and states there is no
anticipated cost for this event.
The Risk Management Department approves the application as submitted.
The Public Works Department conducted a review and approved the application as
submitted and states there are no anticipated cost to the department.

The Parks and Recreation has conducted a review of the application and approved
the application as submitted.

The Office of Corporation Counsel has no concerns or comments and approves the
application as submitted.

The Police Department conducted a review and approved the application as



submitted and the following comment/recommendation is made:

¢ The Police Department can provide adequate police protection for this event.
The proposed site is suitable for the proposed amusement, the crowd is of
moderate size, and the area has sufficient parking available.

« This event can be conducted with a minimal impact upon the surrounding

neighborhoods and a near-normal flow of traffic on the streets adjacent to the
site can be maintained. '

s In the event that the police manpower required for this event exceeds the
Department's normal patrol complement, some overtime hiring may be
necessary. The number of officers and cost of such overtime hiring is yet to be

determined. As an event that is not Town sponsored, this expense will have to
be borne by the applicant.

Sincerely,

S S

Scott Sansom
Chief of Police

cc:
Applicant



TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD POLICE DEPARTMENT

OUTDOCR AMUSEMENT PERMITS
31 SCHOOL STREET
EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108-2638
(860) 528-4401

OUTDOOR AMUSEMENT PERMIT
APPLICATION

Marcia A. Leclere Scott M, Sansom

Mayor Chief of Police

THIS APPLICATION IS DUE NOT LESS THAN 38 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EVENT APPLIED FOR

L.

Name of Event: SUm M2 CFelD g.u malet_ ’2:'\1]—!
Dae(s) of Event: S abd A%, Fas¥

Applicant’s name, home & work phone numbers, home address, and ¢-mail address (NOTE: If applicane is
& partnership, corporation, limited liability company, club or association give the full legal name of the
Applicant } :
g{.tm_gkzer =D TOMNHOUSE ¢
balo tTain D2 i

ERST Hnexboen. G Dus
&d- 34 - 0220
BELOER. @ hall teen . dom

If Applicant is a partrership, corporation, limited lability company , club, or association, list the names of
all partners, members, directors and officers AND provide their business address,

Oy DNTVeche &

List the location of the proposed amusement: (Name of facility and address)
Mmmed el "T‘Dg.)ﬂhd\.!&-&i
W YL fe o AST HAET0 , LT Dbilg

loto.
List the dates and hours of operation for each day {if location changes on a particuiar day, please fist):
Auly, A5.285F Twe s L pna - ‘-}'.pn

Provide a detailed description of the proposcd amasement: .
onnce Pruses, Foo0 TRudk, O3 Musc

TEVT BoNEO Ferm Gavary

EHPD FORM # 127, Revised 01-10-14 Page [ of 4 pages



8. Will music or other ententainment be provided wholly or partially omdoors?

E Yes DNO

2. II'YES,” during what days and hours will music or enteriainment be provided (nore: !hisci,s
different from hours of operation)? =2 em - Yermn ,:;uj;g Fa deF

9. What is the expected age group(s) of paricipanis? Towonhoealo
O= oo oy Kemoernts m'—‘] o0 Sompmerfield T

10. What is the expected attendance at the propased amusement:
{If more than one pecformance, indicate time / day / date and anticipated attendance for each.)

200

11. Provide 2 detailed description of the proposcd amusement’s anticipaied impact on the surrounding
commiunily. Please comment on each topic below:
2. Crowd size impact:

Mo 1mMPACT = AL (20O bn fYeA op h— 70 Plas Dhve

b.  Traffic control and flow plan at sile & impact on surrounding / supporting streets: '

. - _ : vl
Motte  « Vaine PAunta LoT | bbchisd 10 Alad DU
c.  Parking plan on site & impact on surroumding / supporting streets:
V2uaTe - Paric List -

d.  Noise impact on neighborhood:
N owse

. Trash & litter contmo] plan for the amusement site and surrcunding community during and immediately
afier the proposed amusement:

Nt ceMent Srape
. List cxpected general disruption to neighborhood"s normal life and activities:

Myoune.
Other expecied influence on surrounding neighborhood:

Move
12, Provide a dewiled plan for the YRS
2. Accesshbility of amusement site to emcrgency, police, fire & medical personnel and vehicles:

Ao iackaD O eress bl

b.  Provisions for notification of proper authorilies in the case of an emesgency:

qn

¢ Any provision lor on-site emergency medical services:

d.  Crowd control plan:

P Atement <Trtf

. If on town property, the plan for the return of the amusement sile to pre-amusement condition;

I Provisjon of sanitary facilites:

£S - C £ T o <7
13, Wikl fmdbcpmvidm’%cw?d,nl:ergd G, Aberrmen Commontd Rover

et Sx O

Food avaitable [ Yes [ ] No AND contact has been made with the Esst Hartford Fealth

Department E‘!cs [(Iwe.
EHPD FORM # 127, Revised 01-10-14 Page 2 of 4 pages

h\—\h’\



14. Docs the proposed amusement invotve the sate and/or provision of alcoholic beverages (o amusement
altendees,

[Ives BNo  Alcoholic beverages will be served / provided.
I *YES', describe, in detail, 2ay end all amangements and what procedures shall be employed:
a. Forsuch sale or provision,

b. To ensure that aleoho! is aot sold or provided Lo minars or intoxicated parsuns.

D Check if copy of the liquor permit, as required by State Taw, is inctuded with application,

15. Include any other information which the applicant desms relevant {ie: time waivers and fee waiver requests
should go hers);

CGS Sec. 53a-157. Falsc Statement: (lass A Misdemeanor,

A person is guilty of False Statement when he intentionally makes a false written statement under oath or
pursuant o g form bearing notice, authorized by law, ta the effect that false stmtements made therein are
punishable, which he does nat believe to be true and which stalement is intended to mislead a public servant in
the performance of his official duties.

8.  False Statement is a Class A Misdemeanor.

b.  The penalty for a Class A Misdemeanor is imprisonment for a term not (o exceed one (1) year, or g
fine not to exceed 51,000, or both a fine and imprisonment.

I declare, under the penalties of False Statement, that the information provided in this application is true and correct
lo the best of my knowledge:

Summeaieis Townhassee
gal Name of Applicant) .
Q) Moo gec oo

(Applicant Signawre) {Printed Name) (Date Signed)

Yﬁuaum MATRLH

' (Cogheity in whict{figning)

(Scnd application elcctronicaliy o cfrok @easthanfordet gov)

FOR OFFICE USE

Insurance Cenificate Included: YES NO
Liquor Permit Included: YES NO
Certificate of Alcohol Liability Included: YES NO
Time Waiver Request Included: YES NO
Fee Waiver Request Included: YES NO
EHPD FORM # 127, Revired 01-10-14 Page 3 of 4 pages



Rcccived By: /Pa/%/ U N OL/ ph MYL
Employce Number, ? O L{

Date & Time Signed: lﬂlz-? l ‘ z _'D_: ‘ﬁq IAICI BM

Time remaining before event: <2'5-. days.

If roads or sidewalks will be closed to public use as a result of this event (he applicant rust comply with signage
requirements per Section 5-4 and present a signed afTidavit attesting to this at the Town Council meeting,

EHPD FORM # 127, Reviced 01-10- 14 Page 4 of 4 pages

\\\M



ﬁ

S UM ME RFIEL D
TOWNHOUSES

L

NAMES AND ADDRESS OF PRINCIPALS

NAME POSITION ADDRESS PHONE#
Andyew P, Bumes President 1400 Providence Highway, Suite 1000, 781-762-4800
Norwood, MA 02062
John L. Hall Il 2000 Trust 20 University Road, Cambridge, MA 617-523-1710
02138
Denison M. Hall 40 Beach Street, Suite 203, 978-526-8120
Manchester, MA 01944
Steven Wheeler 4509 Spring Island, Cokatle, SC 29909 843-987-0486
Mark Hess 1400 Providence Highway, Suite 1000, 781-762-4800
Norwood, MA 02062
William Hoffman 10 Richards Road, Lynnfield, MA 617-966-7733
01940




) &
ACORD
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE [MM/DDIYYYY)
7/1/2019

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
If SUBROGATION 15 WAIVED, sublect to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to tha certificate holder in liev of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER 1RésokFStéate |§? Eﬁ“m lany CONTACT
ederat i, oor FHONE aaf FAX = i
Boston, MA 02110 Hiaic. £17-330-5700 | A% ne:  617-439-3752
ADDRESS:
INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIG #

INSURER & ; Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

INSURED
HaillKeen Management, Inc

INSURER B: Federal Insurance Company

1400 Providence Hg;hway Suite 1000 INSURER € ;
Norwoed MA 0208 INSURER D ¢
INSURERE :
INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 497238086

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WATH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE PCLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

SUSR]
i TYPE OF INSURANCE ﬁ ?bjm POLICY NUMBER (RDOI Y ;ﬁﬂr"ﬁgfv%xvg'a Limrs
A | / | GCOMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY PHPK1979514 5/15/2018 | 5M5/2020 | gACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
A
—l GLAIMS-MADE | / | GCCUR PREMISES (Ea sccurance) __} §1,000.000
|| MED EXP (Any one persan) 55,000
L PERSONAL & ADVINJURY [ $1,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APFLIES PER- GENERAL AGGREGATE 52,000,000
roucy | |58 1/ o PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | 52,000,000
QTHER. Deductible SNone
A | AUTOMOBILELIABILITY PHPK1979514 5/15/2019 |5/15/2020 | E“QE‘LNED,S'NGLE LMIT V51 000,000
ANY ALTO HODILY INJURY (Per parsen} | §
[ 1 owneD SCHEDULED -
o [] B o e
¥ | AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | (Per accigent s
s
A |y |umRELLALAB | /| nocur PHUBB75287 5/M15/201S | 5/15/2020 | pacH OCCURRENCE 525,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $25,000,000
pep | | ReTenmions 10,000 s
WORKERS COMPENSATION PgR Q7H-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY N s | 2%
ANYPROPRIETORIPARTNERIEXECUTIVE E L EACH ACCIDENT s
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA
[Mandatary in NH) £ L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] §
If yas, dascriba under
DESGRIFTION GF OPERATIONS below E L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT [ §
B |Excess Liability 79861076 5115/2019 | 5/15/2020 |Excess Liability 525,000,000

RE: Summerfield Townhouses

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS { LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Addilonal Remarks Schedula, may bu attachad if more epace Is raguired)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Town of East Hartford
740 Main Street
East Hartford CT 06108

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
AGGORDANGE WITH THE POLIGY FROVISIONS,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
—_—

W) 2z /‘/\ [
ety ( ey o~
Michae! Christian o

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved,

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

49723806 | 13/20 East Hartfoyd Egtates/Swmerfield | Joannm Trinh | 7/1/2015 12:41:16 BM {2DT) | Fage 3 of 3




AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC #
e I
ACORD ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page  of
[agency NAMED INSURED
Risk Strategies Company 114336( %ergv%%?n?:%emeﬂ\l&aigc'smte 1000
POLICY RUMBER Norwood MA G206:
CARRIER NAIC CODE
EFFEGTIVE DATE:
ADDITIONAL REMARKS
THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TC ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: Cerlificate of Liability (03/16)

HCOLDER: Town of East Hartford
ADDRESS: 740 Main Street East Martford CT 06108

Lecation:

East Hartford Estates/Summerfield
66 Plain Drive a/k/a €7 Plain Drive, East Hartford, CT 06118

Description of Operations/Locations/Vehicles:

ACORD 101 (2008/01)
The ACORD name and logo are registerad marks of ACORD

49723806 | 19/30 East Hartford Estatea/Summerfield | Joanne Trinh [ 7/1/2019 12:41:16 ¥M {EDT) | Page 2 of 2

® 2008 ACCRD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ATTACHMENT



SCHEDULE OF ADDITIONAL NAMED INSUREDS e e

71112018

NAMED INSURED: CERTIFICATE HOLDER:

HailKeen Management, Inc. Town of East Hartford

1400 Providence Highway Suite 1000 740 Main Street

Norwood MA 02062 East Hartford CT 06108
[Named Insured 1 Named Insured dba
HallKeen East Hariford, LP
HallKeen Management, Inc.
HK East Hartford, Inc.
The Community Development Trust LP

ecerssonlineT™s SCHEDULE OF ADDITIONAL NAMED INSUREDS

49723805 ] 13/20 East Harcford Estacds/Summecfield | Joanne Trinh § 7/1/201% 12:41:16 PM [EOT' | Page 1 of 3




NsSpe, .

Pham, Paulyna

I L e
From: Grew, Greg
Sent: Thursday, June 27, 2019 11:44 AM
To: Pham, Paulyna
Subject: RE: Summerfield Summer Bash Amusement Appli.

Per Town Ordinance 5-3 my review and approval are not required. Permits and inspections may be required for
temporary installations,

MILTON GREGORY GREW, AlA

Director of Inspections & Permits

(Building / Zoning / Property Maint.)

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD

740 Main Street

East Hartford, CT 06108

Direct (860) 291-7345

Mabile (860) 874-8034
www.easthartfordct.gov/inspections-and-permits

From: Pham, Paulyna

Sent: Thursday, June 27, 2019 11:37 AM

To: Cordier, James; Cruz-Aponte, Marilynn; Fravel, Theodore; Oates, John

Cc: Cohen, Bruce; Davis, Robert; Drouin, Darrell; Dwyer, Sean; Ficacelli, Joseph; Gentile, Richard; Grew, Greg; Hawkins,
Mack; Munson, Kevin; Neves, Paul; O'Connell, Michael; Sansom, Scott; Sasen, Christine; Wagner, Justin; Walsh, Mike
Subject: Summerfield Summer Bash Amusement Appli.

Good morning -
Please see attached for the cutdoor amusement permit application for the Summerfield Summer Bash.
Date: Tuesday, July 23, 2019

**AS THIS APPLICATION WAS RECEIVED 25 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EVENT, IN ORDER TO HAVE THIS PLACED ON
THE AGENDA FOR THE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 16, 2019, | AM REQUESTING YOUR REVIEWS BE IN
NO LATER THAN WEDNESDAY, JULY 3%C AT 10:00 AM. **

Town Ordinance (TO) 5-3 requires that certain department heads submit their comments, regarding this
amusement application, within two weeks from the date the application was filed. Please send signed
reviews, or an e-mail, regarding your comments no later than WEDNESDAY, JULY 3"° by 10:00 AM.

Paulyna Plam

East Hartford Police Department
Administrative Clerk

31 School St.

East Hartford CT 06108

Ph: (860} 291-7631



Fire

Outdoor Amusement Permits
31 School Street
East Hartford, CT 06108
(860) 528-4401

OUTDOOR AMUSEMENT PERMIT

Mark J. Sirois APPLICATION Marcia A. Leclerc
Chief of Police Mayor

Administrative Review of Amusement Permit

Event Date: Tuesday, July 23, 2019
Event: Summerfield Summer Bash
Applicant: Summerfield Townhouses, by Angela Elder it’s Property Manager

Pursuant to Town Ordinance (TO) 5-3, a review of the application was completed and the following
recommendation is made:

X 1. the application be approved as submitted.

2. the application be revised, approved subject to the condition{s} set forth in the attached

comments.
| 3. the application be disapproved for the reason(s} set forth in the attached comments.
B4 Fire Department
] Health Department
1 Parks & Recreation Department
| Public Works Department
(1 Corporation Counsel
] Police Department
= Anticipated Cost if known § 0

Assistant Chief Kevin Munson 6/27/2019
Signature Date

Comments:



Fire  Mrsnwg

Pham, Paulyna

O ]
From: Wagner, Justin
Sent: Tuesday, July 2, 2019 8:25 AM
To: Pham, Paulyna
Subject: RE: Summerfield Summer Bash Amusement Appli.

This has been signed off by me, and we will send an inspector on 7/23 around 11:30 to look at everything prior to the
event...

Justin Wagner

Fire Marshal

East Hartford Fire Department
31 5chool 5t

East Hartford, CT 06108
860-291-7432 Direct
860-541-0346 Mobife
860-291-9309 Fax

iwagner@easthartfordct.gov

The East Hartford Fire Department is committed to the prevention of fires and protection of fives, property and the environment, The
Department's major areas of emergency response include fire suppression and investigation, emergency medical services, technical
rescue, and hazardous matenals incidents.

PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL: The information contained in this electronic message and any alachments are confidential property and intended
anly for the use of the addressee. Any interception, copying, accessing, or disclosure or distribution of this message is prohibited, and sender takes no
responsibility for any unautharized reliance on this message. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately and purge
the message you received.

From: Pham, Paulyna

Sent: Thursday, June 27, 2019 2:20 PM

To: Wagner, Justin <Jwagner@easthartfordct.gov>
Subject: FW: Summerfield Summer Bash Amusement Appli.

Good afterncon —
I was fold that you should be included on this approval because there will be a tent and food trucks that will need to be
inspected.

Please see attached for the application and see below for the approval’s due date.

Thank you !



YN

Qutdoor Amusement Permits
31 School Street

East Hartford, CT 06108
(860) 528-4401
: OUTDOOR AMUSEMENT PERMIT
Mark J, Sirois APPLICATION Marcia A. Leclere
Chief of Police Mayor

Administrative Review of Amusement Permit

Event Date; Tuesday, July 23,2019
Event: Summerfield Summer Bash
Applicant: Summerfield Townhouses, by Angela Elder it’s Property Manager

Pursuant to Town Ordinance (TO} 5-3, a review of the application was completed and the following
recommendation is made:

X 1. the application be approved as submitted.
2. the application be revised, approved subject to the condition(s) set forth in the attached
comments.
O 3. the application be disapproved for the reason(s) set forth in the attached comments.
| Fire Department
(<] Health Department
M Parks & Recreation Department
] Public Works Department
] Corporation Counsel
1 Police Department
X Anticipated Cost ifknown § 0
Michael T. O’Connell 06/27/2019
Signattire Date
Comrnents:

Approval recommended provided that the applicant submit any temporary foodservice permit
applications at least 2 weeks prior to the event.



KISk

Pham, Paulyna

From: Sasen, Christine

Sent: Monday, July 1, 2019 1:18 PM
To: Pham, Paulyna

Subject: Summerfield

Attachments: COIl - Summerfield.pdf

You have my approval.
Chris

Christine M. Sasen, MBA
Risk Manager

Town of East Hartford

740 Main Street

East Hartford, CT 06108
Telephone: (860) 291-7244
Facsimile: {860) 289-0831
Cell: (860) 436-7787

E-Mail: csasen{@easthartfordct.gov



Public WorkS

Outdoor Amusement Permits
31 School Street

East Hartford, CT 06108
(860) 528-4401
‘ OUTDOOR AMUSEMENT PERMIT
Mark J. Sirois w Marcia A. Leclerc
Chief of Police Mayor

Administrative Review of Amusement Permit

Event Date: Tuesday, July 23,2019
Event; Suemmerfield Summer Bash
Applicant: Summerfield Townhouses, by Angela Elder it’s Property Manager

Pursuant to Town Ordinance (TO} 5-3, a review of the application was completed and the following
recommendation is made:

X

1. the application be approved as submitted,

2. the application be revised, approved subject to the condition(s) set forth in the attached
comments.

3. the application be disapproved for the reason(s) set forth in the attached comments.

Fire Department

Health Depariment

Parks & Recreation Department
Public Works Department
Corporation Counsel

Police Department

OoxOOa O O

O

Anticipated Cost if known $__ None

Marilynn Cruz-Aponte 6-27-2019
Signature Date

Comments:



Outdoor Amusement Permits
31 School Street
East Hartford, CT 06108
(860) 528-4401

OUTDOOR AMUSEMENT PERMIT

Mark £. Sirois APPLICATION Marcia A, Leclerc
Chief of Police Mayor

Administrative Review of Amusement Permit

Event Date: Tuoesday, July 23, 2019
Event: Summerfield Summer Bash
Applicant: Summerfield Townhouses, by Angela Elder it's Property Manager

Pursuant to Town Ordinance (TO) 3-3, a review of the application was completed and the following
recommendation is inade:

1. the application be approved as submitted.

2. the applicaticn be revised, approved subject to the condition(s} set forth in the attached
cominents.

Ll

the application be disapproved for the reason(s) set forth in the attached comments.

Fire Department

Health Department

Parks & Recreation Department
Public Works Department
Comporation Counsel

Police Department

OO~ g O o

O

Anticipated Cost if known  $0

Ted Fravel, 7/3/19
Signature Date

Comments:



Loty.

Pham, Paulxna — — —

From: Gentile, Richard

Sent: Thursday, June 27, 2019 11:43 AM

To: Pham, Paulyna

Subject: RE: Summerfield Summer Bash Amusement Appli.

I have no concerns or comments with respect to this application

Richard P. Gentile

Assistant Corporation Counsel
Town of East Hartford

740 Main Street

East Hartford, CT 06108
860-291-7217

rpgentile@easthartfordct.gov

THIS MESSAGE AND ANY OF ITS ATTACHMENTS ARE INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE DESIGNATED REGIPIENT, OR THE RECIPIENT'S DESIGNEE, AND MAY CONTAIN
INFORMATION THAT IS CONFIDENTIAL AND/OR PRIVILEGED IF YOU ARE NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, PLEASE DELETE ALL COPIES OF THIS MESSAGE INCLUDING ANY
ATTACHMENTS AND NOTIFY THE OFFICE OF THE CORPORATION COUNSEL THAT YOU RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICATION {H ERROR BY CALLING 860 2H-7215 THANK YOU

From: Pham, Paulyna

Sent: Thursday, June 27, 2019 11:37 AM

To: Cordier, James; Cruz-Aponte, Marilynn; Fravel, Theodore; Oates, John

Cc: Cohen, Bruce; Davis, Robert; Drouin, Darrell; Dwyer, Sean; Ficacelli, Joseph; Gentile, Richard; Grew, Greg; Hawkins,
Mack; Munson, Kevin; Neves, Paul; O'Connel!, Michael; Sansom, Scott; Sasen, Christine; Wagner, Justin; Walsh, Mike
Subject: Summerfield Summer Bash Amusement Appli.

Good morning -
Please see attached for the outdoor amusement permit application for the Summerfield Summer Bash.
Date: Tuesday, July 23, 2019

**AS THIS APPLICATION WAS RECEIVED 25 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EVENT, {N ORDER TO HAVE THIS PLACED ON
THE AGENDA FOR THE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 16, 2019, | AM REQUESTING YOUR REVIEWS BE IN
NO LATER THAN WEDNESDAY, JULY 3RC AT 10:00 AM, **

Town Ordinance (TO) 5-3 requires that certain department heads submit their comments, regarding this
amusement application, within two weeks from the date the application was filed. Please send signed
reviews, or an e-mail, regarding your comments no later than WEDNESDAY, JULY 37° by 10:00 AM.

East Hartford Police Department
Administrative Clerk

31 School St.



Yolioe

Pham, Pau!xna .

From: Hawkins, Mack

Sent: Friday, June 28, 2019 8:27 AM

To: Pham, Paulyna

Subject: RE: Summerfield Summer Bash Amusement Appii.
Paulyna,

| have reviewed the Outdoor Amusement Permit Application for Summerfield Bash -2019. | approve the application as
submitted. Please mark the worksheet Extra Attention for the day of the event,

Thanks you,

Deputy Qhie) Mack S. Faubing

Chief of Field Operations

East Hartford Police Department
31 School 5t,

East Hartford, CT 06108

Office 860 291-7597

Serving Our Community with Pride and Integrity

From: Pham, Paulyna

Sent: Thursday, June 27, 2019 11:37 AM .

To: Cordier, James <jcordier@easthartfordct.gov>; Cruz-Aponte, Marilynn <mcruzaponte @easthartfordct.gov>; Fravel,
Theodore <tfravel@easthartfordct.gov>; Oates, John <loates@easthartfordct.gov>

Cc: Cohen, Bruce <BCohen@easthartfordct.gov>; Davis, Robert <RDavis@easthartfordct.gov>; Drouin, Darrell
<Ddrouin@easthartfordct.gov>; Dwyer, Sean <SDwyer@easthartfordct.gov>; Ficacelli, Joseph
<JFicacelli@easthartfordct.gov>; Gentile, Richard <RPGentile @easthartfo rdct.gov>; Grew, Greg
<mggrew@easthartfordct.gov>; Hawkins, Mack <MHawkins@easthartfordct.gov>; Munson, Kevin
<KMunson@easthartfordct.gov>; Neves, Paul <Pneves@easthartfordct.gov>; 0'Connell, Michael
<Moconnell@easthartfordct.gov>; Sansom, Scott <SSansom@easthartfordct.gov>; Sasen, Christine
<CSasen@easthartfordct.gov>; Wagner, Justin <Jwagner@easthartfordct.gov>; Walsh, Mike
<MWalsh@easthartfordct.gov>

Subject: Summerfield Summer Bash Amusement Appli.

Good morning —









TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD POLICE DEPARTMENT

TS
R
oL ":u%:
4 2] - 1]
&Y R

AN

OUTDOOR AMUSEMENT PERMITS
31 SCHOOL STREET
EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108-2638

(860} 528-4401]
OUTDOOR AMUSEMENT PERMIT
APPLICATION ‘
Marcia A, Leclerc Scott M. Sansom
Mayor Chief of Police

THIS APPLICATION 1S DUE NOT LESS THAN 30 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EVENT APPLIED FOR

1. Name of Event;

Believe 208 - Run for the Brave and Finest
2. Date(s) of Event:

Sunday, September 29, 2018

3. Applicant's name, home & work phone numbers, home address, and e-mail address (NOTE: If applicant is
a partnership, corporation, limited liability company, club or association give the full legal name of the
Applicant):

Katy Kleis, Race Director {organization, CABLE Inc., Believe 208)
2 Redbud Lane, Glastonbury, CT 06033

W 860-813-2157 C: 203-313-0832

Email: Katy.Kleis@gmail.com or believe208run@gmail.com

4. I Applicant is a partnership, corporation, limited tiability company {LLCY), €lub, or association, list the
names of al] partners, members, directors and officers AND provide their business address.

N/A

5. List the location of the proposed amusement: (Name ol facility and address)

1831 Main Street, East Hartford CT 06118 to South Windsor town line

6. List the dates and hours of operation for each duy (if location changes on a particular doy, please list):
1831 Main Street, East Hartford CT 06118 to South Windsor town line
B:00AM - 9:30AM
7. Provide a detaijed description of the proposed amusement;

5K road race in memory of East Hartford Police Officer Paul Buchanan -
please see attached for more information

_EHPD FORM # 127, Reviscd 03-20-18 Page 1 of 4 pages



8. Will music or other entertainment be provided wholly or partially outdoors?

Yes |:|No

o If*YES,’ during what days and hours will music or enteriainment be provided (note: this is

different from hours of operation)? g.).14:00 AM at Knights of Columbus

9. What ia the expected age group(s) of participants?
4-70

£0. What is the expected attendance at the proposed amusement:
{If more than one performance, indicate time / day / date and anticipated attendance for each,)

200-500

11, Provide a detailed description of the proposed amusement’s anticipated impact on the surrounding
community. Plense comment on each topic below:

0

Crowd size impact:

Road closure Ellington Road & Main Street to Old Main St., South Windsor
Traffic control and flow plan at site & impact on surrounding / supporting streets:

EHPD will open northbound to southbound as runners complete course.

Parking plan on site & impact on surrounding / supporting streets:
Parking at Knights of Columbus in designated lots, no overflow on streets

Noise impact on neighborhood:
Minimal

Trash & litter control plan tor the amusement site and surrounding community during and immediately
afer the proposed amusement:

Trash receptacles provided, volunteers will clean course on-going & ASAP

List expected general disruption to neighborhood’s normal life and activities:
Minimal traffic delays for Passaro Dr. & Main Street approx. 35-45 min max

Other expected influence on surrounding neighborhood:
None

12. Provide a detailed plan for the fotlowing:

.

Accessibility of amusement site 1o emergency, police, fire & medical personnel and vehicles:

Police, fire & medical on-site.

Provisions for notitication of proper authorities in the case of an emergency:

Volunteers with cell phones/walkie talkies. Emergency personnel on-site.
Any provision for on-site emergency medical services:

EHFD on site.

Crowd control plan:
Not applicable.

If on town property, the plan for the return of the amusement site lo pre-nomusciment condition:

Cones and trash will be picked up by volunteers.

EHPD FORM # 127, Revised 03-20-18 Pape 2 of 4 pages









The Believe 208: Run for the Brave and Finest

The route is as follows:

e Beginning at the Run Command Post, the Knights of Columbus Hall located at
1831 (0Old) Main St., East Hartford, runners will run

North onto Main St which turns into (Cld) Main Street

Continue straight past the intersection of Gilman and (Old) Main Streets
Continue straight past Passaro Drive.

Continue straight past Brook Street.

Continuing straight to North King Street, South Windsor at which point runners
turn around on the street’s ioop and follow the same route back to the point and
place of beginning.

6/6/2019



Question #7
Believe 208: Run for the Brave and Finest

The Annual Believe 208 5K Run for the Brave and Finest, in Memory of East Hartford Police
Officer Paul Buchanan, supports “Believe 208", “Believe 208%, an initiative in collaboration
with the Connecticut Alliance to Benefit Law Enforcement (CABLE), works to provide
resources, training and information on all aspects of first responder well-being. The “Believe
208” mission is to increase awareness of the unique challenges facing first responders and to be a
trusted, influentiat source for first responders, their families, agencies and community
stakeholders. Proceeds from the race fund education and training efforts and provide resources to
first responders and families in need.

Course Route:

The 5K race will start at the Knights of Columbus (1831 Main Street, East Hartford) and will
continue into South Windsor on Main Street Northbound and will return on Main Street South

Bound.



AC CDRDQa DATE (MWDIVYYYY}
\ 1 CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

0771072019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS {SSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER({S}, AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the palicy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
It SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, aubject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsement. A siatement on
this certificate does not confer rights ta the certificate holder In lleu of such endoraement(s),

PRODUCER CORTACT  \Will Maddux
East Maln Street Insurance Services, Inc. FHONE ey (530) 477-6521 Fﬁi@
Will Maddux . AbbhLes. info@theeventhelper.com
PO Box 1298 INSURER(S) AFFORDING GOVERAGE NAIC #
Grass Valley CA 95945 INSURER A : Evanston Insurance Company 35378
INSURED INSURER B :
CABLE, Inc. Befieve 208 INSURERC :
cfo Katy Kieis INSURERD :
82 Cottonwood Road INSURERE :
Newington CT 06111 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WATH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE [SSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANGE AFFORDED BY THE FOLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUGH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID GLAIMS.

I{l%:l ADDLISUBR] POLICY EFF | PRUCY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | YD POLICY NUMBER (MRDBAYYYY] | (MRVDDYYYY) LIMITS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH DCCURRENGE s 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
| cLamssane OCGUR PREMISES {Eacccurrence) | 5 100,000
Host Liquor Liability MED EXP tAny ans parsen} | 8 5,000
A Retail Liquor Liability ¥ | ¥ | 3DS5468-M 1529858 09/29/2018 { 09/30/2019 | PERSONAL £ ADVINIURY | § 1.000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER. 12:01 AM | 12:01 AM | GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
rotiey [ | FR%: oo PRODUCTS . COMPIDPAGG | s 1.000,000
OTHER: Deductible § 1,000
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY o SINGLELIMIT ™ 1 g
ANY AUTO BODLY INJURY (Per porson} |
OWNED SCHEDULED
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BOQILY INJURY (Par accident)] §
1 HIRED NON-GWHED PROPERTY DAMAGE "
|| AUTOS oMLY AUTOS ONLY | (Per aceidant)
3
| uMBRELLALAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE §
EXCESS UAB GLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s
oeo | | Revenmions 5
WORKERS COMPENSATION FER o
AND EMPLOVERE' LABILITY YIN [Sefnre [ [ SR
ANYPROPRIETORPAR TNER/EXEGUTIVE E.L EACH ACCIDENT s
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? I:_J NiA
{Mrndatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE] §
It gas. dasciibe under
DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS bafow E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additianal Remarks Schediile, may be attached H mors spaza ls raquired)

Cerlificate holder listed belaw is named as additional insured per attached MEGL 2217 01 19.
Attendance: 500, Event Type: 5 K Run.

Waiver of Subrogation applies per attached CG 24 04 05 09.

Primary/Non-Contributory wording applies per attached CG 20 01 04 13,

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
. . THE EXPIRATIDN DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE OELIVERED IN
Town of East Hartford, its officia’s, ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

employees, valunteers, boards and

commissions

AUTHORIZED REFRESENTATIVE
740 Main Strest M //R#ﬁ;o
; East Hartford CT 06108

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 {2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are reglstered marks of ACORD




COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
'l POLICY NUMBER: 3DS5468-M1529858

MARKEL
EVANSTON INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.,

ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED
PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifles insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or QOrganization(s):

Town of East Hartford, its officials,
employees, volunteers, boards and
commissions

740 Main Street

East Hartford, CT 06108

A. Section M - Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) shown
in the Schedule of this endorsement, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury”, "property damage" or "personal
and advertising injury” caused, in whole or in part, by the acts or omissions of any insured listed under Paragraph 1. or
2. of Section 1 - Who Is An Insured:

1. In the performance of your ongoing operations; or

2, In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by law; and

2. [f coverage provided to the additional insured is required by a contract or agreement, the insurance afforded to such
additional insured will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract or agreement to provide for
such additiona! insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following is added to Section HF — Limits Of
fnsurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is required by a contract or agreement, the most we will pay on behalf of
the additional insured is the amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or
2, Available under the applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations;
whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged.

MEGL 2217 01 19 Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., Page 1 of 1
with its permission.



POLICY NUMBER: 3DS5468-M1529858 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 24040509

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY
AGAINST OTHERS TO US

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Person Or Organization:

Town of East Hartford, its officials,
employees, volunteers, boards and
commissions

740 Main Strest

East Hartford, CT 06108

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

The following is added to Paragraph 8. Transfer Gf
Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us of
Section IV ~ Conditions:

We waive any right of recovery we may have against
the person or organization shown in the Schedule
above because of payments we make for injury or
damage arising out of your ongoing operations or
"your work" done under a contract with that person
or organization and included in the “products-
completed operations hazard". This waiver applies
only to the person or organization shown in the
Schedute above.

CG 24040509 @ Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2008 Page 1 of 1



POLICY NUMBER: 3DS5468-M1529858 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG20010413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY -
OTHER INSURANCE CONDITION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following Is added to the Other Insurance (2) You have agreed in writing in a contract or
Condition and supersedes any provision to the agreement that this insurance would be
contrary: primary and wouid not seek contribution

from any other insurance available to the

Primary And Noncontributory Insurance additional insured.

This insurance is primary to and will not seek
contribution from any other insurance available
to an additional insured under your policy
provided that:

(1) The additional insured is a Named Insured
under stch other insurance; and

CG20010413 ® Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1



























QFFICE OF THE

TFORTH! JUL 1 85 2g1-52p8
TOWN COUNCIL i =i _ 2017550
Loy o 3
East Hartford, Conitetticut 06108 ORD
S o
RLCE
DATE: July 11, 2019
TO:  Town Council Members
FROM: Rich Kehoe, Chair
RE: Tuesday, July 16, 2019 6:45 p.m. Town Council Majority Office

In accordance with Section 3.3 (a) of the Town Charter, a Special Meeting of the Town
Council wili be held as follows:

Tuesday, July 16, 2019
6:45 p.m.

Town Council Majority Office

The purpose of the meeting is to meet in executive session to discuss:

» The pending property damage claim of The Connecticut Light & Power Co.
D.B.A. Eversource Energy;

> The pending property damage claim of Tyler Devaux;

> The Tentative Agreement between the Town of East Hartford and the Teamsters
Local #671 Unicn — Telecommunicators: and

» The 2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement between the East Hartford
Board of Education and the East Hartford Educational Administrative and
Supervisory Unit

C: Mayor Leclerc
Scott Chadwick, Corporation Counsel
Mike Walsh, Finance Director
Santiago Malave, Human Resources Director
Christopher Wethje, EHPS Human Resources Director



	07-16-19RegularAgenda
	Beautification
	06-18-19RegularMinutes
	TA
	ContTrans
	EHEASU
	BrewerSt
	CivicEngagement
	SafeNeighborhoods
	YouthServGrant
	Summerfield
	BelieveRun
	07-16-19ExecutiveSession



